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Introduction to the National Youth 
Development Agency
The National Youth Development Agency (NYDA) was established in 2009, following a merger between 

Umsobomvu Youth Fund and the National Youth Commission.

The NYDA was formally launched on 16 June 2009, as pronounced by His Excellency, President Jacob G 

Zuma in his 2009 State of the Nation Address. The launch formed part of the National Youth Month events 

championed by The Presidency.

The Agency derives its mandate from the legislative frameworks, including the National Youth Development 

Agency Act, 2008 (Act 54 of 2008) (NYDA Act), the National Youth Policy (NYP) (2009–2014) and the draft 

Integrated Youth Development Strategy (IYDS). The Agency assumed and improved the operational 

platform developed by both UYF and NYC, which rendered the Agency operational with immediate effect. 

In addition, the staff component of its predecessors was also incorporated into the NYDA.

The activities of the NYDA can be summarised as follows:

• Lobbying and advocating for integration and mainstreaming of youth development in all spheres of 

government, the private sector and civil society;

• Initiating, implementing, facilitating and coordinating youth development programmes;

• Monitoring and evaluating youth development intervention across the board and mobilising youth 

for active participation in civil society engagements.

The NYDA is a South African-based Agency established primarily to address challenges faced by the nation’s 

youth. The Agency was established by an Act of Parliament (Act 54 of 2008) to be a single, unitary structure 

addressing youth development issues at national, provincial and local government level. The Agency should 

be seen within the broad context of South Africa’s development dynamics.

Similar to many developing countries, South Africa has a large population of youth between the ages  

14–35, representing 42% of the total population. Given the youthful nature of the South African population, 

many of the socio-economic challenges faced by the nation, for example, poverty, inequality, joblessness 

and poor health, are borne by the youth. The gravity of the challenges requires multi-pronged efforts that 

simultaneously promote the development of sustainable livelihoods; reduce poverty and inequality; and 

prioritise the formulation of policies which create an enabling environment for youth development.

The NYDA plays a leading role in ensuring that all major stakeholders, i.e. government, the private sector 

and civil society, prioritise youth development and contribute towards identifying and implementing lasting 

solutions which address youth development challenges.
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Furthermore, the NYDA designs and implements programmes aimed at improving lives and opportunities 

available to youth. These programmes may be clustered as follows:

• At an individual level (micro level), the NYDA provides direct services to youth in the form of 

providing information, career guidance services, mentorship, skills development and training, 

entrepreneurial development and support and grant funding, health awareness programmes and 

involvement in sport.

• At a community level (meso level), the NYDA encourages young people to be catalysts for change 

in their communities through involvement in community development activities, social cohesion 

activities, national youth service programmes and dialogue.

• At a provincial and national level (macro level), through its policy development, partnerships and 

research programmes, the NYDA facilitates the participation of youth in developing key policy inputs 

which shape the socio-economic landscape of South Africa.

Beneficiaries & Target Audiences
• South African youth aged between 14 and 35 years

• South African youth, irrespective of race, gender, colour, creed, geographical location or political 

affiliations.

The Agency has a predisposition towards:

• Youth in rural areas

• Out-of-school youth

• Youth with disabilities

• Young women

• Unemployed youth

• Youth in conflict with the law.

Vision
To be a credible and capable development agency for South Africa’s youth

Mission
To mainstream youth issues into society.

To facilitate youth development with all sectors of society.

Values
• Excellence

• Respect

• Integrity and honesty

• Care

• Punctuality and promptness.
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NYDA’s Focus
Effective from May 2013, the NYDA shifted its core business away from Enterprise Finance towards Education 
and Skills Development. The fundamental change in this area of development is the change from loan 
provision to grant provision for young entrepreneurs.

The NYDA no longer offers loan finance to young entrepreneurs: instead, it offers grant finance in the form of 
micro-finance grants for survivalist youth entrepreneurship and co-operative grants for greater participation 
of youth in the co-operatives sector.

The objective of the grant programme is to provide young entrepreneurs an opportunity to access both 

financial and non-financial business development support to establish their survivalist businesses. The 

programme focuses on youth entrepreneurs who are just coming to the fore and beginning to display signs 

of future potential, but are not yet fully developed. The grant finance starts from R1 000 and goes to a 

maximum of R100 000 for any individual or youth co-operative.

Therefore, the NYDA focuses on the following: tailor-made interventions for job preparedness and placement; 

scholarship provision for those who excel in school; the scaling up of the YouthBuild programme for out-of-

school youth; the increase of second-chance opportunities for matriculants; and the intensification of our 

highly successful career guidance programme. The NYDA is continuing with efforts directed at economic 

participation, offering a range of products, programmes and services to young entrepreneurs in need, albeit 

as a secondary focus.

NYDA Key Performance Areas
The NYDA has adopted the following five Key Performance Areas (KPAs) as part of its strategy:

• Economic participation: To assist and facilitate youth participation in the economy, leading to 

improvement of their livelihoods through NYDA grants as financial support and non-financial support 

interventions.

• Education & skills development: To promote access to quality education and skills, to both in 

and out-of-school youth, through targeted interventions. The NYDA will place 22 830 learners in 

education opportunities over a period of five years, which will include young people who want to 

rewrite their Matric (21, 978) and those who need scholarships to continue with their higher education 

studies (852).

• Health & wellbeing: To increase awareness of healthy lifestyles that promote good health practices 

among the youth of South Africa, including the dangers of substance abuse; unprotected sex; lack of 

nutrition; sexually transmitted diseases; and the impact of HIV Infection and Aids on young people 

in South Africa.

• Policy & research: To create and produce youth development information and knowledge that informs 

the public sector, private sector, and civil society on developing policy, planning, implementation 

and review of all (100%) of their programmes related to government priorities.

• Governance & administration: To provide effective IT systems, business processes, and HR capacity 

development, as well as improving the operations of the NYDA. To ensure that all NYDA systems and 

processes support NYDA products and services for effective service delivery.
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List Of Abbreviations
ASB ................. Accounting Standards Board
APP ................. Annual Performance Plan
APS ................. Admission Point Score
BAC ................. Bid Adjudication Committee
CIPC ................ Companies and Intellectual Property Commission
CPUT ............... Cape Peninsula University of Technology
EDP ................. Enterprise Development Programme
EPWP .............. Expanded Public Works Programme
FET .................. Further Education and Training
FICA ................ Financial Intelligence Centre Act
GRAP .............. Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
ICT ................... Information Communication Technology
IDC .................. Industrial Development Corporation
IT ..................... Information Technology
IYDS ................ Integrated Youth Development Strategy
JOBS ............... Job and Opportunities Seeker’s Database
KPA ................. Key Performance Area
KPI ................... Key Performance Indicator
LYO.................. Local Youth Office
MTEF .............. Medium-term Expenditure Framework
NADCAO ........ National Alliance for the Development of Community Advice Offices
NDP ................ National Development Plan
NMMU ............ Nelson Mandela Metropolitan University
NSFAS ............. National Student Financial Aid Scheme
NSS ................. Non-State Sector
NWU ............... North West University
NYC ................. National Youth Commission
NYDA .............. National Youth Development Agency
NYDA Act ...... National Youth Development Agency Act No. 4 of 2008
PFMA .............. Public Finance Management Act No. 4 of 1999
PSC.................. Project Steering Committee
RHODES ......... Rhodes University
SANCA ........... South African National Council on Alcohol and Drug Dependence
SAPD............... Soweto Association of People with Disabilities
SAPS ............... South African Police Service
SARS ............... South African Revenue Service
SAS.................. Statements on Auditing Standards
SCM ................ Supply Chain Management
SEDA............... Small Enterprise Development Agency
SEFA ............... Small Enterprise Finance Agency
SME’s .............. Small to Medium Enterprises
SUN ................. Stellenbosch University
TUT.................. Tshwane University of Technology
UCT ................. University of Cape Town
UFH ................. University of Fort Hare
UFS.................. University of Free State
UJ .................... University of Johannesburg
UKZN .............. University of KwaZulu Natal
UNISA ............. University of South Africa
UP.................... University of Pretoria
UWC ................ University of Western Cape
UYF ................. Umsobomvu Youth Fund
WITS ............... University of Witwatersrand

YAC’s ............... Youth Advisory Centres
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Definitions
The auditor’s report is a formal opinion or disclaimer thereof, as a result of an external audit performed on 

the NYDA. It is important to note that auditor’s reports on financial statements are neither evaluations, nor 

any other similar determination used to evaluate entities, in order to make a decision. The report is only an 

opinion on whether the information presented is correct and free from material misstatements, whereas all 

other determinations are left for the user to decide. There are four common types of auditor’s reports, each 

one presenting a different situation encountered during the auditor’s work. The four reports are as follows:

1. Unqualified Opinion
An opinion is said to be unqualified when the auditor concludes that the financial statements give a true and 

fair view, in accordance with the financial reporting framework used for the preparation and presentation of 

the financial statements.

An auditor gives an unqualified opinion when he or she does not have any significant reservation, in respect 

of matters contained in the financial statements. The auditor can only provide reasonable assurance 

regarding the financial statements, and not regarding the integrity of company records that were not part 

of the foundation of the financial statements. This type of report is issued by an auditor when the financial 

statements presented are free of material misstatements and are represented fairly, in accordance with the 

Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), which means that the company’s financial condition, 

position and operations are fairly presented in the financial statements. It is the best type of report an 

auditee may receive from an external auditor.

An Unqualified Opinion indicates the following:
1. The financial statements were prepared using the GRAP, which was consistently applied.

2. The financial statements comply with relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

3. There is adequate disclosure of all material matters relevant to the proper presentation of the financial 

information subject to statutory requirements, where applicable.

4. Any changes in the accounting principles or in the method of their application, and the effects thereof 

have been properly determined and disclosed in the financial statements.

2. Qualified Opinion
A Qualified Opinion report is issued when the auditor encounters one of two types of situations which do 

not comply with GRAP, but the rest of the financial statements are fairly presented. This type of opinion is 

very similar to an unqualified opinion, but the report states that the financial statements are fairly presented 

with a certain exception, which is otherwise misstated. The two types of situations which would cause an 

auditor to issue this opinion over the unqualified opinion are:

• Single deviation from GRAP – this type of qualification occurs when one or more areas of the financial 

statements do not conform to GRAP (e.g. are misstated), but do not affect the rest of the financial 

statements from being fairly presented when taken as a whole. Examples of this include when a 

company did not correctly calculate the depreciation expense of its building. Even if this expense 

is considered material, since the rest of the financial statements do conform to GRAP, the auditor 

qualifies the opinion by describing the depreciation misstatement in the report and continues to 

issue an unqualified opinion on the rest of the financial statements.

• Limitation of scope – this type of qualification occurs when the auditor could not audit one or more 

areas of the financial statements and, although they could not be verified, the rest of the financial 
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statements were audited and they conform to GRAP. Examples of this include an auditor not being 

able to observe and test a company’s fixed asset verification process. If the auditor audited the rest 

of the financial statements and is reasonably sure that they conform to GRAP, then the auditor simply 

states that the financial statements are fairly presented, with the exception of the fixed assets which 

could not be audited.

3. Adverse Opinion
An Adverse Opinion report is issued when the auditor determines that the financial statements of an auditee 

are materially misstated and, when considered as a whole, do not conform to GRAP. It is considered the 

opposite of an unqualified opinion, essentially stating that the information contained is materially too 

incorrect, unreliable, and inaccurate to assess the financial position and results of operations. Generally, an 

adverse opinion is only given if the financial statements pervasively differ from GRAP.

4. Disclaimer of Opinion
A Disclaimer of Opinion report, commonly referred to simply as a Disclaimer, is issued when the auditor 

could not form and, consequently, refuses to present an opinion on the financial statements. This type of 

report is issued when the auditor tried to audit an entity, but could not complete the work, due to various 

reasons, and does not issue an opinion.

Statements on Auditing Standards (SAS) provide certain situations where a disclaimer of opinion may be 

appropriate:

• A lack of independence, or material conflict(s) of interest, exist between the auditor and the auditee 

(SAS No. 26)

• There are significant scope limitations, whether intentional or not, which hinder the auditor’s work in 

obtaining evidence and performing procedures (SAS No. 58)

• There is a substantial doubt about the auditee’s ability to continue as a going concern or, in other 

words, continue operating (SAS No. 59)

• There are significant uncertainties within the auditee (SAS No. 79).

Although this type of opinion is rarely used, the most common examples where disclaimers are issued include 

audits where the auditee wilfully hides, or refuses to provide, evidence and information to the auditor in 

significant areas of the financial statements, where the auditee is facing significant legal and litigation issues of 

which the outcome is uncertain (usually government investigations), and where the auditee has going concern 

issues.

Emphasis of matter is a type of paragraph in, or section of, an auditor’s report on financial statements. Such a 

paragraph is added to indicate a significant uncertainty or other matter, which is disclosed appropriately in the 

notes forming part of the financial statements, but which the auditor considers to be significant or important 

enough to warrant a mention in their report.

An emphasis of matter paragraph does not qualify the auditor’s opinion; in fact, such paragraphs typically 

begin by stating, “Without qualifying our report...”



Supply Chain Management:
“Fruitless and wasteful expenditure” means expenditure which was made in vain and could have been 

avoided, had reasonable care been exercised.

“Irregular expenditure” means expenditure, other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in contravention 

of, or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including -

1. This Act (referring to the Public Financial Management Act), the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act 86 

of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of that Act

2. Any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.

7



8

Mr Jeffrey Thamsanqa Radebe, MP
Minister in The Presidency: Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation
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Message from the Honourable 
Minister
It has been 5 years since the National Youth Development Agency (NYDA) was established. This is an 
important milestone for the evolution of youth development in our country. When launching the Agency 
on 16 June 2009, President Jacob Zuma said the Agency must initiate, design, coordinate, evaluate and 
monitor all programmes aimed at integrating the youth into the economy and society in general. This was 
indeed a huge mandate, which the Agency had to undertake. Of importance to note, is the fact that the 
Agency undertook and continue to undertake that mandate with great diligence.  
It now gives me great pleasure to table the first ever clean audit opinion from the Auditor-General (AG) of South 
Africa in respect of the NYDA for the financial year 2014/2015. Since its existence, the Agency has been achieving 
unqualified audit opinion reports from the AG. This present achievement, demonstrates that the NYDA Board and 
its Executive Management are committed to good governance and proper systems of financial accountability.  

The NYDA has achieved 93% of its key performance indicators during the period under review. This 
performance accounts for a 7% improvement in performance from 86% during the 2013/2014 financial 
year. We welcome this achievement. When the current NYDA Board assumed its duties, following their 
appointment on 1 April 2013, they set out on a journey to reposition the NYDA with a new vision and 
mission - “as a credible and capable development agency for South Africa’s youth”. It is worth pointing 
that the new vision is underpinned by significant improvements in the operations of the NYDA. In this 
regard, the Agency is prudently utilising its resources, while adequately responding to the needs 
and aspirations of the youth of our country. Today, the results are clear and speak for themselves.  

In applauding the NYDA’s performance, I wish to reiterate our commitment to advancing youth development 
as government. As part of putting youth development at the core of our work, the President has formed the 
Presidential Youth Working Group (PYWG). The PYWG will champion youth development and facilitate its 
integration into government policies, programmes and the national budget. This will be further be attained, 
amongst others, by infusing the youth policy priorities into the Medium-Term Strategic Framework and 
the Government Programme of Action; strengthening the capacity of the youth development machinery; 
and inculcating the culture of patriotic citizenship among young people, and thus help them to become 
responsible adults who care for their families and others. 

 Let me conclude by taking this opportunity to thank the NYDA Board for its strategic role and continued 
oversight. It is without any doubt that, without their guidance, these achievements may not have been easily 
attained. I also thank the Chief Executive Officer, for diligently steering this ship even during tumultuous times 
towards achieving this great feat; without such diligence and strategic leaders, this would have remained 
nothing, but a dream. Last but not least, to all members of staff in the Agency who, despite challenges and 
mounting pressure, kept their heads up and focused on the job at hand. Indeed you are the real stars; hope 
and inspiration to the entire country for you have kept the dream of our country’s youth alive. May you keep 

up the good work and continue to deliver on the needs and aspirations of our youth. 

Mr Jeffrey Thamsanqa Radebe, MP
Minister in The Presidency: Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation
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Mr Buti Manamela, MP
Deputy Minister in The Presidency: Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation
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It has been over a year since my appointment as Deputy Minister in the Presidency responsible for Planning 

Monitoring and Evaluation, Youth Development as well as Administration. Without a doubt, having been 

afforded such an opportunity to serve and to work with the youth of our country and government institutions 

responsible for youth development came both as a challenge and an opportunity.

 

It is a known fact that South Africa similarly to other middle income countries such as Brazil and Mexico is 

currently experiencing what some call a window of opportunity, the demographic dividend, which means a 

rise in members of the working age population. A country with both increasing numbers of young people 

and declining fertility has the potential to reap a demographic dividend which is a boost in economic 

productivity that occurs when there are growing numbers of people in the workplace relative to the number 

of dependants.

 

What is critical is how we then harness this potential, to work to the advantage of our country’s growth and 

development. And I can say without any fear of contradiction that South Africa is on course to take advantage 

of this window of opportunity. We have begun writing a different narrative, one of hope, determination, 

productivity and success; and at the centre of this new narrative is determined youth.

 

Breaking away from tradition, President Jacob Zuma during the 2015 Youth Day celebrations invited special 

guests, parading them in the eyes of South Africa, Africa and the World as a model upon which South Africa 

is beginning to write this different narrative.

 

Among them were the youngest medical doctor from KzwaZulu Natal, who qualified for his medical degree at 

the University of KwaZulu Natal when he was only 20 years old. Mthatha born, 25 year old scientist Siyabulela 

Xuza; the youngest pilot in the country if not the world, 18 year old Marcelle Nienaber who obtained her 

pilot’s license at the age of 16 years.  Among these achievers was a young South African scientist who has 

developed the world’s first functional digital laser, Dr Sandile Ngcobo, who works at the Centre for Scientific 

and Industrial Research (CSIR) here in Pretoria; the youngest skydiver in the South African National Defence 

Force, 22 year old Corporal Dakalo Mavhungu from Tshakuma village in Venda, Limpopo.

 

President Zuma also presented to the world a number of young business pioneers whose businesses have 

been supported through the NYDA’s financial and non-financial business development support. Patrick 

Mapetla from Ga-Matlala in Limpopo Province who runs a welding business making steel window frames 

and security gates, Kerina Singh, from Durban who runs a business that repairs and replaces windscreens for 

vehicles, Beauty Motsepe from Johannesburg who runs a clothing manufacturing business supplying hotels 

and other corporate entities, as well as two young people from Cape Town, who run a leather manufacturing 

business, Chad and Erin-Lee Petersen.

 

Notwithstanding the challenges that continue to face young people and what may seem like growing pains, 

a lot of progress has been made. And of-course more remains to be done. If South Africa is to succeed in 

addressing the triple challenge, of poverty, unemployment and inequality among young people, it is these 

Message from the Honourable 
Deputy Minister
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stories and more that must form part of our new narrative. Young people must understand and appreciate 

that South Africa is alive with possibilities, but that it is in their hands to make the most of these.

This year saw the conclusion of the review of the National Youth Policy 2020 following widespread 

consultations with young people across the length and breadth of our country. The extensive consultation 

was such that the final product reflects the views and aspirations of the youth of our country. The policy seeks 

to address the main areas that must constitute the youth development agenda; economic participation and 

transformation; education, skills development and second chances; health including reproductive health 

care and anti-substance abuse; nation building and optimizing the youth development machinery. 

Using lessons learnt from the previous Policy, the National Youth Policy 2020 seeks to create an environment 

that enables youth to unleash their potential by identifying those mechanism that will make this possible. 

Mindful of the global economic challenges that impacted on South Africa, the Youth Policy identifies 

interventions which are more likely to unlock critical blockages which will act as catalyst in unearthing youth 

potential. The Policy takes cue from the South African Constitution, the United Nations World Programme 

of Action for Youth, the Africa Youth Charter and the National Development Plan. 

The National Youth Policy recognizes that young people are not passive, but are champions of their own 

development as active members of society. It is therefore our responsibility as government and partners to 

continue creating an enabling environment for young people to thrive. 

To this end, I wish to congratulate the National Youth Development Agency (NYDA) Board of Directors, 

the Chief Executive Officer, Senior Executives and members of staff for the great achievements of attaining 

a clean audit report from the Auditor General of South Africa. This is indeed a great achievement and a 

demonstration of the Agency’s commitment to good governance. 

Mr Buti Manamela, MP
Deputy Minister in The Presidency: Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation
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Mr Yershen Pillay
Executive Chairperson
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During the 2014/2015 financial year the NYDA achieved its first ever clean audit report. This was part of a 

commitment made by the NYDA’s Board of Directors, upon appointment in 2013, to clean up the Agency’s 

governance and financial management practices. This holistic organisational clampdown has not been 

achieved by any easy feat but only through consistent dedication and hard work. This new positive trajectory 

of the NYDA, has seen the empowerment of more youth than ever before by successfully delivering life-

changing products, services and programmes to individuals and communities across the country. 

Karabo Robaya woke up one morning in 2013 and began getting dressed as he did every other day until 

he heard an interview about the NYDA on Talk Radio 702. Karabo who was 22 years old at the time had just 

completed a National Diploma in Accounting at the University of Johannesburg after which he was invited 

by Alabama State University as a Transfer Undergraduate Student to earn a USA BSc Accounting degree, 

referred to as honours in South Africa. However, Karabo’s dream of studying abroad seemed beyond reach 

as he needed additional funding to cover his boarding costs during his stay in the USA which is when he 

applied for funding through the NYDA Thusano Fund. A year and a half later and Karabo has returned from 

the USA after having graduated summa cum laude or with the highest distinction. He is working as a full-

time Trainee Financial Manager at Barloworld Motor Retail to save money to return to the USA and study 

at Bentley, Yale or Stanford University for an MBA degree. His whole outlook on the world has changed 

and he is hungry to action real transformation in South Africa.  Karabo’s story is but one example amongst 

a multitude of others of the NYDA’s achievement since 2013 which translates beyond numbers and targets 

into real-life success stories.

The NYDA continues to play a coordinating role in ensuring that all key stakeholders in government, civil 

society and the private sector prioritise and implement youth development programmes with young people 

at the fore of their own development. During the year under review, over 913 young individuals like Karabo, 

were supported through the NYDA’s Thusano Fund with funding to settle outstanding university fees or 

finance to register at an institution of higher learning from an overall budget of R2 500 000. A profound 

achievement of the Agency is the 1 252 959 young people who received information on opportunities 

provided by government through NYDA access points as access to information remains a fundamental 

challenge faced by youth. Through strategic partnerships with key private sector stakeholders, a total of  

62 916 aspiring and established young entrepreneurs were supported through the NYDA Business 

Development Support programme, an overachievement of the initial target. A sum of 1 034 youth-owned 

enterprises received NYDA grant funding and 300 students were able to register at institutions of higher 

learning after qualifying for the prestigious Solomon Mahlangu Scholarship Programme. An extraordinary 

sum of 937 949 young people were provided with individual and group career guidance and 12 490 young 

people played their part in various National Youth Service (NYS) volunteer programmes. Additionally, 

stakeholders such as the Department of Human Settlements and the Expanded Public Works Programme 

(EPWP) contributed significantly to the delivery of infrastructure projects with 2 342 young people participating 

in structured YouthBuild programmes across the country. 

Today many youth find themselves in abject poverty associated with weak endowments of human, capital 

and financial resources such as low levels of education, few marketable skills, low productivity and generally 

Message from the Chairperson
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poor health. Many young people are trapped into a culture of entitlement and dependency turning to 

alcohol and drugs or a life of crime as an easy way out. On the other extreme are those who are at forefront 

of transformation taking the opportunities that come with freedom and democracy. These are young people 

taking ownership of their own personal development and breaking free from poverty through their own 

leadership and will-power supported in many instances by state institutions such as the National Youth 

Development Agency.

Sincere gratitude is owed to the NYDA’s Board of Directors, Executive Management team and the staff 

incumbent of the NYDA at head office and in all branches and 178 local youth offices around the country 

who have passionately and diligently delivered meaningful interventions to the youth of South Africa despite 

grave adversity in a context of resource limitations in the country. 

The sterling guidance and leadership of the Minister and Deputy Minister of Planning, Monitoring and 

Evaluation in the Presidency, Minister Jeff Radebe and Deputy Minister Buti Manamela, mandated to lead 

youth development nationally, cannot be sufficiently expressed. Through their continuous role in lobbying 

and advocating for the integration and mainstreaming of youth development in all spheres of government, 

private sector and civil society, countless opportunities to serve the youth of South Africa have been 

successfully delivered. 

The NYDA continues on a positive trajectory and will carry on transforming the lives of young South Africans 

one individual at a time. However, we call on all youth to take ownership of their own development and in 

so doing prioritize service to their communities and take collective responsibility for the challenges that lie 

ahead.

Mr Yershen Pillay
Executive Chairperson
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Chairperson proudly awarding NYDA 

beneficiaries of Solomon Mahlangu 
Scholarship Fund from Sol Plaatjie 

University

NYDA PYU Summit , Birchwood Hotel,

13 - 16 November 2014
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Mr Khathutshelo Ramukumba
Chief Executive Officer
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Chief Executive Officer’s Remarks 
As we reach a critical juncture in the post democracy period of South Africa the plight of our young people 

is one of the biggest challenges facing the country and the world at large. Young people are so often 

overlooked in terms of their opinions, their skills and their contribution to society for the sole fact that they 

are young and considered inexperienced and they therefore face the brunt of exclusion from the economy.

The NYDA is the only institution solely dedicated to youth development of its kind in South Africa and 

takes the plight of young people to heart and is committed to the addressing the enormous multi-pronged 

challenges of young people and implementing the visions and strategies that young people see for 

themselves. The NYDA takes the inputs and opinions of young people very seriously and were pleased to 

hear that the majority of the National Youth Policy had the input from young people themselves. A policy for 

young people, by young people.

 

If we reflect on the year that has been the Agency has achieved 93% of its Key Performance Indicators 

(KPI’s) for the financial year under review. This is an increase of 7% on the prior year achievement of 86%.  I 

am particularly pleased by this performance given that it is the highest performance that the Agency has 

ever attained in its entire existence.  I would like to highlight further the achievement of 100% of all Key 

Performance Indicators relating to Economic Participation, Education and Skills Development and Health 

and Wellbeing, all the critical areas facing young people in our current environment. Highlights in these 

areas include:

• The support of 1034 business through the NYDA grant programme with more than R29 million 

pledged and disbursed to these businesses which has resulted in job creation of more than 4000 

jobs.

• The over 60 000 young established and aspiring entrepreneurs supported through various NYDA 

entrepreneurship programmes.

• The 5000 young people who will have a second chance at matric and a second chance at life through 

the matric rewrite programme

• The over 2000 young people who were provided with skills development training through the 

Youthbuild programme and will contribute to the critical shortage of artisans in South Africa while 

also having exited a programme where they understand the need for volunteer work and contribution 

to society.

• 937 000 young people who have been guided in their career choices, 34 000 young people provided 

with job preparedness training and 23 000 young people given life skills training. 

In the area of governance we were unable to achieve two targets related to IT governance which was 94% 

achieved at year end while the compliance to good governance and policies and legislation fell 1% short of 

its target. I am however happy to report on the 72 new access points established and operationalised as well 

as the 100% review of guidelines and policies that will lead to increased efficiencies.

 

In the area of Research and Policy we have achieved all targets.  
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There has also been over 1.2 million young people provided with information from NYDA access points to 

further their ambitions against a set target of 770 000.

I am particularly satisfied with the operationalisation of the NYDA-University of Johannesburg Youth 

Development Institute, the first of its kind and which will unlock streams of value for future youth development 

as well as the seven new projects or programmes designed and piloted by the NYDA. 

I must however stress the point that only when there is a continued and concerted collective effort from 

private sector, public sector and civil society to change the lives of young people, only then can we see real 

change in the future of our country. I urge every individual and organisation to play their part in contributing 

to the vulnerable youth of South Africa. Investing in the future of our young people will without doubt 

provide enormous returns for us as a nation. 

Thank you to the Executive Authority for their continued support and to the Board who joined the Agency 

almost 3 years ago with a renewed sense of purpose with a key objective of ensuring that the NYDA 

embarked on a different and upward trajectory.  This visionary leadership resulted in a new vision, mission 

and innovative flagship programmes.  To the stakeholders who have come on board to support youth 

development and to the employees of the organisation, youth development workers on the ground at the 

coal face of service delivery who keep this organisation vibrant and ticking – much gratitude.

My team of exceptional Executive Managers who operationalized the Board’s vision by developing and 

implementing a turn-around strategy of moving the Agency from good to great. It is this very team that I 

would like to thank for their collective effort in assisting me to lay the foundation for a stable and

performing agency and in so doing, we have set the tone for an organisation underpinned on the principles 

of good governance and compliance to the laws, regulations and internal policies.  Their commitment, 

loyalty and hard work to the youth of this country is deeply appreciated. 

Khathutshelo Ramukumba
Chief Executive Officer
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Strategic Overview, Legislative 
and Other Mandates
Strategic Overview
The National Youth Development Agency (NYDA) was established by an Act of Parliament, the NYDA Act, 

2008 (Act 54 of 2008). This Act mandates the NYDA to develop an IYDS for South Africa and initiate, design, 

coordinate, evaluate and monitor all programmes that aim to integrate the youth into the economy and 

society, in general. The Act instructs the Agency to promote a uniform approach to youth development by 

all organs of state, the private sector and NGOs.

According to Statistics South Africa (2014), young people constitute 37 percent of the country’s population. 

This presents a powerful resource for the country, provided the youth are supported and able to become 

active members of society. The National Development Plan (NDP) states the following: “Having a relatively 

young population can be advantageous, provided the majority of working-age individuals are gainfully 

employed … The challenge is to convert this into a demographic dividend. This will only be possible if the 

number of working-age individuals can be employed in productive activities.” (2012:98). Yet, social norms 

continue to sideline young South Africans, treating political and economic participation as the prerogative 

of older people, which is why there is a continued need for policies and implementation frameworks that are 

deliberately aimed at youth concerns.

Given the youthful nature of the South African population, many of the socio-economic challenges faced 

by the nation, for example, poverty, inequality, joblessness and poor health, are borne by the youth. The 

gravity of the challenges requires multi-pronged efforts that simultaneously promote the development of 

sustainable livelihoods; reduce poverty and inequality; and prioritise the formulation of policies which create 

an enabling environment for youth development.

The NYDA plays a leading role in ensuring that all major stakeholders, i.e. government, the private sector 

and civil society, prioritise youth development and contribute towards identifying and implementing lasting 

solutions which address youth development challenges.

The NYDA smartly continues with its business of implementing youth development programmes directly. 

The focus of the NYDA’s business will still be informed by imperatives of youth development as contained 

in the NYP, 2015–2020, which are:

• Economic participation and transformation: We respond to challenges of youth unemployment and 

low total entrepreneurship activity among youth.

• Education, skills and second chances: The NDP outlines South Africa’s education vision of ensuring 

that, by 2030, South Africans have access to education and training of the highest quality possible, 

producing significantly improved learning outcomes.

• Healthcare and combating substance abuse: To ensure universal access to quality healthcare, 

government will establish a publicly funded and administered National Health Insurance (NHI) fund 

to drive the roll-out of the NHI programme. The country’s NHI funding model will give effect to the 

three key principles of the NHI: universal provision of quality healthcare, social solidarity through 
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cross-subsidisation and equity.

• Nation-building and social cohesion: The NYDA should ensure that the National Youth Service 

(NYS) is implemented across race and class. The NYS aims to reconstruct South African society by 

developing the abilities of young people through service and learning. The NYS builds character 

and enables young people to give back to society. In addition, it addresses past racial segregation 

by enabling young people to share common space in such a way that they recognise a common 

humanity in each other.

NYDA programmes will remain concentrated on the following categories of youth, when providing its limited 

products and services:

• Unemployed youth

• Young women

• Youth in rural areas

• Youth living with disabilities

• School-aged, out-of-school youth

• Youth at risk

• Youth heading households

• Youth in conflict with the law

• Youth abusing dependence-inducing, narcotic-based substances, including alcohol.

Legislative and Other Mandates

NYDA Act 54 of 2008
The NYDA derives its mandate from the NYDA Act, 2008 (Act 54 of 2008). The Act provides primarily for the 

NYDA as a unitary structure, responsible for implementation of youth development programmes, including 

the mainstreaming of youth development activities by all stakeholders. The Act further mandates the 

Agency to develop an IYDS and youth development guidelines aimed at establishing parameters for youth 

development activities in the country.

National Youth Policy 2015-2020
The NYP for 2015–2020 (NYP 2020) was developed for all young people in South Africa, with a focus on 

redressing the wrongs of the past and addressing the specific challenges and immediate needs of the 

country’s youth. The NYP 2020 builds on South Africa’s first NYP, which covered the period 2009–2014. 

It improves upon and updates the previous policy by speaking to the new challenges that South Africa’s 

youth are facing, while acknowledging that more should be done to address the challenges identified in the 

previous NYP. The NYP 2020 seeks to create an environment that enables the young people of South Africa 

to reach their potential.

Mindful of the global economic challenges that affect South Africa, the policies identify the mechanisms and 

interventions that will act as catalysts to help clear critical blockages and achieve this positive environment. 

The policy imperatives which have been identified as necessary for ensuring the development of young 

people in the context of South Africa include: a) economic participation and transformation; b) education, 
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skills and second chances; c) healthcare and combating substance abuse; d) nation-building and social 

cohesion; and e) building effective and responsive youth development institutions for civic participation. 

The NYP further provides parameters for the youth cohort as being ages 14–35.

South Africa’s New Growth Path
The three focus areas of the New Growth Path that are directly related to the economic participation thematic 

area are Stepping Up Education and Skills Development, Enterprise Development and Broad-Based Black 

Economic Empowerment.

National Development Plan
The National Planning Commission of South Africa was established to develop a national plan to propel 

South Africa to a better society by 2030. The plan sets out an approach focusing on developing people’s 

capabilities to improve their lives through education, skills development, healthcare, access to better 

healthcare, access to public transport, social protection, rising income, housing and basic services, and safe 

communities.

Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act 1 of 1999)
The PFMA regulates the management of finances in national and provincial government. It sets out the 

procedures for efficient and effective management of all revenue, expenditure, assets and liabilities. It 

establishes the duties and responsibilities of government officials in charge of finances. The Act aims to 

secure transparency, accountability and sound financial management in government and public institutions.

National Small Business Amendment Act, 2004 (No 29 of 2004)
According to the National Credit Regulator (NCR), it is estimated that SMEs employ 22% of the adult 

population in developing countries. The United Nations Industrial Development Organisation (UNIDO) 

estimates that SMEs represent over 90% of private business and contribute to more than 50% of employment 

and gross domestic product (GDP) in most African countries (UNIDO, 1999). A recent study conducted by 

Abor and Quartey (2010) estimates that 91% of formal business entities in South Africa are SMEs, and that 

these SMEs contribute 52% to 57% to GDP and provide about 61% to employment.

The African Youth Charter
The African Youth Charter (AYC), which was endorsed in July 2006, is a framework which defines Africa’s 

youth agenda. It is a political and legal document which serves as the strategic framework for giving 

direction for youth empowerment and development at a continental, regional and national level. The AYC 

aims to strengthen, reinforce and consolidate efforts to empower young people through meaningful youth 

participation and equal partnership in driving Africa’s development agenda. The charter is guided by the 

vision, hopes and aspirations of the African Union, inclusive of Africa’s integration, and the inherent dignity 

and inalienable rights afforded to all members of the human family, as set out in the United Nations Universal 

Declaration of Human Rights (1948), the International Covenant of Civil and Political Rights (1976), and 

the International Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights (1976), and articulated for the African 

peoples through the African Charter on Human and People’s Rights (1986).
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Operating Structure
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FULL SERVICE 
BRANCH

JOHANNESBURG
HLENGIWE CELE

SECUNDA
JACKIE SINDANE

TSHWANE
MOTLALEPULA MONJA

WITBANK
JABULILE MKHWANAZI

RUSTENBURG
MICHAEL PHOKELA

MAPONYA MALL
TSHEPO MANYAMA

EAST LONDON
DUMA MAQUBELA

POLOKWANE
PERCY MADZIWO

NELSPRUIT
APRIL MOTLOUNG

DURBAN
SABELO NTULI

PORT ELIZABETH
VUSUMZI MAKINANA

BLOEMFONTEIN
KAGISHO MOKAE

CAPE TOWN
STEPHEN CURRY

KIMBERLEY
LEBOGANG MOREMEDI (OLYN)

Operating Structure (cont.)
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The Agency’s Journey:  
Where To From Here? 

As we have entered a new financial year and as we continuously strive To Be a Credible & Capable Agency 
for South Africa’s Youth, the next part of the journey focusses on how we must take the Agency to the next 

level of being more effective and efficient.  As such, we have started a process of strategically repositioning 

the Agency in becoming a recognised and acknowledged institution that focusses on youth needs and 

aspirations in enhancing, amongst others, the following: 

• Education of our youth; 

• Promoting skills development in enhancing SMMEs, co-operatives and job creation and; 

• Economic prosperity and growth aligned to the National Development Plan and principles of a 

Developmental State. 

This has informed our four key strategic pillars: 

1. Enhancing Credibility: 
We need to ensure that we improve on our turnaround times; that we are transparent in our operations and 

reporting; and engage our stakeholders;

 

2. Building Capability: 
We need to ensure that we: 

• Monitor performance;

Executive Management Team
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• Effectively manage our budget;

• Develop our staff members as valued assets of the Agency; 

• Have world class policies, procedures and systems which will enable efficient, effective, impactful and 

measurable service delivery aligned to the NYDA mandate.

 

3. Developing Efficiency to ensure that we: 
• Have an aligned organisational structure; 

• Maximise employee performance;

• Improve efficiencies by adequately measuring performance; 

• Create a values driven culture that is conducive and vibrant and truly resembles a National Youth 

Development Agency. 

Some of the benefits of this organisational realignment journey which is more inward focused includes but 

is not limited to:    

• A streamlined organisation that will be responsive, efficient, capable and credible; 

• The opportunity for staff to be reskilled and developed, if required; 

• For staff to be able to fully utilise their talents and maximise their performance; 

• Managing the high salary bill so that the NYDA is able to focus on its key delivery priorities and;

• An improved culture that drives high performance and enhances living its values. 

In embarking on this organisational realignment, change management and culture change project, it has 

resulted in a number of Executive Managers opting to pursue opportunities outside of the NYDA. I would 

like to take this opportunity to bid the respective Executive Management farewell and thank them for their 

commitment and loyalty in taking the organisation to these positive levels which will forever be written in 

the history books of the Agency.

The NYDA indeed is an organisation reborn and founded on striving to be a capable and credible Agency 

for South Africa’s youth being restructured and streamlined to deliver services and inspired to implement 

the National Youth Policy, Youth Employment Plan and Integrated Youth Development Strategy. 

The next stage focusses on successfully growing from strength to strength. Youth Development! Aluta 

Continua!

Khathutshelo Ramukumba
Chief Executive Officer
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Khathutshelo Ramukumba
Chief Executive Officer
Mr Khathu Ramukumba obtained his BCom in Financial Accounting from the 

University of Pretoria in 2002, and a BCom Hons (Financial Accounting) with 

CTA (Certificate of Theory in Accounting) from the University of KwaZulu-

Natal in 2006. In 2009, he completed the Public Practice Examination (Second 

Board Examination with Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors) and 

was admitted as a CA (SA) by SAICA in 2010.

Mr Ramukumba’s career commenced at the Auditor General, where he 

worked from 2003 to 2006 and did his articles in Chartered Accountancy. 

On completion of his articles, he joined the Rand Water Group as a Senior 

Internal Auditor for one year, after which he was promoted to Audit Manager. 

The following year, Mr Ramukumba was promoted to Group Audit Manager 

and worked in this position until June 2011. His career highlights include 

being involved in two ministerial directive projects on turnaround strategy 

and support for Botshelo Water, in 2009, and Bushbuckridge Water, in 

2010/2011. He joined the NYDA as the Chief Financial Officer in May 2011. 

Mr Ramukumba was appointed to the position of Chief Executive Officer of 

the NYDA in June 2014, after having acted in this position for four months.

Mr Ramukumba also serves as the Chairperson of the Audit Committee 

for the Sekhukhune District Municipality. This appointment was effective 

from 1 April 2014 and is scheduled to run until 31 March 2017. He has 

also represented the Auditor General in Audit Steering Committees for 

the following clients: The Public Protector; Department of Justice and 

Constitutional Development; and the National Prosecuting Authority. He 

is passionate about youth development and, as a result, has served and 

continues to serve in various leadership positions in youth organisations 

focusing on issues of young people across the board, including Chairperson 

of Youth against Crime at Vhumbedzi District in Vhembe Region, in Limpopo, 

from 2002–2003.

Operations Executive Committee
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Waseem Carrim
Chief Financial Officer
Mr Carrim attended the University of Pretoria and received his BCom Honours 

degree in Accounting Sciences in 2009. He began his career at the same 

university, spending one year as an academic article trainee lecturing first to 

third-year students in Accounting. He completed his article traineeship with 

KPMG and was admitted as a member of SAICA in 2013.

He then joined KPMG’s Department of Professional Practice, where he 

served as a specialist in public sector accounting and assurance matters, 

and served on committees and initiatives related to the public sector. He 

also served on committees relating to social integration, as well as driving 

transformation initiatives of the Chartered Accounting profession. He held 

a portfolio of audit clients which he managed within the public sector 

space, one of which was the NYDA. Waseem has completed his masters 

in taxation with specialisation in environmental taxes. He was Acting Chief 

Financial Officer of the NYDA on a secondment basis from March 2014 to  

1 October 2014, when he was appointed to the position on a permanent 

basis.

Daniel van Vuuren
Executive Manager: Service Delivery Channel
 Mr van Vuuren, A law graduate from the University of the Free State, he 

started his career by serving articles of clerkship with Rossouws Attorneys. 

He subsequently joined the office of The Presidency, where he was one of 

the architects of both the legislative environment and policy framework 

governing youth matters. While at The Presidency, he was a national youth 

commissioner, responsible for youth policy development, legislative review 

and inter-governmental coordination, particularly within the Justice, Crime 

Prevention and Security cluster. Mr van Vuuren has also worked in Europe 

and the Middle East in various advisory roles to foreign governments, and 

public institutions. During his tenure in The Presidency, he represented the 

South African government in different bi-national and multinational fora and 

addressed diverse international conferences on invitation.



31

Derek Smith
Chief Information Officer: Information Communications Technology
Mr Smith joined the Umsobomvu Youth Fund in 2002, and has been with the 

NYDA since its establishment as the result of the merger between the UYF 

and NYC. He completed his high school education at the Eldorado Park 

Senior Secondary School in Gauteng before studying in the United States 

towards a degree in Development Economics. He returned to South Africa 

in 1993, and has since worked in the youth development sector in various 

institutions and capacities. He has 20 years’ experience in the design, 

management and implementation of national, provincial and local youth 

development programmes, and in the use of information and communication 

technologies (ICT) in the development sector. Mr Smith moved to the ICT 

division when the NYDA was formed and has worked in a management role 

supporting the organisation’s IT applications and IT infrastructure.

Juliet Tshoke
Executive Manager: Corporate Services
Ms Tshoke has a Higher Diploma in Education, majoring in Psychology, 

African History and Education from the University of Western Cape, and a 

Diploma in Human Resources from Allenby. As part of her career inspiration, 

she has also enrolled for the Transnet Management Diploma programme, 

which is a postgraduate diploma offered by Wits Business School.

Ms Tshoke’s career was moulded by the banking industry at Nedcor Bank. 

It was in this space where she developed an interest in transformation 

projects and succeeded in positioning herself in the bank. She also worked 

at Transnet in the HR space and provided an HR key account management 

service to the National Ports Property, and Infrastructure departments. At 

the time, when Transnet adopted the turnaround strategy, Juliet was in the 

forefront of introducing and implementing the talent management strategy 

as the Group Talent Manager. This was qualified by external audits as the 

most successful project at the time.

She also had an opportunity to join Rand Water and introduced the PMO 

concept, and leadership development, capacity-building and talent 

management strategies to enable the roll-out of the organisation’s five-year 

strategy and plan. After that, she took the opportunity to consult at Ernest 

and Young and was posted to SARS for a year, working on reviewing job 

profile and career management system content as a result of modernisation.

With her appetite for modernisation programmes and transformation, Juliet 

then worked for PRASA as the Head of the Centre of Technology for Gauteng, 

which focused on repositioning the institution through a value proposition 

that would enable a modernisation programme and build a school aimed at 

building artisan programmes. Juliet is a seasoned HR practitioner and her 

passion resides in people development and empowerment.
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Linda Dlova
Executive Manager: Communications
Mrs Dlova acquired her knowledge and experience in the field of 

corporate communications over a career that spans 18 years, of which 12 

years were spent at Eskom. She joined the State-Owned Enterprise (SOE) 

as an experiential learner and worked her way up through the ranks to 

Communications & Stakeholder Manager. She also held the position of 

Communications Manager at Nedbank’s head office.

She joined the NYDA in July 2011 in her capacity as Executive Manager: 

Communications. Her overall role is that of reputation custodian focusing on 

strategically positioning the NYDA positively in the minds of its stakeholders. 

This entails building and maintaining relationships with various stakeholders. 

This is driven by initiating dialogue, through optimised communication 

platforms for influencing interested and affected parties’ opinions and 

perceptions, to solicit support on the NYDA’s strategic objectives. All 

communications, marketing and branding strategies, therefore, form part 

of Mrs Dlova’s portfolio Linda has a National Diploma in Public Relations 

Management, from Natal Technikon, a B-Tech and Mtech Degrees in 

Public Relations Management from Cape Technikon, now part of the Cape 

University of Technology. Linda is a member of the Public Relations Institute 

of South Africa (PRISA).

Luvuyo Matibane
Executive Manager: Research and Policy
Mr Matibane is responsible for providing leadership in the policy and 

research cluster. The policy and research development programmes of the 

NYDA are aimed at developing a body of knowledge and best practice in 

the youth development space to inform and influence policy development, 

planning and implementation.

He has vast experience in development programmes and projects that have 

been implemented by government, in partnership with civil society and the 

private sector. Most of these programmes and projects have been in the 

areas of development finance, community development research and policy 

development. Mr Matibane has held management positions in various 

private and public sector organisations, such as Project Manager at ASLA 

Construction, the Diagnostic Surveys Directorate of the Department of the 

Premier in the Western Cape, and the National Department of Public Works, 

where he was responsible for the Expanded Public Works Programme 

(EPWP) Enterprise Development for the Western Cape Province. He has also 

worked for the National Student Financial Aid Scheme as Senior Manager: 

Policy and Research.
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He has obtained formal qualifications in Development and Environmental 

Management, Public Policy Analysis, and Public and Development 

Management from the University of Stellenbosch. He also obtained his 

masters in Public and Development Management, Integrated Public 

Policy Analysis and Management from the School of Public Leadership, 

University of Stellenbosch, where he focused on the improvement of service 

delivery through partnerships between government, civil society and the 

private sector. During his studies at the University of Stellenbosch, Luvuyo 

participated in a number of international academic programmes in countries 

such as Germany, Czech Republic, Poland and Hungary. Luvuyo is currently 

a PhD candidate in Development Finance at the University of Stellenbosch 

Business School.

Mzwabantu Ntlangeni
Executive Manager: Corporate Partnerships
Mr Ntlangeni holds a BCom from Rhodes University. He started his career 

as a small business development trainer with the President’s Award Youth 

Empowerment programme, an affiliate of the Duke of Edinburgh Award, 

United Kingdom. He quickly moved up the ranks of the award programme 

and was ultimately appointed as Managing Director in 1996. In 1997, he 

joined the Transitional National Development Trust, an interim development 

financing agency established by the South African Government to support 

the non-governmental organisations and institutions experiencing the 

funding crisis of the mid-1990s.

When the Transitional National Development Trust was transformed into 

the National Development Agency (NDA) in 1999, Mr Ntlangeni occupied 

the position of Acting General Manager and was responsible for overseeing 

the transitional process. After the transitional process, he was retained by 

the NDA as Programmes Manager responsible for, among others, grant-

making, compliance monitoring and evaluation, and reporting.

In 2002, he joined Umsobomvu Youth Fund as Manager: Process Cycle 

Management. Among his main achievements at Umsobomvu Youth Fund 

was overseeing the issue and implementation of the first-ever Request for 

Proposal of the Fund, valued at R150 million. He oversaw the process of 

developing the operational processes and procedures of the Fund, which 

culminated in ISO 2000 Certification in 2007.

At the NYDA, Mr Ntlangeni is the Acting Executive Manager: Corporate 

Partnerships. His main role is to develop and manage partnerships for the 

Agency with private, government and civil society institutions, including 

international partners. Mzwabantu was instrumental in the negotiation of the 

partnership between the NYDA, the Industrial Development Corporation 

(IDC) and Small Enterprise Finance Agency (SEFA).
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Nthuseng Mphahlele
Executive Manager: Skills Development and National Youth Service
Nthuseng Mphahlele holds an MSc in Development Planning from the 

University of the Witwatersrand and a BA in Economics from the National 

University of Lesotho. She has more than 14 years’ experience in the 

development sector, having worked in both the public and civil society 

sectors, specifically in youth development, housing and infrastructure, 

local government, environment, gender and poverty. Her previous notable 

achievements include being a member of the Task Team responsible for 

developing poverty alleviation strategies for the Lesotho government.

At the Urban Sector Network, she was involved in the development of 

guidelines for the implementation of the National People Housing Process. 

She was part of the research team that investigated and compiled a report 

to the Municipal Demarcation Board on configuration of metropolitan 

municipalities. Between 2005 and 2011, she was responsible for overseeing 

the work of the NYS Unit in the social, environment and infrastructure 

sectors. She has a strong interest in gender and poverty issues and strongly 

advocates the participation of women and youth in the Built Environment.

She represented the youth sector in the EPWP Infrastructure Cluster and 

successfully conceptualised the NYS Building Maintenance Programme - a 

model that is now being implemented nationally.

In her current position at the NYDA, Ms Mphahlele has been mandated to 

oversee the implementation of the NYS and skills development programmes, 

facilitating the mainstreaming of youth development across government, 

and fostering partnerships with civil society and the private sector to increase 

development opportunities for young people.

Sanjay Hargovan
Executive Manager: Economic Development(Acting)
Sanjay Hargovan is the NYDA’s Risk Manager. Prior to that he had been with 

UYF since 2001 which he joined as the Finance Manager. He was promoted 

to Senior finance manager and then appointed as the Risk manager in 

2005. He completed his B.Com Accounting and a Postgraduate Diploma 

in Management Accounting at the University of Natal. He is currently 

studying “Programme in Risk Management” at UNISA’s Centre for Business 

Management. He has 10 years experience in the accounting profession, which 

has given him insight into entering the field on Enterprise Risk management. 

He has 8 years experience in the public sector, specifically public entities. 

Prior to joining UYF he served with the United Pharmaceutical Distributors 

and the National Lotteries Board.
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Overview of The Public Entity’s 
Performance
Statement of Responsibility for Performance Information for the year ended 
31 March 2015

The Accounting Authority is responsible for the preparation of the organisation’s performance information 

and for the judgments made in this information. The Accounting Authority is responsible for establishing 

and implementing a system of internal control, designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 

integrity and reliability of performance information. In our opinion, the performance information fairly 

reflects the performance information of the organisation for the financial year ended 31 March 2015.

1. Overview of the public entity’s performance

1.1 Service delivery environment
The NYDA derives its mandate from the legislative frameworks, including the NYDA Act, 2008 (Act 54 of 

2008), the NYP (2009–2014) and the draft IYDS, as adopted by the Youth Convention of 2006. The institution 

was established as a single, unitary structure, established to address youth development issues at national, 

provincial and local government level. In furtherance of the NYDA mandate, as outlined in the NYDA Act, 

2008 (Act 54 of 2008), the NYDA activities could be summarised as follows:

• Lobbying and advocating for integration and mainstreaming of youth development in all spheres of 

government, the private sector and civil society

• Initiating, implementing, facilitating and coordinating youth development programmes

• Monitoring and evaluating youth development interventions across the board, and mobilising youth 

for active participation in civil society engagements.

The NYDA faces key challenges of meeting the expectations of youth, addressing all the challenges that 

young people face on a daily basis. This requires continued innovation in developing products and services 

responsive to the challenges of the youth.
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During the year under review, a total of 1 034 youth-owned enterprises or youth received NYDA grant 
funding. A total of 532 enterprises were supported. Of the supported youth-owned enterprises, 87 are youth-owned 

co-operatives. A total of 502 individual youth were supported. The 106,8% overachievement was due to the approach 

used in graduating the businesses by introducing three thresholds of: R1 000 to R10 000; R10 001 to R50 000; and  

R50 001 to R100 000. The total number of grants equal to or less than the first threshold of R10 000, is 514 (which 

accounts for 49,7% of the achievement).

A total of 62  916 aspiring and established young entrepreneurs were supported through NYDA 
Business Development Support services. The relationship with Primestars led to achieving and exceeding 

the annual target, as it contributed significantly to delivering the Entrepreneurship Development Programme 

(EDP), which accounts for 65,1% of the annual performance.

A total of 4 343 jobs were created and sustained through grant funding, co-operatives and business 
development services. The grants disbursed to private-owned companies/close corporations/individuals 

account for 1 078 of the annual attainment, while the jobs sustained through the voucher programme 

account for 1 181 of the annual target.

A total of 5 319 young people were enrolled in the NYDA Matric (Grade 12) Rewrite programme. The 

contribution by ETDP SETA to the value of R3.6m assisted greatly to ensure that the target was achieved 

and exceeded. During the period under review, a total of 300 youth were supported through the Solomon 

Mahlangu Scholarship programme. A total of 937 949 young people were supported through individual and 

group career guidance. The overwhelming majority of young people received support through outreach 

events, which account for 97,2% of the performance.

A total of 2 342 young people participated in structured YouthBuild programmes during the year 
under review. Stakeholders such as the Department of Human Settlements and EPWP contributed 

significantly, as they committed towards providing skills and practical experience to youth while delivering 

infrastructure projects. During the year under review, a total of 12 490 young people were enrolled in NYS 

volunteer programmes. The partnership with the President’s Award for Youth Development Trust largely 

contributed towards the successful implementation. The number of young people supported through the 

job-preparedness and life skills programmes is 57 412. This attainment was influenced by the deployment 

of 40 young people who participated in the SA-Namibia Youth Exchange Programme, as they increased the 

capacity of the NYDA branches.

A total of 1 252 959 young people received information on youth development through NYDA access 
points during the period under review. This significant contribution was due to outreach events, which 

account for 83,7% of performance. Seventy-two access points were established and 26 operationalised, 

totalling 98 access points.

1.2 Organisational environment
The NYDA is a South African-based agency established primarily to address challenges faced by the nation’s 

youth. The Agency was established by an Act of Parliament (Act 54 of 2008). The institution was established 

to be a single, unitary structure addressing youth development issues at national, provincial and local 

government level. The Agency should be seen within the broad context of South Africa’s development 

dynamics.
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Similar to many developing countries, South Africa has a large population of youth between the ages 14–35, 

representing 42% of the total population. Given the youthful nature of the South African population, many 

of the socio-economic challenges faced by the nation, for example, poverty, inequality, joblessness and 

poor health, are borne by the youth. The gravity of the challenges faced by South Africa requires multi-

pronged efforts that simultaneously promote the development of sustainable livelihoods; reduce poverty 

and inequality; and prioritise the formulation of policies which create an enabling environment for youth 

development.

The NYDA plays a leading role in ensuring that all major stakeholders, i.e. government, the private sector 

and civil society, prioritise youth development and contribute towards identifying and implementing lasting 

solutions which address youth development challenges.

The NYDA faces challenges of meeting the expectations of youth, addressing all the challenges that young 

people face on a daily basis. This requires continued innovation in developing products and services 

responsive to the challenges of the youth.

The NYDA commenced the Organisational Realignment and Change Management project during the year 

under review by partnering with PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) to deliver the project. This is part of a 

roadmap to building an organisation that is capable and credible. The understanding will be sought and the 

linking of the following strategic imperatives will be made:

• NYDA mandate aligned to the Act

• Strategic five-year plan

• Turnaround strategy

• NYDA’s repositioning agenda

• The Agency’s budgetary constraints.

The issues that inform the project objectives are as follows.

• Achieving four strategic pillars of the turnaround strategy:

• Enhancing credibility

• Building capability

• Developing efficiency

• Enhancing impact

• The Agency’s strategic shift:

• Loan financing to grant financing

• Increased focus on education and skills development

• Youth Development Institute

• Intensifying jobs placements

• Implementation to youth development facilitation

• Eradicating organisational legacy issues, such as the UYF and NYC merger that was not effectively 

executed, and aligning cultures and values.

The high-level deliverables of the project are:

• Developing an efficient organisational structure that will be aligned to the NYDA’s mandate, vision, 

strategic objectives and the operational turnaround strategy.

• Conducting a robust job-profiling exercise to ensure that jobs are correctly scoped and defined, in 

terms of the expectations of each job
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• Evaluating jobs, so that salaries are fair, equitable and benchmarked, given the budgetary realities

• Designing a performance management framework that will continuously improve service delivery 

efficiencies

• Developing an HR plan that has clear touch points to the HR value chain, so that human capability is 

enhanced and optimally utilised

• Entrenching NYDA values aligned to correct behaviour, and linked to daily culture and ways of 

working. Ensure that change is managed, in order to ensure that the transition occurs in a smooth 

and transparent manner.

The project was divided into five phases, namely Assessment, Design, Construct, Implementation, Review 

and Reporting. It ran from 17 November 2014, with a view to completing it during the next financial year. The 

details under each phase are as follows:

Assessment Phase
• Kick-off communications

• Change Champion nomination

• Change-readiness survey

• As Is organisational structure, job profiles and skills

Design Phase
• Macro and micro-organisational structure development

• FTE analysis and structure costing

• Competency framework

• Change management strategy

• Communication plan

• Change Champion training

• Change journey

• Values journey

Construct Phase
• NYDA Behaviour Charter

• Reward and remuneration programme

• Remuneration benchmarking exercise

• Macro and micro structure sign-off

• Development of new and changed job profiles

• Development of the job evaluation framework

Implementation Phase
• Migration policy and procedure

• HR plan development

• Change champions engagement

• Leadership alignment

Review and Reporting Phase
• Skills transfer

• Change impact assessment

• Transition implementation plan

• Close-out report with recommendation

• Close-out and handover.



40

1.1.1 Key policy developments and legislative changes
There are no major changes to relevant policies or legislation that may have affected NYDA operations 

during the period under review or future financial periods. The formulation of the NYP2020 commenced 

during the year under review, with provincial consultations being conducted and, subsequently, a National 

Consultative Conference before the end of the financial year. The full implementation will unfold during the 

2015/16 financial year, with Cabinet approval and development of the IYDS 2020.

2. Strategic Outcome-oriented Goals

Strategic Outcome Area 1: Improved and sustainable livelihood opportunities for young people in South 

Africa. This strategic outcome area focuses on providing a comprehensive suite of interventions that leads 

to decent employment, skills development, education and entrepreneurship to all young people between 

the ages of 14 and 35.

Strategic Outcome Area 2: Enhanced participation of young people in social cohesion activities towards 

nation-building. This strategic outcome area aims to promote and maximise initiatives for the active 

participation of young people through social cohesion, health and wellbeing, information provision and 

community participation activism for improved social conditions of young people in South Africa (14-35 

years old).

Strategic Outcome Area 3: Enhanced enabling environment that promotes youth development in all sectors 

of South African society. This strategic outcome area focuses on fostering a mainstreamed, evidence-based, 

integrated and result-oriented youth development approach through relevant research, policy development, 

regulations, monitoring and evaluation, communication and an advisory service.

Strategic Outcome Area 4: Development and enhancement of a credible and capable youth development 

agency. This strategic outcomes area is defined as the efficient and effective utilisation of resources through 

provision of judicious governance, technology and systems, business operations systems, human capital and 

financial management systems that adhere to relevant legislative requirements for public-funded entities.

3. Performance Information by Programme

3.1 Description of each programme
3.1.1 Key Programme Area 1: Economic Participation
The main goal of the Economic Participation Programme is to enhance the participation of young people 

in the economy through targeted and integrated programmes. Programmes implemented by the NYDA 

against this Key Performance Area (KPA) aim to facilitate and provide employment opportunities to young 

people; to enhance the participation of young people in the economy, aimed at increasing job creation, 

entrepreneurship participation and skills development; and to provide business support to young people.

The strategic objective that relates to the KPA is as follows:

• To enhance the participation of young people in the economy.
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3.1.2 Key Programme Area 2: Education and Skills Development
The main goal of the Education and Skills Development Programme is to promote, facilitate, and provide 

education and skills development opportunities to young people to enhance their socio-economic wellbeing, 

with the objective of facilitating education opportunities. The aim is to improve access to quality education, 

to facilitate and implement YouthBuild, job-preparedness training, provision of scholarships and assisting 

young people to rewrite their Matric.

The strategic objectives that relate to the KPA are as follows:

• To facilitate and implement education opportunities, in order to improve quality education attainment 

of youth

• To facilitate and implement skills programmes.

3.1.3 Key Programme Area 3: Health and wellbeing
The goal of the Health and Wellbeing Key Programme Area is to increase awareness of healthy lifestyles that 

promote good health practices among the youth of South Africa, including dangers of substance abuse, 

unprotected sex, nutrition, sexually transmitted diseases, and the impact of HIV and Aids among young 

people in South Africa.

The strategic objectives that relate to the KPA are as follows:

• To facilitate access to health and wellbeing programmes

• To provide health and wellbeing interventions to young people.

3.1.4 Key Programme Area 4: Research and Policy
The goal of the Research and Policy Key Programme Area is to create a body of knowledge and best 

practice in the youth development sector, and to inform and influence policy development, planning and 

implementation. The fundamental aim of this area is to ensure that policies and frameworks that drive youth 

development are developed, based on a body of knowledge and facts that are relevant to the developmental 

needs of the youth of South Africa, as well as giving South Africa a competitive edge, globally.

The strategic objectives that relate to the KPA are as follows:

• To create and produce information and knowledge for better youth development planning and 

decision-making

• To provide access to information and create awareness of youth development programmes

• To lobby key stakeholders to support and implement youth development programmes

• To create a platform for youth to participate and benefit from democratic processes

• To mobilise and leverage financial resources from third parties.

3.1.5 Key Programme Area 5: Governance
The goal of the Governance Key Programme Area is to achieve efficient and effective utilisation of resources through the 

provision of judicious governance, technology and systems, business operations systems, human capital and financial 

management systems that adhere to the relevant legislative requirements for public-funded entities.

The strategic objective that relates to the KPA is as follows:

• To establish a credible, efficient and effective organisation.
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To enhance the participation of young people in the economy

A total of 1 034 youth-owned enterprises and youth received grant funding from the NYDA during 
the year under review.
During the year under review, a total of 1 034 youth-owned enterprises or youth received NYDA grant 

funding. A total of 532 enterprises were supported. Of the supported youth-owned enterprises, 87 are 

youth-owned co-operatives. A total of 502 individual youth were supported. The 106,8% overachievement 

was due to the approach used in graduating the businesses by introducing three thresholds of: R1 000 to 

R10 000; R10 001 to R50 000; and R50 001 to R100 000. The total number of grants equal to or less than the 

first threshold of R10 000 or less, is 514 (which accounts for 49,7% of the achievement).
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A total of 62 916 aspiring and established young entrepreneurs were supported through NYDA Business 

Development Support services. The relationship with Primestars led to achieving and exceeding the annual 

target, as it contributed significantly to delivering the EDP, which accounts for 65,1% of annual performance.
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GAUTENG :19998

NORTH WEST :5391

LIMPOPO :4193

NORTHERN CAPE :2235

WESTERN CAPE :5251

KWA-ZULU NATAL :5817

FREE STATE :4890

MPUMALANGA :8850

EASTERN CAPE :6291

NUMBER OF YOUNG ASPIRING AND/OR ESTABLISHED ENTREPRENEURS
SUPPORTED THROUGH NYDA BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

During the period under review, a total of 23 communities were provided with community development 

facilitation support as follows:

Name of Community Province

Marowe Limpopo

Ganyesa North West

Central Camp-Diepkloof Gauteng

Evaton West (Ward 26) Gauteng

Edumbe KwaZulu-Natal

Mannenberg Western Cape

Amahlathi Local Municipality Eastern Cape

Khayelitsha Local Municipality Western Cape

Mbekweni Local Municipality Western Cape

Thohoyandou Limpopo

Hanover Park Western Cape

Phillipi Western Cape

Kroonstad Free State

Springbok Northern Cape

Westonaria Gauteng

Lydenburg Mpumalanga

Ward 15, eSilobela/Carolina Mpumalanga

Ethandukukhanya (Piet Retief) Mpumalanga

Ward 9, Part of Mangweni-Tonga Village Mpumalanga

Ward 19, Ntunda, Sikhwahlane,Part of Mzinti Mpumalanga

Ward 10, Aremburg-Elukwatini Mpumalanga

Gugulethu Western Cape

Langa Western Cape
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A total of the 4 343 jobs were created and sustained through grant funding, co-operatives and business 

development services. The grants disbursed to private-owned companies/close corporations/individuals 

account for 1 078 of the annual attainment, while the jobs sustained through the voucher programme 

account for 1 181 of the annual target.

NUMBER OF JOBS CREATED AND SUSTAINED THROUGH GRANT FUNDING, 
CO-OPERATIVES AND BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
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During the period under review, a total of 4 248 young people were placed in job opportunities. The 

relationship with EPWP Non-State Sector, which was unforeseen, assisted greatly in achieving and surpassing 

the target.

NUMBER OF JOBS FACILITATED THROUGH 
PLACEMENT IN JOB OPPORTUNITIES

GAUTENG :1457

NORTH WEST :161

LIMPOPO :1299

NORTHERN CAPE :3

WESTERN CAPE :283

KWA-ZULU NATAL :345

FREE STATE :161

MPUMALANGA :493

EASTERN CAPE :46
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To facilitate and implement education opportunities, in order to improve 
attainment of quality education for the youth

A total of 5 319 young people were enrolled in the NYDA Matric (Grade 12) Rewrite programme. The 

contribution by ETDP SETA to the value of R3.6m assisted greatly with ensuring that the target was achieved 

and exceeded.
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During the period under review, a total of 300 youth were supported through the Solomon Mahlangu 

Scholarship programme. A total of 126 young people received support for the first time, while the remaining 

174 youth were extensions from previous years.

NEWLY AWARDED YOUTH - SOLOMON MAHLANGU SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAMME
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RENEWED SUPPORT - SOLOMON MAHLANGU SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAMME

GAUTENG :41

NORTH WEST :12

LIMPOPO :18

NORTHERN CAPE :5

WESTERN CAPE :24

KWA-ZULU NATAL :15

FREE STATE :11

MPUMALANGA :12

EASTERN CAPE :36

A total of 937 949 young people were supported through individual and group career guidance. The 

overwhelming majority of young people received support through outreach events, which account for 97,2% 

of performance.

NUMBER OF YOUNG PEOPLE SUPPORTED THROUGH INDIVIDUAL AND 
GROUP CAREER GUIDANCE INTERVENTION

0 200000 400000 600000 800000 1000000

TOTAL

GAUTENG

NORTH WEST

LIMPOPO

NORTHERN CAPE

WESTERN CAPE

KWA-ZULU NATAL

FREE STATE

MPUMALANGA

EASTERN CAPE

EASTERN CAPE 103359

MPUMALANGA 159645

FREE STATE 29032

KWA-ZULU NATAL 75940

WESTERN CAPE 35559

NORTHERN CAPE 52170

LIMPOPO 87129

NORTH WEST 72066

GAUTENG 323049

TOTAL 937949



49

To facilitate and implement skills programmes

A total of 2 342 young people participated in structured YouthBuild programmes during the year under 

review. Stakeholders such as the Department of Human Settlements and EPWP contributed significantly, 

as they were committed to providing skills and practical experience to youth while delivering infrastructure 

projects. NUMBER OF YOUNG PEOPLE PARTICIPATING 
IN STRUCTURED YOUTHBUILD PROGRAMME
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During the year under review, a total of 12 490 young people were enrolled in the NYS volunteer programmes. 

The partnership with the President’s Award for Youth Development Trust largely contributed towards the 

successful implementation.
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The number of young people supported through the job-preparedness and life skills programmes is 57 412. 

This attainment was influenced by the deployment of 40 young people who participated in the SA-Namibia 

Youth Exchange Programme, as they increased the capacity of the NYDA branches.
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Table 3: Extent of Involvement of Young People in Health and Wellbeing Activities
Strategic 
Objectives

Key Performance 
Indicator

Planned 
2014/15 
Target

Actual 
Performance 
2014/15

Deviation 
from Planned 
Target to Actual 
Achievement for 
2014/15 

Comment on 
Deviations 

To facilitate 
access to health 
and wellbeing 
programmes

Number of young 
people accessing 
programmes and 
interventions 
designed to 
improve health

5 500 young 
people

6 996 young 
people

Overachieved 
by 1 496 young 
people

The annual target 
was achieved 
and exceeded 
by 27,2%, due to 
partnering with 
partners, such as 
loveLife and SAB, 
in implementing 
the “You Decide 
Campaign”, which 
was unforeseen.

To provide health 
and wellbeing 
interventions to 
young people

Number of 
campaigns and 
special projects 
implemented

Six campaigns 
and special 
projects 
implemented

Six campaigns and 
special projects 
implemented

None Annual target 
achieved 
according to plan.

To facilitate access to health and wellbeing programmes

During the period under review, a total of 6 996 young people accessed programmes and interventions that 

were designed to improve their health and wellbeing.
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To provide health and wellbeing interventions to young people

A total of six campaigns and special projects were implemented as follows:

• Health and Wellbeing project in De Aar, 15 June 2014

• Health and Wellbeing project in Warrenton, 5 June 2014

• Promoting social cohesion through the Ruth First Memorial Games Campaign — Gauteng, 16–24 August 2014

• The Central Drug Authority Youth Dialogue in Northern Cape, 23 October 2014
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• Alcohol and Substance Abuse using Economic Participation in Eldorado Park — Gauteng, 7 October 2014

• Health and Wellbeing Campaign, in partnership with The Office of the Premier in KwaZulu-Natal , 16-23 

December 2014

Table 4: Performance against Targets for Policy and Research
Strategic 
Objectives

Key Performance 
Indicator

Planned 
2014/15 Target

Actual 
Performance 
2014/15

Deviation from 
Planned Target to 
Actual Achievement 
for 2014/15 

Comment on 
Deviations 

To create 
and produce 
information and 
knowledge for 
better youth 
development 
planning and 
decision-
making

Number of 
new youth 
development 
projects and/
or programmes 
designed and 
piloted

Six new youth 
development 
projects and/
or programmes 
designed and 
piloted

Seven new youth 
development 
projects and/
or programmes 
designed and 
piloted

Overachieved by 
one new youth 
development project 
and/or programme 
designed and piloted

The annual target 
was achieved and 
exceeded, due 
to the need for 
formulating and 
implementing 
responsive 
programmes and 
projects.

Number of youth 
development 
research and 
evaluation 
products 
produced by the 
NYDA

103 publications 143 publications Overachieved by 40 
publications

The annual target 
was achieved and 
exceeded by 37,9%, 
due to an approach 
of producing 
evaluation reports 
for the individual 
grant recipients that 
were supported 
during October 
2013 to March 2014. 
This approach was 
not anticipated and, 
hence, performance 
was increased in a 
significant way, as a 
total of 71 individual 
evaluation reports 
contributed to the 
overachievement.

Development of 
the National Youth 
Employment Plan 
2030

Second and 
final draft of the 
National Youth 
Employment 
Plan 2030, 
developed and 
approved by the 
NYDA Board

Second and 
final draft of the 
National Youth 
Employment Plan  
2030, developed 
and approved by 
the NYDA Board

None The annual target 
was achieved.

Establishment and 
operationalisation 
of the South 
African Youth 
Development 
Institute

South 
African Youth 
Development 
Institute 
operational at 
Phase 1 level

South 
African Youth 
Development 
Institute 
operational at 
Phase 1 level

None The annual target 
was achieved.
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Table 4: Performance against Targets for Policy and Research (continued)
Strategic 
Objectives

Key Performance 
Indicator

Planned 2014/15 
Target

Actual 
Performance 
2014/15

Deviation 
from Planned 
Target to Actual 
Achievement for 
2014/15 

Comment on 
Deviations 

To provide access 
to information and 
create awareness 
of youth 
development 
programmes

Number of young 
people receiving 
information 
on youth 
development 
through NYDA 
access points

770 000 young 
people

1 252 959 young 
people

Overachieved by 
482 959 young 
people

The annual target 
was achieved 
and exceeded 
by 62,7%, due to 
increased demand 
for outreach 
events by young 
people, which was 
unforeseen.

To lobby key 
stakeholders 
to support and 
implement youth 
development 
programmes

Number of 
organs of state 
and private 
sector companies 
lobbied, 
resulting in the 
establishment 
of youth 
directorates and 
implementation of 
youth programmes

39 organs of state 
and private sector 
companies lobbied, 
resulting in the 
establishment 
of youth 
directorates and 
implementation of 
youth programmes

44 organs of state 
and private sector 
companies lobbied, 
resulting in the 
establishment 
of youth 
directorates and 
implementation of 
youth programmes

Overachieved by 
five organs of state 
and private sector 
companies lobbied, 
resulting in the 
establishment 
of youth 
directorates and 
implementation of 
youth programmes

The annual target 
was achieved 
and exceeded 
by 12,8%, due to 
efforts made by 
staff to leverage 
resources from 
other stakeholders.

To create a 
platform for youth 
to participate 
and benefit 
from democratic 
processes

Number of 
dialogue sessions 
hosted with young 
people

100 dialogues 106 dialogues Overachieved by 
six dialogues

The annual target 
was achieved and 
exceeded by 6%, 
due to increased 
demand.

To mobilise and 
leverage financial 
resources from 
third parties

Value of funds 
raised to 
support youth 
development 
programmes

R86 000 000 R95 290 360,51 Overachieved by 
R9 290 360,51

The annual target 
was achieved 
and exceeded by 
10,8% due to the 
deliberate effort 
taken by staff to 
leverage resources 
from other 
stakeholders

To create and produce information and knowledge for better youth 
development planning and decision-making

A total of seven new youth development projects and/or programmes were designed and piloted during 

the period under review:

• Jobs for Youth Summit project, (conducted in three provinces: Western Cape, Limpopo and Gauteng; 

various stakeholders were invited to make presentations on their products related to employment: 

IDC, SEFA, Jobs Fund, DoL; over 400 young people were engaged). The project was completed.

• Asset-based Model to increase sustainable livelihoods among the youth (total budget is R249 615; 

Centre for Social Development in Africa at UJ is leading the project; the research consortium is made 

up of partners in the civil society and government sectors who are interested in developing a large-

scale strategy to address youth unemployment; the consortium met in June 2014 and Feb 2015; 

partners include loveLife, Action Volunteers Africa, Harambee, Fit for Life: Fit for Work, Afrika Tikkun, 

Thabiso Skills Institute, Raymond Ackerman Academy of Entrepreneurial Development, EOH). The 

baseline data collection is underway, with data already collected across two organisations (Lovelife 

and Action Volunteer Africa), and in most provinces across South Africa.
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• Presentation of BBBEE training in-house (eight market linkage officers trained and young people 

will be engaged through the presentation at branches, which targets 1 680 young people). A total of 

eight Market Linkage Officers were trained from 27 to 29 January 2015. After the training, the project 

was piloted at branches and ongoing BBBEE training is taking place.

• Marula Oil and By-products Community Production project (project based in Thulamela Municipality; 

R1 217 700 project budget; seven co-operatives with 35 young people). Contracting took place 

through the Polokwane branch from 23 to 27 February 2015. The disbursement for funding occurred 

on 16 March 2015. The co-operatives have already started to gather the marula fruit and are pressing 

the fruits.

• NYS YouthBuild Skills Production project (targeting 200 young people; trades in plumbing and 

welding; health & safety; total budget is R4 357 245; Mohokare LM in Free State and Naledi Molopo 

LM in North West). The NYS team has met with the representatives from both Mohokare LM and 

Naledi LM. The NYDA will sign MoU with both municipalities. The specifications for the technical 

training were developed and presented to BSC. The project training specifications are due for 

presentation at BAC, so the tender can be advertised.

• Rural Opportunities Career Expo (conducted in Mthatha; targeting 1 000 young people in Grades 11 

and 12; total budget was R545 000). The project was completed.

• Garankuwa YouthBuild Greening project (targeting 100 young people). The structure for 

implementation will be amended, as City of Tshwane has developed a new Waste Management 

Strategy that is being implemented by New GX. As such, the contracting between the NYDA and 

Tshwane Economic Development Agency had to wait for the contracting of New GX first. In the 

meantime, three buy-back centres have been identified and each of them will be managed by a 

youth co-operative. The co-operatives have been identified, interviews conducted and selections 

made. The co-operators are being vetted for their details. The MMC for Environmental Affairs was 

being engaged to obtain buy-in from the councillors of the councils where the buy-back centres will 

be located to diffuse any possible tensions by providing the necessary information.

During the period under review, a total of 143 youth development research and evaluations products were 

produced by the NYDA as follows:

99 publications produced by the Monitoring & Evaluation Unit
• Youth Unemployment in South Africa: Challenges, Causes and Possible Solutions.

• Final Evaluation Report — President’s Award for Youth Empowerment Programme.

• Pan African Youth Union Conference.

• Summative Evaluation of the Grant Recipients Supported between October 2013 and March 2014.

• Seventy-one evaluation reports for individual grant recipients supported during October 2013 and 

March 2014.

• Lessons Learnt from Policy Intervention 2 — Education Theme of the NYP 2009–2014.

• Lessons Learnt from Policy Intervention 3 — Education Theme of the NYP 2009–2014.

• Relevance of Total Quality Management to NYDA Operations.

• The South African Tax System.

• Seven evaluation reports for individual loan recipients.

• Lessons Learnt from Policy Intervention 1 — Education Theme of the NYP 2009-2014.

• Impact Evaluation of National Youth Service Programme.

• Creating Awareness on Cervical Cancer and Prevention.
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• Final Evaluation of the Tshwane Youth in Human Settlements YouthBuild Project.

• Employment Creation Strategies.

• Final Evaluation of Umtshezi YouthBuild Project.

• Tools/Initiatives that could be used towards enhancing social cohesion amongst citizens in South 

Africa.

• Impact Evaluation of the Job-preparedness and Life Skills Programme.

• Rapid Assessment of the Loan Clients that are Contributing to the Portfolio at Risk in the NYDA Loan 

Book.

• Strategy Planning and Implementation.

• Final Evaluation of Youth in Human Settlements Project in Winterveldt.

• Lessons learnt from Impact Evaluation of Job-preparedness and Life Skills Programme.

• Lessons learnt from Rapid Assessment of the Loan Clients that are Contributing to the PAR in the 

NYDA Loan Book.

30 publications produced by the Research Unit (including Smart Lessons and Knowledge Briefs)
• Three quarterly customer satisfaction surveys

• A report containing updated statistics for the SA Status of Youth Report

• A publication on NYDA staff satisfaction

• A publication on public perceptions of the NYDA

• Publications related to education and skills development:

• The Skills Mismatch Debate in SA

• Key Issues that Emerged from the Research Colloquium on Post School Education and Training

• Skills Development as One of the Main Facilitators to Youth Economic Participation

• Lessons from the Internship Baseline Study

• Behaviourist and Constructivist Notions of Teaching Agricultural Science Subject Matter

• Publications related to economic development:

• The Tao of Backyard Farming

• Black Industrialist Indaba

• Reviewing Transition of Financial Sector Institutions towards Sustainable Banking

• Application of Systems Thinking in Farmer Decision-Making and Rural Development

• Essential Youth Unemployment Statistics: A Quick Reference

• Publications addressing cross-cutting issues:

• Relationship between Levels of Education and Salaries Earned by Youth

• The Challenge of Youth not in Employment, Education or Training in SA

• Millennium Development Goals Milestones

• The Political Economy of Constitutionalism in SA

• Epistemological Access and Politics of Knowledge

• Publications addressing violence and crime prevention:

• Diversion Models and Policy Interventions in the Rehabilitation of Youth in Conflict with the Law

• Violence in South African Schools

• Death Statistics and Youth Risk Behaviours

• Publications addressing social cohesion and nation-building:

• Characterising the Contexts of Youth Development in Terms of Jena Model for Social Change 

and Human Development

• Publications addressing health and wellbeing:

• Preventing Vulnerability to Rape in Sustainable Living
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• Research in Nutrition Science

• Empowerment towards healthful nutrition through backyard farming for sustainable living

• Sexual reproductive health: implant as a safer and reliable contraceptive option.

14 presentations and submissions produced by the Policy Unit
• Presentation to Cape Agulhas Municipality Youth Policy

• Formal NYDA Submission to Department of Environmental Affairs — National Pollution Prevention 

Plans

• Presentation to the City of Tshwane Youth in Council Session — 30 June 2014

• Formal NYDA submission to Department of Public Works — Build Environment Policy

• Submission on Integrated Youth Development Strategy for KZN

• Formal submission to DHET — Social Inclusion Policy Framework for the Public Post-School Education 

and Training Institutions

• Submission to Eastern Cape Youth Development Strategy

• Written policy submission — Draft National Energy Regulator of South Africa Youth Employment 

Strategy

• Knowledge Brief: National Youth Policy 2009-2014 Review Process Update

• Knowledge Brief: Basic and Higher Education Drop Out — A hidden crisis?

• Smart Lessons — A Discussion on Policy Development Process: A Case of Wage Youth Subsidy Policy 

in South Africa

• Knowledge Brief: Formal NYDA Submission — The Green Paper for Post-School Education and 

Training

• Knowledge Brief: A Critical Discussion of Impact Evaluation

• Knowledge Brief: Factors Leading to Small Business Failure

During the period under review, the second and final draft of the National Youth Employment Plan 2030 was 

developed and approved by the NYDA Board. The intention of the Youth Employment Plan 2030 is to find 

ways that the SA economy may benefit from the demographic dividend by providing concrete guidance 

on how to incorporate government strategies and regulations into a comprehensive plan that will assist 

with reducing the levels of unemployment among young people within South Africa in the next 15 years, 

when implemented with urgency and vigour. In terms of the scope of the project, the Youth Employment 

Plan is aimed at exploring the options presented through government strategies and regulations, which 

are available for addressing the challenges leading to youth unemployment. The blockages causing 

unemployment among young people were fully explored. The change drivers were identified and an 

assessment made of the extent to which the existing government strategies and regulations are aimed at 

providing the change drivers. The gaps were identified and concrete steps outlined for strategies that could 

be implemented based on scenarios. These scenarios were forecast by an estimation of the population 

over the next 15 years and informed by comprehensively analysed historical statistics. With regard to the 

approach, a multi-pronged approach was adopted that involved the collection, analysis and interpretation 

of primary and secondary data. The statistics on youth were thoroughly analysed to pick up the contributing 

factors that would guide the projections and scenarios correctly.

The annual target was achieved with regard to establishing and operationalising the South African Youth 

Development Institute. The first meeting of the UJ-NYDA Institute took place on 31 March 2015. It was 

resolved that the new Board would take over all the remaining activities required to fully operationalise 
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the institute and dissolve the interim team comprised of staff from both UJ and the NYDA, in line with 

governance requirements.

The activities that are accounted for the performance are as follows:

• Legal type of entity determined

• Name of institution finalised

• Registration of new institute lodged and approved

• Advert for Managing Director drafted

• Advert for Managing Director position placed in printed media

• Advert for Fundraising Manager drafted

• Advert for Fundraising Manager placed in printed media

• Advert for independent board members drafted

• Advert for independent board members placed in printed media

• Applications of independent board members received and evaluated

• Interviews conducted with all applicants

• Independent board members appointed.

To provide access to information and create awareness on youth develop-
ment programmes

A total of 1 252 959 young people received information on youth development through NYDA access points 

during the period under review. This significant contribution was made through outreach events which 

account for 83,7% of the performance.

GAUTENG :384020

NORTH WEST :87756

LIMPOPO :122201

NORTHERN CAPE :81856

WESTERN CAPE :42750

KWA-ZULU NATAL :123787

FREE STATE :22509

MPUMALANGA :203380

EASTERN CAPE :166105

NUMBER OF YOUNG PEOPLE RECEIVING INFORMATION ON YOUTH 
DEVELOPMENT THROUGH NYDA ACCESS POINTS
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To lobby key stakeholders to support and implement youth development 
programmes

During the period under review, a total of 44 organs of state and private sector companies lobbied, resulting 

in the establishment of youth directorates and the implementation of youth programmes as follows:

Name of state organ/private company 
lobbied Intent of lobbying

Majuba FET College To host two local youth offices

Services SETA Call Centre project for Western Cape Youth Learning Intervention

Department of Higher Education and Training To work together to promote the career development interests of the people 
of South Africa

Mintek To provide training and establish co-operative enterprises in Prieska at 
Siyathemba Municipality in Northern Cape

Primestars Marketing Proprietary
Parties agreed to co-operate in the provision of the youth educational and 
development programme in the manner set forth in the agreement — Step Up 
2 a Start Up

Inqaba Yokulinda Youth Organisation

To co-operate on the Youth Advisory Centre, aimed at providing unemployed, 
disabled and school-going young people in and around Inqaba Yokulinda 
Youth Organisation with counselling, career guidance, internet services, life 
skills, health and wellbeing, and other products and services offered by the 
Agency

New loveLife Trust The purpose is to complement each other in the promotion of services and 
skills among the French and South African Youth

Hartland Training and Development Centre To host 11 local youth offices

University of KwaZulu-Natal To co-operate on the administration and management of the Solomon 
Mahlangu Scholarship programme

Siyathemba Local Municipality

To co-operate on the local youth office, aimed at providing unemployed, 
disabled and school-going young people in and around the municipality with 
counselling, career guidance, internet services, life skills, health and wellbeing, 
and other products and services offered by the Agency

Blouberg Local Municipality To host a local youth office

Department of Public Works and Independent 
Development Trust

Implementation of the Non-State Sector NPO Programme of EPWP, Phase 3

Tshwane Economic Development Agency

To co-operate on assisting young people in the Tshwane Metropolitan 
Municipality, who will be trained for placement into formal employment, self-
employment and any other opportunities as dictated in the mandate of each of 
the parties

Rhodes University To co-operate on the administration and management of the Solomon 
Mahlangu Scholarship programme

Ulundi The municipality agrees to host three additional youth offices in Babanango, 
Ceza and Nqulwane

Mafube Local Municipality To establish a second youth office in Cornelia

Sol Plaatje Local Municipality To host a local youth office

Eskilz College To host a local youth office

Mthonjaneni Local Municipality To host a local youth office

South African Union of Students To co-operate on preparing higher education students to complete quality 
higher education and be equipped for the world of work

Presidents’ Award for Youth Empowerment 
Trust

To implement the President’s Award for Youth Development programme

Joe Morolong Local Municipality To host a local youth office

Mohokare Local Municipality To host a local youth office
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Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati District 
Municipality

To host a local youth office

Department of Agriculture, Forestry and 
Fisheries

The parties will endeavour to work together to further the respective parties’ 
mandate to promote the interests and the development of young people 
from previously disadvantaged communities. They will strive to address and 
encapsulate areas of education and training, soft financial loans and co-
operative development opportunities offered by DAFF

Akanani Rural Development Association To support the Non-State Sector’s NPO Programme in the creation of work 
opportunities

NICDAM To support the Non-State Sector’s NPO Programme in the creation of work 
opportunities

EWSETA

To collaborate on the mainstreaming of skills into occupations that are relevant 
for the energy and water services sector; to assist in developing training 
measures for certain scarce and critical skills that are in demand in the sector; 
to support EWSETA in capacity-building measures; and to collaborate on 
national career development initiatives

Hola Bon Renaissance Foundation To support the Non-State Sector’s NPO Programme in the creation of work 
opportunities

Gold Peer Education Development Agency To support the Non-State Sector’s NPO Programme in the creation of work 
opportunities

Geton Foundation Trust To support the Non-State Sector’s NPO Programme in the creation of work 
opportunities

Emalahleni Local Municipality To facilitate the establishment of the Local Youth Council

Mpumalanga Department of Social 
Development

To host 46 new access points

National Applications Centre (NAC)
To co-operate in promoting the use of formal education and skills development 
to break the cycle of crime and ensure successful socio-economic re-integration 
of youth in conflict with the law

Primestars Marketing Proprietary
Parties agreed to co-operate in the provision of the youth educational and 
development programme in the manner set forth in the agreement — My 
Future My Career

Calulo Investments
To form a joint consortium, in order to assist with educating youth and 
facilitating and managing enterprise development initiatives owned by the 
youth

Lulaway To complement each other with the placement of unemployed graduates in 
internship, learnership, contract or permanent employment opportunities

Boys and Girls Clubs of South Africa

Parties endeavour to work together to promote the interests of young people 
in Alexandra and other parts of Gauteng; to use the framework as a platform to 
offer evidence-based programmes and activities that develop healthy lifestyles 
for youth

History Makers Business Consulting — 
Mpumalanga 

To assist and provide 600 repeating Grade 12 learners with a second chance to 
achieve NSC

History Makers Business Consulting — North 
West 

To assist and provide 280 repeating Grade 12 learners with a second chance to 
achieve NSC

Jasintha (Pty) Ltd — KwaZulu-Natal To assist and provide 620 repeating Grade 12 learners with a second chance to 
achieve NSC

History Makers Business Consulting — 
Gauteng 

To assist and provide 290 repeating Grade 12 learners with a second chance to 
achieve NSC

Funzani Education & Training Centre — 
Limpopo

To assist and provide 600 repeating Grade 12 learners with a second chance to 
achieve NSC

History Makers Business Consulting — 
Eastern Cape

To assist and provide 700 repeating Grade 12 learners with a second chance to 
achieve NSC
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To create a platform for youth to participate and benefit from democratic 
processes

A total of 106 dialogue sessions were conducted with young people throughout the country during the 

period under review. The dialogues were hosted on the following issues that are relevant to youth:

• Economic participation and job creation

• Skills development

• Anti-drug abuse, violence and other social ills

• Voter education

• Leadership

• Reflecting on 20 years of democracy

• Youth Employment Accord

• Integration of young women

• Engagement with disabled youth

• Career guidance, health and wellbeing

• Time management

• Defining own vision

• Importance of setting goals

• Importance of writing

• Setting values

• Maximising your potential

• NYDA products and services

• Engagement with the incarcerated youth

To mobilise and leverage financial resources from THIRD parties

During the period under review, a total of R95 290 360,51 was mobilised from third parties, in order to support 

the implementation of youth development programmes. The contributions came from varied sources that 

include the following:

• NHBRC

• Primestars

• National Department of Human Settlements

• President’s Award for Youth Empowerment Trust

• Gauteng Provincial Department of Human Settlements

• Omnia Nutriology

• IDT

• National Department of Public Works

• ABSA

• Gauteng Enterprise Propeller

• MTN Foundation

• SOMAFCO Trust

• Mountain Top Production

• Buhle Be Mvelo Production

• Atone WOrks
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To establish a credible, efficient and effective organisation

During the year under review, 94% of Phase 1 and Phase 2 of the Information Technology roadmap was 

achieved. The only activity of the roadmap that was not achieved was with regard to producing the 

organisational Business Continuity Plan and the IT Disaster Recovery Plan. At the time of conducting the 

end-of-year statutory audit, the NYDA has signed a transversal contract with SITA in February develop the IT 

Disaster Recovery Plan. The Business Continuity Planning Charter was also approved in February 2015. Work 

on these deliverables will be continued in 2015/16 FY, in addition to executing Phase 3 of the IT roadmap.

With regard to the review of identified policies, guidelines and policies for increased efficiency, a total of 20 

procedure manuals were approved:

• Market Linkages Procedure Manual

• EDP Procedure Manual

• RD Procedure Manual

• Voucher Programme Procedure Manual

• Mentorship Procedure Manual

• Grant Programme Procedure Manual

• Outreach Procedure Manual

• Information Provision Procedure Manual

• Career Guidance Procedure Manual

• Jobs Programme Procedure Manual

• NYS Procedure Manual

• YouthBuild Programme Procedure Manual

• Second-Chance Matric Rewrite Procedure Manual

• Training Procedure Manual

• Scholarships Procedure Manual

• Health and Wellbeing Procedure Manual

• SCM Procedure Manual

• M&E Reporting Procedure Manual

• Finance Procedure Manual

• Thusano Fund Procedure Manual

A total of 473 employees were trained during the period under review. The training interventions included 

the following:

• Approved policies and performance contracting

• NYDA products and services for LYOs

• SAGE VIP Premier

• Supply chain management

• Staff induction

• BBBEE ToT

• Disciplinary enquiries at the workplace

• Facilitation skills POE observation and assessments

• Performance agreements workshop

• Effective stakeholder management

• Bid committee PFMA training
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• IPD-Assessors, moderators and evaluation training

• Barnowl training

• ESS leave training

• Risk-based auditing

• Capability mapping validation

• Torque IT NE 20336

• CRM workshop

• Premier HR job management

• EDP orientation

• MKL orientation

• Tax year-end training

Seventy-two access points were established and 26 operationalised, totalling 98 access points. The provincial 

breakdown for the access points established is as follows: KwaZulu-Natal = 6, Gauteng = 10, North West = 

2, Limpopo = 2, Eastern Cape = 1, Northern Cape = 3, Free State = 2 and Mpumalanga = 46. The provincial 

breakdown for the access points operationalised is as follows: Mpumalanga = 19, Gauteng = 1, Limpopo = 

1, KwaZulu-Natal = 4 and Eastern Cape = 1.

With regard to compliance with policies and legislation for good governance, a total of 69% of the controls 

were rated “acceptable”. The implementation of some core product policies and procedures was finalised 

late, towards the end of the financial period. This affected the actual implementation and monitoring of 

drivers of internal control measures.

3.1 Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance
The Agency did not meet two of its planned targets for the performance year under review. The strategies 

to overcome such underperformance are indicated below:

27.1.1 Efficient and effective IT systems to support youth development
During the current financial year, the reported performance will be in line with the target so that this 

finding does not occur again.

27.1.2 Compliance with policies and legislation for good governance
The controls that were “not acceptable” were outlined and the actions required to execute were 

articulated, so that the reason for variance was deemed valid. The approved programme and product 

policies, and procedure manuals will be implemented during the current financial year. A plan was 

established to provide training to all staff, so that all controls are within acceptable levels.

3.2 Changes to planned targets
A new Strategic Plan and Annual Performance Plan (APP) were adopted by the NYDA and approved by the 

Executive Authority on 15 January 2015 to replace the original 2014/15 Strategic Plan and APP, submitted 

to The Presidency on 30 January 2014. The amendment of the APP was aimed at addressing the findings 

raised by the Auditor General South Africa, related to clear articulation of the KPIs and refining the Indicator 

Protocol Sheet.

3.3 Linking performance with budgets
The NYDA allocated funding to each Key Programme Area which is included within the organisational 

structure, and then allocated funding towards the individual projects within the KPAs, designed to meet 

the Key Performance Indicators. The budgetary allocations and respective actual spending against Key 

Programme Areas are indicated below:
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Description 2014/15
Final budget

2014/15
Actual expenditure Variance

Economic Participation R72 124 000 R77 789 146 (R5 674 146)

Education and Skills R73 944 000 R78 780 294 (R4 836 294)

Health and Wellbeing R5 973 000 R8 775 420 (R 2 802 420) 

Policy and Research R115 794 000 R122 334 066 (R6 540 066)

Governance R148 910 000 R148 247 418 R662 582

Revenue collection
The NYDA has put in place a strategy to conclude on the loan book and address the collections from loan 

holders. The Auditor General concluded for the first time in six years that the NYDA had taken effective and 

efficient steps to collect all revenue due. 

To this end the NYDA has implemented a four point plan aimed at concluding the loan book which 

incorporates the following:

Phase 1:
The borrowing status of each borrower is being determined in terms of business status, individuals’ status, 

employment status, assets of the business and performance of businesses.

This data is necessary to determine the ability of the loan holder to repay the loan to the NYDA.

Phase 2:
Legal advisors to the NYDA are provided with the loan holders’ details and status of the loan and aim to 

recover funds through restructuring of debt, settlement offers, and renegotiation of loan terms and where 

necessary by following the legal process.

Phase 3:
Allow and external evaluator to provide an assessment where the legal process is unsatisfactory on the 

socio-economic impact of continuing to pursue young people who have loans that cannot be repaid. This 

assessment must include amongst others the costing of job losses should business be shut down as a result 

of assets attachment and loss of income to households.

Phase 4:
Present a final consolidated report based on the above three phases that will determine continued collection, 

final settlement, write-off of debt and attachments of assets.

The NYDA is confident that the above strategy is yielding positive results and will ultimately lead to successful 

resolution of the loan book.

For financial information related to the loan book refer to note 8 of the annual financial statements.

Capital investment, maintenance and asset management plan:

The NYDA holds assets in the form of equipment and Information, Communication and Technology 

intangible assets. The NYDA invests in the region of 1.4% of its annual allocation in capital assets mainly 

to replace assets which have become redundant or to invest in new systems and technology that enhance 

service delivery to young people. An annual maintenance plan is developed which responds to the changing 

needs of assets and addresses potential redundancies of assets. Management has a three year asset plan 

aligned to the Medium Term Expenditure Framework Budget.

For financial information related to capital assets refer to note 5 and 6 of the annual financial statements.
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Jobs Database

Lucky Mailula (29), from Kwaguqa, and Lucky 
Maisela (26), from Siyathuthuka, in Belfast, were 

both unemployed, but had attained NQF Level 3 in 

Engineering Studies. They visited the NYDA branch 

looking for assistance. They submitted their CVs and 

were placed on the Jobs database. Through the 

Agency’s partnership with the Provincial Department 

of Public Works NYS unit, 14 candidates were 

enrolled in an electrical artisanship programme.

This programme will run for three years and has 

placed learners in various companies for experiential 

training, such as Tubular Holdings (Pty) Ltd, and 

Murray and Roberts. The experiential training was 

arranged by the Manufacturing, Engineering and 

Related Services SETA (MERSETA).

Both Mr Mailula and Mr Maisela were placed 

with Tubular Holdings (Pty) Ltd. They expressed 

their appreciation and gratitude to the NYDA 

for linking them up with the programme. They 

are now employed and are able to make a 

living for themselves and their families. From 

here onwards, their lives can only improve.

Through a partnership between Harambee and the 

NYDA, a total of 21 young people were placed at 

Burger King in Rustenburg. Harambee continuously 

empowers young people by placing them in various 

companies that have job opportunities. These young 

people were sourced from the NYDA Jobs database. 

After candidates are assessed, they are matched with 

a specific job fitting their profile. The placement of 

the young people took place during August and 

October 2014.

Thusano Fund 

Making a difference

Andisa Mhlongo from Harding, in KwaZulu-Natal, is 

studying teaching to make a difference in the lives of 

the youth of South Africa. She was among a group of 

students studying BA in Education at the University 

of KwaZulu-Natal who received funding from the 

NYDA Thusano Fund to settle their outstanding fees 

for 2013.

“I want to play a role in ensuring that all learners 

have access to a better education,” she says.

Andisa, who received R21 179,64 in funding from the 

NYDA, says that she hopes to teach Mathematics 

and Zulu upon completion of her degree.

Lucky Mailula and Lucky Maisela

Andisa Mhlongo
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The 19-year-old is the youngest of five children and is 

the first in her family to go to university. Her mother, 

a single parent, is currently unemployed, along with 

all her older siblings.

Exposure to Marine Life

“I ask questions and gain knowledge — that’s what 

has led me to want to explore a career in diving 

and ship maintenance,” says Brian Sishi, who is a 

25-year-old beneficiary of the NYDA Thusano Fund.

Brian received R46 650 in funding from the NYDA 

to complete a two-month long diving course, which 

will allow him to work as a welder, cutter and general 

maintenance worker on ships, and do harbour repairs 

under water. He is currently still employed as a sales 

consultant, but is looking for a full-time job at one of 

the harbours in South Africa.

“Most black people are not exposed to marine life 

and open waters, which is a shame, as there is so 

much potential to be explored in the harbours of 

South Africa, especially in Durban, where I grew up,” 

says Brian.

When asked how he became exposed to diving, 

Brian says that, while living in Chesterville in Mayville, 

KwaZulu-Natal, he attended a first aid course after 

school, where he met a man involved in recreational 

diving who exposed him to what later became his 

biggest passion.

“I grew up in an RDP house, raised by a single mother. 

I am the second last child of seven. Times are still 

tough for my family, as I am the only breadwinner. I 

hope to be able to provide for my family soon, doing 

what I love.”

Brian plans to eventually complete another diving 

course, which will enable him to work in the deep 

sea. With his existing qualifications, he is currently 

only permitted to work on shore. After this, he 

dreams of travelling and working abroad to gain 

more experience, before settling down to work in 

South Africa again.

Empowering Youth with Skills

Emndeni Skills Development Centre in Soweto, 

Gauteng, is an NGO, community centre and training 

academy that provides outsourced, certified skills 

development training to unemployed youth.

Through Emndeni, 60 young people have been 

Brian Sishi

Emndeni Skills Development Centre
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able to complete three-month courses in catering, 

agriculture, tiling or painting. This year, Emndeni 

Skills Development Centre received R45 000 from 

the NYDA Thusano Fund to assist with funding their 

training programmes for young people.

“We train 60 youth every three months, which means 

that about 240 young people receive some kind of 

accredited training from Emndeni every year. We are 

truly grateful for the NYDA’s assistance, as every cent 

is put to good use and truly has the power to change 

a young person’s life,” says Nomaswazi Mlaba, 

Manager of the centre.

According to Nomaswazi, basic computer literacy, life 

skills and small business training are compulsory for 

all young people undergoing training programmes. 

This means that, while each of their beneficiaries 

is receiving training in a particular field, such as 

agriculture or catering, they are also being trained in 

basic computer literacy, business skills and life skills.

Freedom Boxing Club

‘Boxing Against Gangsterism, Drugs and Crime’ is 

the slogan of Freedom Boxing Club, in Galeshewe 

township, in Kimberley.

The boxing club received banners for the team’s 

annual tournament from the NYDA Thusano Fund. 

Sipho Gxotha, the club’s assistant trainer, coach 

and secretary, says that, while social ills such as 

gangsterism, drugs and crime are rife in their 

community, boxing offers youth an alternative.

“We have over 50 young people from across the 

province that are part of our club. Some members 

just train for fitness, while others are actual boxers,” 

he says.

“Boxing takes kids and youth off the streets, but we 

still lose boxers to gangsterism who often don’t have 

any support from their families. At times, we even 

have to visit the homes of some of our young people 

to plead with them to return to boxing, just to keep 

our youth on the right path,” says Sipho.

The club charges a minimal fee for training. However, 

according to Sipho, many members fail to keep up 

with payments, but are never turned away.

Despite all odds

“I will, one day, be an excellent, hardworking teacher 

and will produce students who become chartered 

accountants, economists and mathematicians,” says 

Freedom Boxing Club

Hloniphile Sibiya
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education student, Hloniphile Sibiya, who received 

funding from the NYDA Thusano Fund.

The 21-year-old is majoring in accounting and 

business management, and hopes to teach 

Accounting and Mathematics to Grades 10 to 12.

“I was born to teach. Even in primary school, I 

pictured myself standing in front of the class. In 

fact, in Grade 4, teachers started using me as a 

class tutor or teacher’s assistant. They used me as 

a substitute teacher for Mathematics and I even 

started organising holiday revision camps for my 

peers,” she says.

According to Hlonophile, her family are very proud 

that she is studying towards a degree, but they told 

her that they couldn’t fund her studies, as they were 

all struggling already.

“I come from a poor household; my mother is 

unemployed. Since I was in Grade 1, my brother and 

I have relied on my grandmothers’ pension to sustain 

us. So, my grandmother is basically the breadwinner, 

even though she is a pensioner,” she says.

Skills Development over Poverty

“After the Kareedouw Youth Programme 

received computers and sewing machines from 

the NYDA Thusano Fund, young people have 

shown great interest in obtaining assistance from 

us,” says Thembinkosi Nkqwita, chairperson of the 

organisation.

Kareedouw Youth Programme, near Port Elizabeth 

in the Eastern Cape, equips unemployed youth, 

and youth in primary and secondary school, with 

computer literacy and sewing skills.

“We serve four rural communities, mainly consisting 

of farms and small townships. Many of our youth do 

not complete Matric, due to poverty, and end up 

seeking employment at local apple and berry farms. 

We want to show them that it doesn’t have to end 

there for them. They can still acquire computer skills, 

or learn to sew and, in so doing, grow their skills to 

allow for professional progress,” says Thembinkosi.

He says that many young people come from youth-

headed households, and are faced with alcohol and 

drug abuse, poverty and joblessness.

“We constantly engage our young people and 

survey their needs and aspirations. Many have 

told us that they would also like to be trained in 

building, plumbing and catering, in addition to 

computer literacy and sewing. Our goal is now to 

train a group of youth in catering, so that they can 

run school feeding schemes and, eventually, to also 

provide driving lessons to in-school youth through 

partnership with the municipality,” says Thembinkosi.

Reading First
Nezile Mthembu, 27, from KwaMashu in Durban, is 

a journalist turned educator and the founder of Kids 
Read Global.

Kids Read Global is aimed at promoting literacy and 

a love of books among disadvantaged children, and 

received funding from the NYDA Thusano Fund to 

publish their first children’s book.Kareedouw Youth Programme
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“The book is about a boy and his best friend, 

living in a township, who want to purchase a book, 

but have no money. The storyline shows how they 

go about raising the money for the book, thereby 

promoting entrepreneurship and educating children 

about saving,” says Nezile. “We have a multitude 

of children’s books available in South Africa and it’s 

great to have these translated into various languages. 

However, if children can’t identify with the context of 

the characters or storyline, then the results can be 

counterproductive.”

She says that they hope to publish many more books, 

inspired by local settings, to motivate and educate 

children. These books will depict characters of 

black, Indian or Coloured origin in a typical township 

setting.

Nezile came up with the idea of starting Kids 

Read Global while teaching social sciences in 

the intermediate phase and realising that there 

was a need to reposition the contexts of stories for 

children.

Making Dreams a Reality
Nothando Xulu, 21, always had dreams of studying 

film and pursuing a career in acting or movie 

production and, through the NYDA Thusano Fund, 

this goal finally became a reality.

Nothando was accepted to study acting at the New 

York Film Academy after completing her Matric, but, 

unfortunately, could not raise the funds. As one of 

four children growing up in Mulbarton in the south of 

Johannesburg, Nothando always knew that paying 

for her studies would be a trial for her mother, who 

also had three younger children to provide for.

After accepting various jobs at the SABC and 

different production companies, Nothando realised 

that she didn’t fully understand the film industry, so 

she made the courageous decision to go back to 

school at the age of 21.

Her mother took out a bank loan to pay for her to 

travel to Cape Town to study at Afda, the South 

African School of Motion Picture Medium and Live 

Performance. However, the family soon realised 

that they didn’t have the money to pay for the fees 

upfront, as required.

“For the entire first term of studying in Cape Town, I 

was an illegal student without a student card, as we 

couldn’t come up with the money to cover my fees 

upfront. Most days, I had to sneak into the back gate 

of campus, while most of my peers who faced the 

Nezile Mthembu

Nothando Xulu
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same difficulties dropped out of school altogether. 

I completed the first term and knew that I’d passed 

well, but only during the holidays did I get the call 

from the NYDA to say that they would cover my fees 

to the value of R47 945,” she says.

When asked why she wanted to study in Cape Town 

instead of Johannesburg, closer to home, she says 

that the film industry is booming in Cape Town and 

film students are more exposed to practical work, 

rather than only theory.

“It’s one thing to want to study, but having the means 

to study is a different thing altogether. When you are 

a child of God, however, things always work out. All I 

need now is to find a weekend job doing absolutely 

anything related to film and I will literally be living my 

dream,” says Nothando.

“I think I will be a good teacher one day”
Sisanda Ngcobo, 20, from the township of 

Mwandemgezi in Pinetown, KwaZulu-Natal, is but 

one teaching student out of a multitude to have 

benefited from the NYDA Thusano Fund.

He was unable to register for his second year of 

a four-year teaching degree at the University of 

KwaZulu-Natal, due to outstanding fees at the 

beginning of 2013.

The NYDA settled his outstanding fees for 2013, 

amounting to R21 131,18, through the Thusano Fund.

“My degree is going very well. I am earning good 

marks and working hard. At the beginning of this 

year, I had to stay at home, due to my outstanding 

fees, but I was able to return to university because 

the NYDA paid for my fees,” he says.

Sianda also completed his practical teacher training 

this year and says that it was a great experience for 

him. Even the principal at the host school told him 

to continue persevering. He says that he is hoping 

to teach IsiZulu and Geography when he qualifies.

Sianda says, “I lost my mother when I was much 

younger and I don’t have any contact with my father, 

so I am basically an orphan. I live with my aunt, who 

does not earn much, but, with the help of other 

family members, she manages to provide me with 

transport money to go to school. I am, however, 

trying by all means to change my life for the better 

and I think I will make a great teacher one day.”

Unfortunately, Sianda is still struggling to find 

funding for his 2014 tuition fees and has applied for 

numerous government bursaries. Nevertheless, he 

remains positive that he will be able to complete his 

degree.

Independence through Mobility

Thozamile Gontsana from Bizana in the Eastern 
Cape received an electronic wheelchair through the 
NYDA Thusano Fund, which, he says, has changed 
his life for the better.

The 31-year-old social worker even managed to start 
working recently, focusing on pre-school children 
and Early Childhood Development in his community.
When asked why he needed an electric wheelchair, 
Thozamile says, “I sustained injuries during a robbery 
shooting in 2007, which left me a paraplegic. I had a 
manual wheelchair previously and I was still able to 
work somewhat, but the problem is that i constantly 
needed assistance to get around. Now i can work 
alone.”

Thozamile Gontsana
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Farming is the future

Philson Nonyana from Bushbuckridge in 

Mpumalanga grew up tending his father’s crops 

and today, he is qualified, with a diploma in plant 

production and agriculture.

“I wasn’t entirely sure about my choice of qualification, 

but after just two months of studying, I fell in love 

with my career choice,” says the 23-year-old. “I feel 

a career in agriculture was the most natural choice 

for me. Growing up, it was my daily chore to tend my 

father’s beetroot, carrot and chilli crops.”

Philson was assisted with R14 894 in funding through 

the Nyda Thusano Fund to settle his outstanding 

fees at lowveld college, where he completed the 

three-year qualification.

When asked how he found out about the Nyda, 

he says, “I once watched ‘Morning Live’ on SABC 

2, when the Nyda Executive Chairperson was 

interviewed about the thusano fund. After this, the 

Nyda also visited Nelspruit for a youth dialogue and 

I received even more information.”

Philson says that he was doing student training on a 

farm when he received a call from the Nyda notifying 

him that his outstanding fees would be settled.

“It was such a great feeling that this burden had 

been lifted, as I’d been worried that I would have 

to stay at home and not complete my studies, as I 

simply didn’t have the money,” he says.

Philson is currently looking for an internship to gain 

some experience. In the meantime, together with 

some friends, he has registered a co-operative 

business, and is also working on a business plan and 

a lease agreement for a nearby farm.

Career Guidance & Skills 
Development

Mobile Science Lab Donated to Mphumelomuhle 
Secondary School
In previous years, the NYDA successfully visited 

schools in deep rural and remote areas to offer career 

guidance. Mphumelomuhle Secondary School 

was identified as a school that needed immediate 

assistance.

Mphumelomuhle is situated in a remote section of 

the Thembisile Hani Local Municipality, in a small 

village called Langkloof

The area is not accessible, transport is a challenge 

and there is high rate of unemployment. The 

community relies on one farm for employment and 

90% of the households in the area are child-headed.

During a school visit, the principal said that, in 2014, 

the Matric pass rate was 62,5%. The school had 

registered 24 Matric learners and, out of the 24, only 

nine had Maths and Science as subjects. Out of the 

nine that were registered for Maths and Science, 

only six passed and the other three qualified to write 

supplementary exams.

On 25 February 2015, the NYDA extended support to 

the school and donated a mobile science laboratory, 

school shoes and sanitary towels to young girls. The 

handover was attended by Mr Kenny Morolong, 

NYDA Deputy Executive Chairperson; Councillor 

Mnguni, MMC: Social Development, Thembisile 

Philson Nonyana
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Hani Local Municipality; Ms Thembi Tyuku, Provincial Manager, Soul City; and officials from the Department 

of Social Development, Youth Development Unit, Thembisile Hani Local Municipality and Nkangala District 

Municipality.

The session started with a group career guidance session for Grades 11 and 12, and was followed by a 

motivational talk by a young NYDA beneficiary, Mr Crosswell Libazi. These young learners were also afforded 

an opportunity to interact with NYDA officials regarding the support available to them from the NYDA.

Scholarships - Turkey Scholarship

Simphiwe Magagula, Pat Mdluli, Lebogang Themba, Perseverance Guliwe and Banele Zondi are the five 

remaining scholars of the 13 that were awarded scholarships to study in Turkey. On 26 September 2014, 

these young minds met at the NYDA Head office in Midrand before their return to Turkey, following a school 

break vacation. The Turkey Scholarship project was an initiative that emanated from a bilateral agreement 

between the Republic of South Africa and Turkey. The Turkish government awarded 13 scholarships for study 

abroad in fields that would help address the skills shortage in South Africa. The Department of International 

Relations and Co-operation then tasked the NYDA with selecting suitable candidates to study towards 

qualifications in engineering, information technology, biomedical technology, commerce and law.

Lebogang Themba, a 22-year-old from Hammanskraal, envisioned 

herself in a lab, wearing a white coat and dispelling medical myths 

and age-old superstitions. “Since my mother introduced me to her 

friend who is a pharmacist, I have been intrigued by the profession,” 

says Lebogang. Now, her curiosity has led to her studying towards a 

BSc, majoring in Biology, at Abant Izzet Baysal University in Turkey. 

Her long-term goals are to open a laboratory and continue reading 

and researching on the science of solving the supposed myths 

involved in traditional cultural.

Simphiwe Magagula, Pat Mdluli, Lebogang Themba, Perseverance Guliwe and Banele Zondi
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For Perserverance Guliwe, his journey towards a BSc in Mechanical 

Engineering is a step closer to his dream of opening his own 

production firm, which will analyse and perfect the process of mineral 

beneficiation. “Our country possesses much of the world’s platinum 

group metals. I think it’s time for us to explore local beneficiation as 

a serious solution towards growing our economy,” says Guliwe.

“I think my contribution to the world will be to uplift and develop 

the rural areas of my country through educating my community in 

KZN about the incredible opportunities civil engineering can bring,” 

says Banele Zondi, who is in her third year BSc Civil Engineering and 

plans to open her own construction company.

Simphiwe Magagula, who almost joined the accounting profession, is 

glad to have made the decision to rather study chemical engineering. 

This decision has allowed him to further his studies abroad! This is a 

dream come true for the 22-year-old from Nhlazatshe, Mpumalanga.

Mathematics mastermind Pat Mduli from Kabokweni, Mpumalanga, 

who is studying at the Middle East Technical University, plans to 

complete his masters and then do a bit of part-time teaching in FET 

colleges. “I’d like to give the students a little bit of direction,” says 

this Maths enthusiast.

All five of these young scholars have made it against all odds. They have made friends with scholars from all 

over the world and continue to learn innovative solutions that can help developing nations such as South 

Africa. This scholarship has offered them more than just an academic qualification: it has exposed them to 

cultural ex-change that will forever change their outlook on life.
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Grant Programme

Advocate Mavuso (30) completed his law degree at University of Zululand in 2008. He then worked for 

the Legal Aid Board SA as a candidate attorney for three years, after which he joined Shabangu Mfundo 

Attorneys as a legal consultant. In 2013, he qualified to practise as an advocate. Advocate Mavuso and 

Advocate Shabangu opened their own legal practice in Witbank. They had no capital to finance office 

furniture, however, and that was hindering their business. They have to maintain a certain standard to ensure 

that they attracted clients. They approached the NYDA requesting support. A grant amounting to R49 754 

was approved to finance office furniture.

They will be offered further non-financial support services, including branding and printing, which will then 

be followed by the installation of a financial management system. They thanked the NYDA for the support 

and expressed their appreciation of the efforts made by the team in assisting them with realising their 

dream.

Santino Projects (Pty) Ltd (trading as Santino Body 

Essentials) was founded in April 2012 by Beauty 
Motsepe. Santino Body Essentials specialises in 

manufacturing clothing such as T-shirts, aprons, 

bathrobes and uniforms for corporate institutions, 

hotels and event companies. They also sell a wide 

range of body grooming essentials such as handmade 

soaps, body scrubs, lotions and body washes, all of 

which are proudly South African. Clients are also 

given the option of creating a gift hamper with a 

combination of the products offered, for example, a 

personalised bathrobe and grooming kit.

Beauty Motsepe is a young person who received 

assistance from the NYDA and attended the NYDA EDP. Upon completion, she applied for the grant 

programme. She received a grant to purchase an industrial sewing machine, valued at R50 000.

“This programme gave me the stepping stone to go out and really make my dreams a reality. The grant 

provided me with great assistance, as it made it easier and faster to achieve my dreams. I am truly grateful 

to the NYDA,” says Beauty.

Visit www.santinobodyessentials.co.za to view the range of products and hampers which are on offer.

Beauty Motsepe with Deputy Minister Buti Manamela
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Mr. Mmeshi Hercules Kgaphola, a 29-year young, 

ambitious and innovative young man, had a dream and 

decided to make it a reality. This young, enthusiastic 

entrepreneur identified a need in our everyday life 

and decided to make money out of it. He designed a 

product called Fingermate. This product is used as a 

grocery bag holder.

After working with different distributors, he saw 

the danger of being swallowed up by these more 

experienced and well-known distributors. He decided 

to take a bold and risky step, and manufacture and 

distribute Fingermate under his own company name. 

He then approached the NYDA to help him ease into this new business venture. He not only received business 

support, but was awarded a grant to the value of R48 320.

Mr Kgaphola has since been approached by different distributors offering him business. His relationship with 

the NYDA will not only end there. Further financial and non-financial support will be given to him to ensure that 

Fingermate grows and is able to create employment for other young people.

Errol Jaftha (33 years old male) is a young, passionate, 

energetic entrepreneur and active community 

member. He started selling cleaning materials 3 years 

ago from his bedroom and also  door to door. 

After years of knocking door to door selling his 

cleaning products, Errol finally opened his first 

cleaning chemicals and detergents shop in Grootbak 

Rivier, Mossel Bay. Now called Eden healthcare and 

Hygiene Solutions, Errol’s shop started operating 

June 2013.

Errol’s business faced the typical woes that are 

confronted by numerous small-medium businesses. 

Poor cash flow, high renting costs and insufficient 

stock threatened the longevity of Errol’s business.

Relief came when Errol applied for NYDA grant funding and received R19 778.50 to replenish his stock and 

cover rental costs. This cash injection helped the business pick up product sales. As a result, Errol has now 

been able to further expand his footprint to George, where he opened another shop. 

Errol is an inquisitive and active entrepreneur. He always attended networking conferences and workshops. 

Through this, he met up with a manager from Saetra Health. Saetra Health is a reputable national importer and 

distributor of equipment, parts, chemicals, and other inputs to researchers, scientists, engineers and medical 

personnel.

After undergoing the necessary training at Saetra, Errol was selected to be Saetra’s distributing agent for the 

Mmeshi Hercules Kgaphola

Errol Jaftha
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Eastern and Western Cape region. Now, Errol employs four people in his business and is still going strong!

In-between running his business and networking, Errol is also a radio presenter at Heartbeat 103.9fm. His show 

is dedicated to motivating the youth on making better choices when it comes to their lives and careers. He also 

runs an NGO known as “Seed of Hope Garden Route”. This NGO is operated by the youth in his community 

and is focused on connecting young people with bursaries, learnerships and other employment opportunities. 

They also run a mentorship program that is very active, with 70 young people attending our classes. “I can 

honestly say it is a difficult journey but it’s all worth it. Like our President said -“Everybody has a got a good 

story to tell”. The Lord really changed me and gave me a heart for our community and our youth” says Mr 

Jaftha

The NYDA grant programme came to the rescue in 

the restoration of the popular Russel Road Car Wash 

in Central Port Elizabeth. God’s Time Car Wash, as it’s 

known in Port Elizabeth, was left with no equipment 

and a broken structure, owing to fire damage. The 

business desperately needed to quickly bounce 

back to maintain the high traffic volumes and sustain 

the jobs it created.

The business owner, Nomaxolisa Regina Isiaka, 

applied for a grant at the NYDA Port Elizabeth 

branch and was awarded funding to the value of R9 

495 to purchase a high-pressure water dispensing 

machine, two vacuum cleaners and consumables.

Motorists no longer think twice about the quality of service of the carwash. Bringing their cars to the chillaxing 

environment that God’s Time Car Wash provides, is absolute bliss!

In February 2015, Kuzeke Kuse visited the NYDA branch in Port Elizabeth, where she successfully applied 

for grant funding to the value of R49 800. She is 30 years old and holds a BA in Media, Communication 

and Culture. She started her career in media and 

communication as an intern in 2007, before becoming 

a news reader and compiler for a local radio station. 

She decided to start her own business, Daring 

Media, which specialises in branding, advertising, 

communication and events management.

She already secured an SEDA ICT incubator as a 

client, as well as handling the media and protocol 

during the Eastern Cape state funeral of late 

Reverend Xundu. Through the grant programme, the 

NYDA assisted Kuzeke with purchasing computer 

Nomaxolisa Regina Isiaka

Kuzeke Kuse
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equipment and media hardware that the company was in dire need of. It also provided capacity for her 

business to do all its media work in-house and be flexible enough to respond quickly to opportunities in the 

fast-paced media industry.

Her business employs four people and is currently managing the media and organisation of the SEDA ICT 

Incubation Day event, to be held on 30 March 2015, which will have dignitaries such as Minister Lindiwe Zulu 

in attendance.

Khaya Ngcobo from Indonsa Consulting & Training 

received a grant to purchase 22 laptops for his 

training centre. He conducts end-user training 

for NGOs, the private sector and the government 

sector. Recently, he trained Department of Labour 

and Ethekwini Municipality employees. Currently, 

his business employs five people on a fixed-term 

contract, based on the duration of the project, and 

has two permanent staff members, including himself. 

In the event that he he is not conducting training, 

he is able to hire out his laptops at a fee to other 

training providers. This has increased the income 

of his business. “The grant assisted the business 

to grow and it’s no longer hiring equipment as it 

used to. It now owns its equipment and can maximise its profit,” says Khaya. Indonsa plans to venture into 

technical training and employ more young people.

Mr Sifiso Thela, a young, passionate and ambitious 

entrepreneur from Mpumalanga, saw a business 

opportunity to provide funeral services in his 

community. Even though the costs of providing 

a funeral service kept on escalating, the demand 

remained high. In 2011, Sifiso went on to register 

Phumalanga Funeral Service (Pty) Ltd. This 100% 

black youth-owned business went on to acquire 

a membership certificate from the Econo Group 

Scheme, which is underwritten by Channel Life, a 

member of the Sanlam Group.

Sifiso then visited the NYDA eMalahleni branch 

office to request financial assistance, in order for him 

to purchase equipment that will enable him to operate his business more efficiently. He applied for a grant 

and was approved to receive R20 365,66. With these funds, he was able to purchase coffins and artificial 

green mats.

Khaya Ngcobo

Sifiso Thela
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Phumulanga Funeral Services is currently operating from rented premises at Verena Cluster, which is owned 

by the Thembisile Hani Local Municipality.

With the revenue already earned, they have begun with the first and second phase of building their business 

premises, which will consist of an office and a mortuary. The third phase will be the coffin showroom and 

storage space.

To further empower Sifiso, the NYDA has offered this young businessman Economic Development 

Programme training and vouchers for branding, design and marketing.

Revelations Glass and Aluminium is an existing business in Rustenburg North manufacturing glass and 

aluminium products such as windows, doors and showers. The business was started by its sole owner, 

Mr. Mahlatji Mohlahlo, after acquiring work experience at two glass and aluminium companies. He then 

invested his personal savings on start-up equipment to start his own business.

Aluminium windows and doors, including garage doors, are the trend in today’s modern houses, hence, the 

high demand. The applicant has ample knowledge when it comes to this sector. Operations include him 

meeting with clients to get a feel of what the client is looking for. He would then design the products and, 

on approval by potential clients, obtain pricing of the required material from his suppliers. This then enables 

him to issue his client with a quotation. The client is then required to make a deposit, which normally covers 

the cost of material.

On receipt of the ordered material from his suppliers, who deliver, the applicant starts working on the 

products and transports them to his client’s home, where he installs them as an added service to his clients. 

This is when the clients pay the balance for the finished product.

The NYDA funded the business to purchase a machine required to finish off the products. This machine is 

always used and he normally hires it out, increasing revenue. Part of the grant amount was used to purchase 

stock.

Catalogue Staffing Solutions is a recruitment 

company that specialises in high-profile positions in 

the hospitality, financial, engineering and medical 

sectors. Owner Mnxumanisi Mahamba looked to 

boost the image of his new company and visited 

the NYDA branch in Port Elizabeth to see what kind 

of products and services the Agency could offer 

him. After much consultation and assessment, Mr 

Mahamba was awarded a grant to the value of R9 

900. With this, he purchases office equipment and 

stationery. Catalogue Staffing Solutions also received 

vouchers from the Business Consultancy Services 

programme for branding and website designing.

Mnxumanisi Mahamba
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Mozihe Properties CC was registered in 2007 and 

started operating officially in 2013. The business was 

founded by owners Musawenkosi Magwanyana and 

Mondli Nsimbi. The applicants are both electrical 

engineering graduates from the Durban University 

of Technology and previously worked as electricians. 

The business focuses mainly on providing electrical 

services for individuals, government and the 

private sector within the Nkangala District. Services 

provided include installations, maintenance, issuing 

of a Certificate of Compliance, meter conversion, 

time controller and repairs.

Mr Magwanyana and Mr Nsimbi faced many 

constraints before their business could operate as effectively as it does now. The equipment they used was 

old and outdated. This forced them to outsource most of their services, which increased their operating 

costs.

They then approached the NYDA for financial assistance and were granted R46 364,57 to purchase testing, 

power and hand tools. Mozihe Properties has now realised higher profits and is attracting more customers!

Mzwandile Goodman Khumalo’s journey towards 

opening a pharmacy started when he walked into the 

doors of the NYDA Durban branch. He applied for the 

Business Consultancy Services programme and was 

granted a business plan voucher to the value of R10 

000. With this voucher, he was able to secure a loan, 

amounting to R780 627, from the Small Enterprise 

Finance Agency to start Theku Plaza Pharmacy. The 

NYDA continued to empower this young BPharm 

graduate with a second voucher for marketing and 

promotional material, valued at R6 000.

Since starting operations in February 2014, Theku 

Plaza Pharmacy has been geared towards increasing 

the life expectancy of individuals by providing optimal 

healthcare services to the community. The business is 

situated in a busy area, next to Shoprite at the recently opened mall in Osizweni.

Theku Plaza Pharmacy dispenses prescribed medication, medication for acute illnesses, as well as over-

the-counter medication. In its in-house clinic, health professionals conduct screenings for blood pressure, 

cholesterol and blood glucose. They also conduct tests for uric acid, pregnancy and HIV, and pap tests for 

women, as well as collecting blood specimens.

Musawenkosi Magwanyana

Mzwandile Goodman Khumalo
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Ntshepeng Mofokeng was born and bred in 

Klipspruit Pimville, Soweto. Ntshepeng’s passion 

for designing was nurtured by her grandmother, 

who, over the years, taught her how to use a sewing 

machine.

In 2012, she took her passion for design and started a 

business. She is now the owner of Tsa Motse Lifestyle 

Concepts (Pty) Ltd, which designs and manufactures 

curtains and bed linen, and installs blinds. Tsa 

Motse Lifestyle Concepts received funding from the 

NYDA amounting to R49 700 to purchase additional 

machines and equipment. As a result, the business is 

now thriving and employs two full-time employees.

Mofokeng continues to attend numerous exhibitions, 

where she gets to showcase her designs and products to a wider market. Following her passions and turning 

them into profit has allowed her to reach greater heights.

The number of men who run successful commercial 

farms in South Africa continues to outweigh the number 

of women doing so. Lack of resources and proper 

skills transfer continue to impede the progression of 

women from subsistence to commercial farming. For 

Katlego Kgobane, these obstacles do not hamper 

her vision of one day becoming an industry leader. 

She and her business partner are very energetic about 

growing Reebs Investment Farming and Project (Pty) 

Ltd. These two young people invested their personal 

savings, and purchased one chicken coop and a 

couple of live chickens to get their business going. 

The chickens are sold live or slaughtered, depending 

on the customers’ needs.

Since they started operating in 2014, they have only 

been able to keep one batch of chicks at a time. Only 

once that batch was sold, could they start cleaning the coop and preparing for the next batch. This caused 

massive delays in receiving another batch, ultimately leading to a period where there were no sales, due to 

no stock.

Katlego, one of the directors, approached the NYDA for financial assistance to purchase another chicken 

coop and stock. After undergoing training and applying for the NYDA grant, the two business partners were 

able to purchase another chicken coop with the grant they received. The business now has a constant flow 

of stock and is able to generate a healthy monthly income.

This financial relief has allowed them to dream even bigger. Some of their long-term goals include having an 

abattoir where they can slaughter their own chickens, instead of outsourcing the services.

Ntshepeng Mofokeng

Katlego Kgobane
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Sibani Engineering is a waste management company based at the Emalahleni Local Municipality. Sibani 

Engineering’s journey to success started when Mpande Masonde saw the high demand for waste 

management services in his community and decided to start his own waste management company. At the 

time, he was still a trainee metallurgist at Anglo Coal. Although Mpande used his own money to start Sibani 

Engineering, he still needed more capital to meet the high demand for his services. He then approached 

the NYDA for further financial assistance.

A grant amounting to R50 000 was approved for Mpande to purchase three skip bins. He further received 

a contract from Shanduka to collect waste. The company has since created four permanent employment 

opportunities and has the potential to create more. To further support his business, the NYDA will offer Mr 

Masondo a financial management and payroll system from the NYDA voucher programme.

Siphakamise Projects is a 100% blacked-owned business which specialises in the manufacture, supply and 

sale of candles. Msimelo Mtini, who is the managing director, established this business in 2007. Siphakamise 

Projects sells standard candles, as well as customising candles according to customers’ requests. From 

funerals to birthdays, Siphakamise Projects can make your event memorable.

After Mtini took part in the NYDA mentorship programme, a grant of R8 000 was approved to help him 

purchase stock and production machinery.

“I feel confident and empowered by the intervention I have received from the NYDA in helping my business 

grow,” says Mtini. The business is currently located in Lotus Gardens, Pretoria and also has a branch at 

Vaalbank in Queenstown, Eastern Cape.

Siphiwe Shabangu, a 35-year-old from Khayelitsha, was bitten by the entrepreneurial bug. Although 

he qualified as an electrical engineer at the Vaal 

University of Technology, Siphiwe made it his 

business to follow his dream of being his own boss. 

His curiosity about the motor car industry found 

him interning at a friend’s business, where he spent 

a lot of time learning the operations of the motor 

spares shop. After grasping the details of running 

the business, he decided to start his own business. In 

2013, Siphiwe used his savings to open Shab’s Auto 

& Motor Spares.

Shab’s Auto & Motor Spares was struggling to meet 

the demand, due to insufficient stock. Customers 

would come looking for certain car components and 

Shab’s Auto Spares could not supply. This ultimately 

led to disappointed customers taking their business 

to bigger companies. To help his struggling business, 

Siphiwe approached the NYDA for assistance. He 

Siphiwe Shabangu
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received an NYDA grant of R49 900 to subsidise his stock. After this boost, he has had to employ three more 

young people to assist with promotions and sales!

“We at Shab’s Auto & Motor Spares are grateful to the NYDA and staff, for their patience and guidance 

throughout the funding process. Our challenge was shortage of stock and lack of human capital. We are now 

in a position where we can break even. Thank you, NYDA,” says Siphiwe Shabangu.

Vutivi Mashaba (26) walked into the NYDA Mbombela branch office seeking advice on how he could 

better his life. Coming from the rural community of 

Dwarsloop in Bushbuckridge, he was one of many 

young people who could not find employment, but 

remained hopeful.

With his curiosity and positive attitude, Vutivi sat 

down with one of the NYDA staff members, who 

told him of the many products and services that the 

Agency had to offer. It was during that time that he 

decided to explore entrepreneurship as a form of 

earning an income. He then enrolled for the NYDA 

EDP, which is training that the Agency offers free of 

charge to help young people acquire basic skills in 

running a business.

“After completing the programme, I knew that I 

wanted to be an entrepreneur. I immediately started 

the grant application process. On 5 June 2014, I received a life-changing call from the NYDA grants 

administrator telling me that I had been approved for the R9 725 I had applied for to buy machinery,” says 

Vutivi.

Having grabbed this opportunity with both hands, Vutivi is now the proud owner of Well Done Car Services. 

His business specialises in painting and repairing, tyre sealing, windscreen repair, air-conditioning regassing, 

body polishing and mags cleaning. His business also received a voucher for branding and marketing through 

the NYDA Business Consultancy Services.

Mashaba says he is ready to spread his wings to exploit other opportunities within the NYDA. He is currently 

working on building his banking record, so that, in the near future, he may make use of the Youth Fund 

(NYDA, IDC and SEFA). He is also looking forward to being matched with a mentor through the NYDA 

mentorship programme, which will advise him on how to take his business forward.

Katlego Kgobane
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Business Vouchers

Mduduzi Matsane is the owner and founder of 

Afripot Décor, which was formally operating at 

Hammanskraaal, west of Tshwane, in 2014. Mduduzi 

is a skilled potter and art crafter with more than 10 

years’ industry experience gained from working with 

his father.

Afripot Décor specialises in mass production, 

from bathroom sets, African pots and art, home 

décor ornaments to dinnerware. The company has 

employed nine full-time employees, four of which 

were recruited from the NYDA Jobs database. 

Matsane also received non-financial assistance from 

the Business Consultancy Services (voucher) programme.

The company recently landed a contract from Pilanesberg Game Reserve Resort to craft rhino banks, and 

was also tasked with leading rhino-poaching awareness campaigns within local schools.

Darren Barnes (25), Managing Director of Perfect 

Solutions, started doing marketing when he was 19, 

as an assistant to the Marketing Manager of an NGO 

in Cape Town. Shortly afterwards, he was accepted 

by the Raymond Ackerman Academy (RAA) of 

Entrepreneurial Development.

The academy offers training to budding business 

owners who do not have access to tertiary education. 

He was trained and mentored by the RAA and 

its founder Raymond Ackerman himself. Darren 

was awarded the Raymond Ackerman Academy 

Top Achiever Award, as well as the Pioneer Foods 

Investment Award, which was awarded to Perfect 

Solutions for its entrepreneurial development and 

growth.

Through hard work and sheer determination, he established himself as the preferred agency that specialises 

in below-the-line (BTL) marketing. To date, Perfect Solutions has worked with high-end brands such as 

Pioneer Foods, The Ceres Beverage Company (Pepsi, Liqui-Fruit, and Lipton Ice Tea), Simba, Elizabeth 

Arden, KWV and Phillip Morris (Marlboro and Chesterfield). Darren has invested smartly in growing and 

developing a sustainable business in the very competitive BTL market.

The company has a presence in the Western Cape, Gauteng and KwaZulu-Natal, and supports local 

entrepreneurship initiatives, both by offering internships and by involvement in local projects.

Darren Barnes

Mduduzi Matsane
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Perfect Solutions has been in existence for five years and currently employs 16 people, with an additional 

300 employed on a casual basis every month. He was very fortunate to receive big contracts during this year, 

which will enable him to carry the business for another few years.

Mr Barnes is a proud beneficiary of the NYDA. Through the Business Consultancy Services programme, he 

received vouchers to assist him with compiling a business and marketing plan. He also received branding 

and financial accounting vouchers.

Sifiso Mkhize is destined for a great future. He owns Neom Trading Enterprise and currently employs two 

people. He is determined to achieve even more through his business.

The NYDA has played a supporting role in his business development by assisting him with a branding and 

promotional material voucher from the NYDA’s Business Consultancy Services voucher programme. The 

programme offers young entrepreneurs access to Business Development Support services, such as business 

plan development, bookkeeping, marketing, tendering support, website development and many more, for 

just R200 per service.

”I am very glad that there is an organisation like the NYDA which is able to assist youth to achieve their 

dreams,’’ says Sifiso.

He has always been ambitious and has managed to develop a good working relationship with potential 

clients. This has seen his business secure tenders and grow to have a projected annual turnover of R960 000.

When asked what his advice would be to the youth, particularly in Emalahleni, he says that they should 

dedicate themselves completely to doing what they love.

Siyabonga Zolile Ndlovu, from Eersterivier in Cape Town, is one of the successful entrepreneurs who used 

his savings to start a construction company. In 2012, he registered S’D Construction, which is a division of 

S’DWEDWE Holdings Pty (Ltd). S’D Construction specialises in project management and civil, construction 

and property development. Within a year of operation, the business has grown to a fully fledged entity, 

which is currently busy with projects in the Kuils River area, in the Western Cape. “The ultimate goal is to 

meet needs and better the company. S’D Construction seeks to become one of the leading service providers 

in the southern hemisphere. All can be achieved through excellence and innovation” says Siyabonga.

Siyabonga is one of the many NYDA beneficiaries who made use of the Business Consultancy Services 

programme. He received a business plan voucher which assisted him in improving and growing his business.
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Entrepreneurship Development Programme (EDP)

The NYDA Rustenburg branch 
partnered with the Rustenburg 
Local Municipality in conducting 
Entrepreneurship Development 
Management Training from 26–30 
January 2015. A total of 23 young 
people attended and completed the 
training. This training is designed to 
assist young people with learning the 
basics of running the many aspects 
of a business, such as financial 
management, marketing strategy 
development and market research.

Most of these young people have 
already started businesses in different 
sectors, such as events management, 
construction and engineering. 
The next step for these emerging 
entrepreneurs is for the NYDA to 

assist them with applications for individual and co-operative grants.

A business initiative was presented to youth of the Western Cape by the South African Business Resources 
Institute (SABRI) for community organisations in peri-rural areas, such as Manenberg, Langa and Khayelitsha. 

The intention of this initiative was to provide 
unemployed youth with an opportunity to 
start their own businesses. SABRI, a non-
profit company, specialises in the facilitation 
of business resources that are required to 
establish, grow and increase the sustainability 
of SMEs and non-governmental organisations 
(NGOs).

The Manenberg Leather Works Co-
operative, a group of five young females, was 
one of the beneficiaries of this programme 
that received entrepreneurship development 
training and co-operative development 
support from the NYDA. Their co-operative 
manufactures leather shoes and accessories. 
This group of young entrepreneurs, now 

based at Manenberg People’s Centre, are one of the few co-operatives that are able to create jobs and 
develop skills for other unemployed youth of Manenberg.

SABRI, along with its partners, donated equipment, raw materials, a sewing machine and tools through 
generous sponsorships received from The Foschini Group.

Manenberg Leather Works is currently receiving business planning, branding and designing services from the 

NYDA’s Business Consultancy Services programme and are also in the process of applying for a grant.

EDP Management Training recipients

Manenberg Leather Works Co-operative
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Social Responsibility
The NYDA implements its programmes and projects in accordance with the key performance areas, and is 

guided by policy. There are many programmes and projects implemented by young people and/or youth 

development organisations, however, which fall outside the NYDA’s programmes and project policies, 

and guidelines. As part of its efforts to mainstream young people into the economy and to develop their 

livelihoods, the NYDA has a Corporate Social Investment budget, which is utilised to provide donations and 

sponsorship funding to projects run by young people, or projects aimed at developing young people. All 

initiatives that the NYDA supports through donations and sponsorships are, therefore, directly in accordance 

with the organisational key performance areas.

All donations and sponsorship requests are evaluated by the Donations and Sponsorships Committee, in 

accordance with the directives in the Donations and Sponsorships Charter.

Donations and Sponsorship definitions

1. Donations
Any donation of cash or a redundant NYDA physical resource may be made. No return on investment is 

expected from the expenditure on donations, except that it should promote the NYDA’s image as a socially 

responsible and caring organisation creating goodwill among the public. Donations are inherently of a 

charitable nature.

Donations are approved in three categories: philanthropic, asset or strategic.

a. Philanthropic donations
A donation to a philanthropic cause is a once-off payment to youth or organisations and is deemed to add 

value to the objectives of that individual or organisation, which needs to be directly aligned to the NYDA’s 

mandate primarily aimed at disadvantaged youth/disadvantaged communities. Examples include:

• facilitating partnership between young people and other institutions

• showing clear impact

• having a broad community impact.

b. Asset donations
An asset donation includes redundant, movable or fixed NYDA assets. These assets are disposed of in 

accordance with the NYDA’s finance and procurement policy.

c. Strategic donations
Strategic donations are considered for approval where they are deemed fit for the strategic importance of 

the organisation and the nature of the business. This type of donation is given to initiatives or projects, such 

as the following:

• There are significant commemorative days recognised in South Africa. The NYDA will identify in 

which days it will participate annually based on organisational priorities.

• Payment towards a cause, for example, disaster relief, administered by such organisations that are 

deemed of strategic importance to the NYDA’s objectives and nature of business.

• A donation that is deemed of a strategic nature and is a business imperative, aligned with the NYDA’s 

core business offering.
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If a strategic donation is not approved, the NYDA’s operations may be negatively affected.

Such donations are deemed of strategic importance to the NYDA and convey that the NYDA is a committed 

and respected role-player in local communities.

2. Sponsorships
Sponsorships are given for business reasons. A sponsorship is an investment which creates the expectation 

of future returns. The difference between a donation and a sponsorship lies in the motivation for the NYDA.

Through sponsorships, the NYDA strives to:

• build the reputation of the organisation

• forge new relationships and/or strengthen current ones

• contribute towards social cohesion (nation-building)

• address social priorities (community and national needs)

• build brand loyalty

• create visibility and awareness

• drive business imperatives and showcase the NYDA’s work.

As a result of a large portion of our support to youth and/or organisations meaningfully contributing to the 

development of youth, we have been able to touch and positively impact the lives of many young South 

Africans. However, this continues to be a drop in the ocean, given the vast needs of young people who 

require our services against our financial capacity. However, the Agency continues to forge ahead.
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Overview of Human Resources 
Matters at the Public Entity
The Agency continues to align its human resources (HR) to its mandate, as outlined in the NYDA Act, 2008 

(Act 54 of 2008) and its strategic plan, despite the financial limitations it has endured within the last three 

years. The key services that the HR Unit offers, include:

• Provision of HR services to the Operations Executive team to address current and anticipated 

organisational needs and challenges

• Surfacing issues and trends, and anticipated legislative and regulatory requirements

• Role-modelling innovative approaches to organisational challenges and opportunities

• Customer services to all NYDA stakeholders

• Providing consultation, advisory and coaching services to our leaders, teams and employees on a full 

range of HR products and services.

As part of the strategic repositioning of the NYDA, we have embarked on an organisational realignment 

project to enable required strategic shift for us to be focused and relevant to the needs and aspirations of 

the youth. More so ensuring that the NYDA is positioned towards being a credible and capable Agency.

Set HR priorities for the year under review and the impact of these priorities
The HR Realignment Project, aimed at dealing with the disparities inherited during the merger of Umsobomvu 

Youth Fund and the National Youth Commission, was implemented with the focus on the organisational 

structure design, change management and culture change. The Price Waterhouse Cooper (PWC) team 

assisted in designing and developing macro and micro structure, which will address the achievement of a 

streamlined organisation that will be responsive, capable and credible.

Workforce planning framework and key strategies to attract and recruit a skilled and capable 
workforce
According to the information and commitment given to National Treasury, with regard to management of 

structure and complement, the NYDA will cap the number of employees to a maximum of 500 over the next 

two years.     

Employee Performance Management Framework
The NYDA previously used the performance management policy to evaluate the performance of the Agency 

and individual staff as a means of supporting the organisation to achieve its objectives, as set out in the 

Agency strategy. This policy proved to have certain limitations, which included non-standardisation, and this 

prompted the NYDA to review its performance management process, and introduce a more comprehensive 

and uniform performance management approach that encourages and rewards employee performance.

The present Performance Management Policy was developed and approved to regulate the achievement of 

strategic objectives against individual and organisation performance.    

    

Employee wellness programmes
The Employee Safety and Wellness Policy is aimed at:
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• regulating and managing particular health conditions which have the potential to significantly impact 

employees’ wellness and performance

• encouraging and supporting employees to contribute towards social cohesion through their 

participation in and contribution to community development, and ensuring compliance with relevant 

employee health and wellness legislation.

The key activities implemented for the year under review include:

• blood drive

• Employee Walk the Talk

• Tuberculosis Scare

• EAP services

• wellness days

• HIV programme

• policy development. 

   

Outstanding achievements
• Positions were earmarked for critical skills to benefit the NYDA core business operations. Recruitment 

was done to fill these business imperative positions and a total of 98 positions were filled.

• Although invitations for applications were open to all, including people with disabilities (PWDs), no 

applications were received from PWDs.

• The Recruitment and Selection Policy was reviewed and submitted for approval.

• When recruiting for branches, due consideration was taken to improve the Employment Equity target 

for the organisation. Employment Equity targets were improved by 2%. The Employment Equity 

report was submitted to the Department of Labour in January 2015. The Employment Equity target 

for 2015/2016 will focus mainly on PWDs and race.

Challenges faced by the public entity
The current HR value proposition had been more reactive in nature and has not developed an HR philosophy 

that encourages systems thinking across all functions. Less emphasis had been placed on the client and the 

internal business process was not integrated with the client in mind. These disjointed efforts resulted in 

the HR offering not being appreciated at the level required by the organisation. There was an effort from 

leadership to address this gap and an external contractor was sourced to assist in the review of organisational 

structures against the newly defined and adopted Turnaround Strategy Objectives.

  

Future HR plans /goals
The HR Plan was developed to address the HR needs of the NYDA. The Strategic Objective that the NYDA 

HR delivery was aligned to was to establish a credible, efficient and effective organisation. On the completion 

and entrenchment of this plan, a further HR Plan 2016/2020 will be developed, which will continue to support 

the NYDA Five-Year Strategic Plan. This plan will act as a route marker against desired deliverables.

Code of Conduct and Ethics, and Policy Updates
The Code of Conduct and Ethics (“Code”) was adopted by the NYDA Board to maintain the standard of 
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business conduct for the NYDA. The Code is applicable to all NYDA staff, and serves as a central point 

of guidance and reference for employees in their day-to-day decision-making, while conducting NYDA 

business. Furthermore, it regulates how they manage the following matters, among others: personal 

conduct and discipline; management of private duties and interests; management of relationships with 

internal and external stakeholders; and use and safeguarding of NYDA information, property and resources. 

The implementation of the Code is supported by other organisational policies. Breach of the provisions of 

the Code is regarded as misconduct, which is subject to correction through a disciplinary procedure of the 

NYDA.

The Code was reviewed and approved during the period under review. The following policies were also 

reviewed and approved:

• Disciplinary Code and Procedure

• Grievance Policy and Procedure

• Learning and Development Policy.

Health, Safety and Environmental Issues
The NYDA developed and implemented the employee health and wellness policy. This policy focuses on 

occupational health issues, as well as general employee wellness. The policy was reviewed and approved 

during the period under review. In the last financial year, the NYDA experienced a minimum of two 

occupational injuries or incidents. However, the Agency does acknowledge the need to improve the general 

physical working conditions of employees. To this end, a fully fledged occupational health and safety policy 

is being developed.

In the area of employee wellness, the NYDA implemented the Employee Assistance programme, which 

provides counselling, advice and educational programmes to its employees and their families. This was 

done in conjunction with ICAS Southern Africa (Pty) Ltd (a wellness service provider). Over the medium 

term, the NYDA will be monitoring and evaluating its cluster’s implementation of plans on employee 

health and wellness. The NYDA will also provide the necessary support in this regard through the provision 

and utilisation of the necessary tools and technologies, aimed at the optimal achievement of all targeted 

employee health and wellness programmes.

During the period under review, the following activities were undertaken to comply with the provisions of 

the Occupational Health and Safety Act (OHSA):

• Standardisation of the OHSA checklist

• Occupational Health and Safety Officers maintained and reported on the inspections conducted

• Occupational Health and Safety Committee meeting was conducted and reported quarterly.
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Human Resources Oversight Statistics 
Personnel cost by programme

Programme

Total 
Expenditure 

for the Entity 
(R’000)

Personnel 
Expenditure (R’000)

Personnel Exp. 
as a %of Total 

Exp. (R’000)
No. of 

Employees

Average Personnel 
Cost per Employee 

(R’000)

Office of the Chief 
Executive Officer     16 642 046,27     10 097 284,21 60,67333335 18                 560 960,23 

Officer of the Chief 
Operations Officer       1 193 447,18       1 039 359,97 87,08889571 2                 519 679,99 

Finance and Supply 
Chain     17 454 171,60       8 609 222,78 49,32472865 22                 391 328,31 

Information 
Technology and 
Communications     25 994 464,23       7 364 733,52 28,33193043 11                 669 521,23 

Communications     32 402 151,99       8 531 381,73 26,32967629 18                 473 965,65 

Corporate Services     37 666 669,35     16 684 657,10 44,29554667 40                 417 116,43 

Corporate Partnerships     12 418 971,20       8 837 891,19 71,16443905 14                 631 277,94 

Economic 
Development     75 731 165,35     14 782 817,05 19,52012356 32                 461 963,03 

NYS and Skills 
Development     80 154 066,13     20 194 311,02 25,19436879 30                 673 143,70 

Research and Policy     19 563 449,70       8 775 040,38 44,85425891 30                 292 501,35 

Service Delivery 
Channels     85 223 210,98     61 221 713,48 71,83690074 218                 280 833,55 

Office of the Executive 
Board     32 021 066,00     10 337 528,81 32,28352488 24                 430 730,37 

Total 436 464 879,98 176 475 941,24 40,43302207
                

459,00            5 803 021,77 

Personnel cost by salary band

Level
Personnel Expenditure 

(R’000)

% of Personnel Exp. to 
Total Personnel Cost 

(R’000) No. of Employees

Average Personnel 
Cost per Employee 

(R’000)

Top Management     10 551 000,00 5,978718643 3      3 517 000,00 

Senior Management     22 782 439,06 12,9096572 8      2 847 804,88 

Professional Qualified     21 041 488,07 11,92314823 50          420 829,76 

Skilled     64 066 072,88 36,30300676 190          337 189,86 

Semi-skilled     33 065 015,37 18,7362737 161          205 372,77 

Unskilled     20 551 925,87 11,64573807 42          489 331,57 

Board       4 418 000,00 2,503457394 5          883 600,00 

TOTAL 176 475 941,24 100,00                   459,00 8 701 128,84 

Performance rewards 

Programme Performance Rewards
Personnel Expenditure 

(R’000)
% of Performance Rewards 

to Total Personnel Cost 

Top Management         1 589 410,23     10 551 000,00 15.06

Senior Management         2 713 709,02     22 782 439,06 11.91

General Staff         5 299 308,03   138 724 502,18 3.82

TOTAL        9 602 427,28  172 057 941,24 5.58

NB: This is the amount for bonuses declared in the previous financial year.
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Training Costs

Directorate/
Business Unit

 Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000)

 Training 
Expenditure 

(R’000) 

Training 
Expenditure as a 

% of Personnel 
Cost

No. of employees 
trained

 Average training 
cost per employee

Training for the 
NYDA 

176 475 941,24 2 897 962,83 1,64 478 6 062,68

NB: This amount only reflects what was paid to training providers and excludes travel costs related to 

training, as well as in-service programmes conducted internally.

Employment and vacancies

Programme

2013/2014 
No. of 

Employees 

2014/2015 
Approved 

Posts

2014/2015 
No. of 

Employees 
 2014/2015 

Vacancies
 % of 

vacancies

Office of the Chief Executive Officer 17 30 18 12 9,38

Office of the Chief Operations Officer 13 14 2 12 9,38

Finance and Supply Chain 25 28 22 6 4,69

Information Technology and 
Communication 13 28 11 17 13,28

Communications 17 26 18 8 6,25

Corporate Services 34 48 40 8 6,25

Corporate Partnerships 14 18 14 4 3,13

Economic Development 30 56 32 24 18,75

(NYS) and Skills Development 32 39 30 9 7,03

Research and Policy 16 33 30 3 2,34

Service Delivery Channels 159 241 218 23 17,97

Office of the Executive Board 16 26 24 2 1,56

Employee Changes

Salary Band Employment at 
Beginning of Period Appointments  Terminations Employment at End 

of the Period

Top Management (E1–F2) 3 0 0 3

Senior Management (D3–D5) 8 2 2 8

Professional Qualified (D1–D2) 51 2 3 50

Skilled (C1–C5) 160 40 10 190

Semi-skilled (B1–B5) 130 33 2 161

Unskilled (A1–A3) 34 21 13 42

Board *  5

TOTAL 386 98 30 459

*NB. Non-executive Board members not included in previous period of 2013/14
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Reasons for staff leaving
Reason Number % of Total No. of Staff Leaving

Death 0 0.00

Resignation 15 0.50

Dismissal 0 0.00

Retirement 0 0.00

Ill health 1 0.03

Expiry of contract 14 0.47

Other 0 0.00

Total 30 100 %

Labour Relations: Misconduct and Disciplinary Action
Nature of Disciplinary Action Number

Verbal Warning 1

Written Warning 2

Final Written Warning 7

Dismissal 0

Equity Target and Employment Equity Status
Levels  MALE

 

African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management (E4–F2) 2 1 0 1 1 0 1 1

Senior Management (D5–E3) 2 2 1 1 2 0 0 1

Professional Qualified (D1–D2) 26 0 0 2 1 2 0 2

Skilled (C1–C5) 76 0 3 1 0 1 0 0

Semi-skilled (B1–B5) 54 0 4 1 0 1 1 0

Unskilled (A1–A3) 18 0 1 1 0 0 0 0

Board 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 179 3 9 7 4 4 2 2

Levels  FEMALE

 

African Coloured Indian White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top Management (E4–F2) 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1

Senior Management (D5–E3) 2 0 0 3 2 0 3 2

Professional Qualified (D1–D2) 18 0 10 1 2 0 3 0

Skilled (C1–C5) 96 0 0 1 0 1 0 0

Semi-skilled (B1–B5) 102 0 0 0 0 1 0 0

Unskilled (A1–A3) 23 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Board 3 0 0 0 1 0 0 0

TOTAL 244 2 10 7 5 4 6 4
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Levels Disabled staff 

 

Male Female

Current Target Current Target

Top Management (E1–E5) 0 0 0 0

Senior Management (D3–D5) 0 1 0 1

Professional Qualified (D1–D2) 4 0 0 1

Skilled (C1–C5) 0 1 0 1

Semi-skilled (B1–B5) 0 1 0 1

Unskilled (A1–A3) 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 4 3 0 4
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Nature of Risk Management
The Agency has a dedicated risk management unit that is guided by the Public Sector Risk Management 

framework used in rolling out its risk management activities. A culture of enterprise-wide risk management 

principles are communicated via risk policies and methodologies, in order to mitigate the main inherent risks 

the Agency is exposed to. The National Treasury Financial Management Capability Maturity Model is used to 

assess the Agency’s risk management maturity level. This assessment is used as a tool to monitor progress in 

implementing enterprise-wide risk management across the Agency. For the 2014/15 FY, the NYDA achieved 

a level 4 risk maturity level rating (Risk Managed Level). It has formally adopted risk management within its 

business process and widely communicated risk management throughout the Agency, enterprise-wide.

With assistance from the Risk Unit, each division is required to identify prioritised risks and develop a risk 

response strategy to address these risks.

With the assistance of appointed Risk Champions, the Risk Unit identifies emerging risks on an ongoing 

basis and brings them to management’s attention for mitigation.

The unit is assisted by the Audit Committee, delegated by the Board, which is responsible for providing 

oversight functions on the Enterprise-wide Risk Management Process.

Risk Management Strategies to Identify and Manage Risks
The Agency conducts a comprehensive risk assessment on an annual basis to review/update the Agency’s 

risk register, according to the approved Risk Management Strategy and Risk Management Implementation 

plan, as required by the National Treasury Public Sector Risk Management framework. During the risk 

assessment process, the responsibility for designing and implementing risk action plans for the key risks 

identified is delegated to the specific risk owners, namely from the Agency-appointed Risk Champions at 

Executive Management levels.

Governance
Each business unit is responsible for developing policies applicable to its operations and products. The Risk 

Unit ensures that the policies are in line with the Delegations Authority policy and, where necessary, advises 

on changes to the delegation policy. The Risk Unit is the custodian of the final signed-off policies and 

charters registered in the policy register. The unit facilitates the development of the strategic risk register, 

and monitors and reports on progress made in mitigation of risks to management and the Board.

A risk matrix is developed for all projects of the NYDA.

The Risk Unit has a standing invitation to attend all Board and Board Committee meetings, as well as the 

committees of the CEO.

Insurance
The Risk Unit is responsible for ensuring that the insurance requirements of the Agency are met. During the 

2014/15 FY, a new service provider, GIBs Insurance Broking, was appointed to process all NYDA insurance 

claims. To this end, limits are reviewed annually and claims managed on a monthly basis.
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Business Continuity
The Risk Management Unit and Information Communication Technology unit embarked on an exercise to 

update the Business Continuity Process for the NYDA in the 2014/15 FY. SITA was appointed as the service 

provider to conduct the Business Continuity Process.

Currently the project has two phases;

Phase 1 – Business Continuity Plan: 31 July 2015

Phase 2 – Disaster Recovery Plan: 31 September 2015

The completion of the Business Continuity process update is envisaged for the next financial year.

The Risk Unit ensures that the Business Continuity plans of the Agency are updated and in line with current 

operations.

Risk Management Strategies
The Agency implemented a risk management strategy, which was approved by the Board and is reviewed 

on an annual basis.

The strategy highlights the following areas:

1. The risk management policy statement

2. Definition of risk

3. Cultural approach and communication

4. Criteria for risk management

5. Risk management responsibilities

6. Training and awareness

7. Operational framework

8. Control assurance

9. Risk management framework process

10. Business continuity

11. Types of risk.

Risk-rating scales and categories have been defined.

Progress Made in Addressing Risks Identified
Executive Management reviewed the Agency’s risk registers annually during the 2014/15 FY, updating the 

risk action plans and identifying new emerging risks for mitigation. Executive Management is committed to 

executing and implementing the risk action plans.

The Agency progressed well during the 2014/15 FY, addressing the risk action plans by ensuring that 

adequate and effective internal controls were in place.
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Internal Control Unit
The organisation establishes internal controls through the development of policies and procedure manuals 

which spell out the delivery of products and services through the initiation, delivery, quality assurance 

and completion phases. These policies and procedure documents develop clear frameworks of roles and 

responsibilities within the respective process areas which ensure that roles are adequately segregated to 

prevent an override of internal controls. 

The organisation implements a combination of manual and automated controls within process activities and 

these controls are monitored through management review on an ongoing basis. 

The organisation places special emphasis on control activities within the financial, supply chain management, 

compliance and performance information process areas and these areas are subject to robust audits from 

both internal and external audit. 

The findings are noted by management and the root causes investigated and the related process activity 

and internal controls amended to correct the deficiency.

 Management also follows the Auditor General of South Africa’s tripartite approach to matters of internal 

control incorporating leadership, financial and performance management and governance. 

The dashboard which measures the internal control environment is reviewed by internal audit on a quarterly 

basis and by external audit on a bi-annual basis. NYDA has moved from a 22% “good internal controls” to 

69% from 2013 / 2014 to 2014 / 2015. 

Internal Audit and Audit Committee
The Agency has an established in-house Internal Audit Unit. This unit is capacitated with five staff members. 

In addition, a co-sourced partner, Nexia SAB&T, was procured to perform specialist audit services.

The internal audit manual, which includes internal audit methodology, was developed in accordance with 

National Treasury requirements. A peer review (internal quality assurance of audit work/audit file performed 

in-house) is conducted by our co-sourced partner.

A risk-based, three-year, strategic rolling plan and annual operational plan were approved by the Audit 

Committee and the Board. For the year under review 38 audits were completed.

The Audit Committee reviews the work of the internal audit on a quarterly basis.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations
The Agency is committed to a philosophy of Integrated Compliance Risk Management as a core managerial 

capability, which is aligned to the principles of the King Report, the standards set by the Compliance Institute 

of SA and the legislative requirements of the PFMA. In addition to this, the Audit Committee oversees and 

provides advice on the Agency’s compliance activities.

The Compliance Implementation plan for the NYDA was prepared to give effect to the development of the 

Compliance policy and sets out all compliance activities planned for the 2014/15 FY. The key responsibilities, 
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in accordance with the Approved Compliance framework, are to monitor, and keep management abreast of 

compliance processes and procedures.

• Compliance activities undertaken during 2014/15 FY include:

• Approval of the Compliance framework and Compliance roadmap

• Identifying Compliance Champions and engagement with them

• Development of compliance checklists for critical legislation

• Evaluation of the Compliance checklists

• Conducting the compliance risk assessment workshop.

Fraud and Corruption
The Agency has an approved Fraud Prevention Strategy and Fraud Prevention Plan. The Fraud Prevention 

Strategy and Fraud Prevention Plan were approved by the Board and are updated on an annual basis.

The Agency has a toll-free hotline. All allegations received are followed up and, if necessary, investigations 

are conducted. The Agency strives to create an environment where it is safe to report suspicious activity, in 

line with the Protected Disclosures Act, 2000 (Act 26 of 2000). Where it can be proven that fraud, collusion 

or theft were perpetrated, criminal charges are laid against the perpetrators.

In order to proactively mitigate the risk of fraud, a fraud risk assessment is conducted annually on high-risk 

areas. Staff members are required to complete a declaration of interest form on an annual basis to ensure 

that there is no conflict of interest with service providers on the supply chain management database.

Fraud awareness is carried out during the year. The Risk Unit conducts all investigations on allegations of the 

misappropriation of funds, and reports outcomes to the CEO and Audit Committee.

Minimising Conflict of Interest
The Agency uses the following procedures for conflict of interest:

• All staff members are required to complete and submit a declaration of interest form on a yearly basis. 

Staff members in the Agency who do not comply with the FDF may be charged with misconduct, 

according to the regulations.

• All Bid Committee members involved in the procurement process in the Agency must also sign conflict 

of interest forms to avoid any potential conflict.
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Board Committees
A summary of the NYDA’s Board and Board Committee structure, as at 31 March 2014

Name Designation
Date 
Appointed Qualifications

Area of 
Expertise Other Committees

No. of 
Meetings

Mr Yershen Pillay
Board 
Executive 
Chairperson

22/03/13 BsoSci Economics

Executive 
Management 
and Investment 
Committees

7

Mr Kenny Morolong 
Deputy 
Executive 
Chairperson

22/03/13
Senior 
Certificate 
BA (Current)

Administration

Executive 
Management 
and Investment 
Committees

6

Mr Mothupi Modiba Non-executive 
Board Member 22/03/13 MBA (Current) Corporate 

Management 

HRR and 
Development 
Committee

4

Ms Ayanda Makaula Non-executive 
Board Member 22/03/13 BAdmin (HR) Public 

Relations

Development 
Committee and IT 
Steerco

4

Ms Nyalleng Potloane Non-executive 
Board Member 22/03/13 BScSci Labour Studies Social and Ethics 

Committee 4

Ms Maropene 
Ramakgopa

Non-executive 
Board Member 22/03/13 BA (Economics) 

(Current)
Corporate 
Administration 

Investments, IT 
Steerco, and 
Social and Ethics 
Committee

6

Ms Zandile Majozi Non-executive 
Board Member 22/03/13 NDip HR 

(current)
Human 
Resources 

Audit and HRR 
Committee 7

Mr Khathu 
Ramukumba

Acting Chief 
Executive 
Officer

29/01/2014 CA (SA) Finance and 
Administration

Executive 
Management 1

Mr Khathu 
Ramukumba

Chief Executive 
Officer 30/05/2014 CA (SA)

MBA (Current)
Finance and 
Administration

Executive 
Management 5

Board Statutory Committees

Audit Committee
The NYDA has had a constituted Audit Committee since November 2012, comprised of three members: a 

non-executive Board member and two independent members (one of which is the Chairperson).

• The Audit Committee is further responsible for ensuring the following:

• The NYDA’s audit, financial and risk areas are adequately addressed.

• Appropriate policies and internal control recommendations are implemented by internal audit and 

the Auditor General.

• The annual financial statements and annual report have been properly prepared by management 

and reviewed by the Auditor General before recommendation to the Board of Directors for approval.

• There is periodic evaluation of the suitability and performance of auditors.

• Policies are reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval.

The independent specialists are remunerated, based on the guidelines issued by the National Treasury, from 

time to time, for each meeting attended. Board remuniration is disclosed in the annual financial statement 

in the directors emoluments note.
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Audit Committee Members and Meetings for period 01 April 2014-31March 2015
Names of Members Meetings Attended Date Appointed

Rachel Kalidass (Independent Chairperson)  6 November 2012

Zandile Majozi 5 April 2013

Tayron Tshitaudzi (Independent Chairperson) 6 November 2012

Investment Committee
The committee is comprised of three members: the two executive members and one non-executive member.

Its purpose is to ensure that commitments the NYDA seeks to make to projects are aligned with the 

objectives of the NYDA. It further reviews the portfolio of loans and projects funded. It also considers for 

approval, projects recommended by the NYDA’s Management Committee, where the NYDA would have a 

funding exposure to any particular project of between R10 million and R20 million. The committee reports 

to the Board.

The committee is further responsible for the following:

• Ensuring that projects comply with the detailed programme criteria established by the NYDA

• Overseeing that the NYDA does not have undue exposure to any particular project and/or service 

provider organisation

• Verifying that adequate controls and mitigating measures are in place to manage project risks which 

have been identified

• Recommending approval of projects to the Board where any single commitment exceeds  

R20 million.

The full terms of reference of this committee are contained in its Charter.

The committee meets on a quarterly basis and when projects are referred to it for approval. The mandate 

and powers of the Investment Committee are reviewed annually by the Board to ensure that the rules which 

govern the committee are still relevant and applicable.

Details of attendance by members of the Investment Committee for the period 
1 April 2014-31 March 2015
Names of Members Meetings Attended

Kenny Morolong 1

Maropene Ramokgopa 1

Yershen Pillay 0
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Human Resources and Remuneration Committee (HRR)
The committee is comprised of three members: one independent specialist and two non-executive 

members, two of which are non-executive directors. Its purpose is to provide advice and guidance to the 

Board on matters relating to HR, which is considered vital to ensure that the NYDA subscribes to good and 

fair labour practices and has the relevant HR to achieve its mandate. The committee reports to the Board 

on a quarterly basis.

The committee is further responsible for the following:

• Recommending all polices regarding conditions of employment of staff

• Determining all essential components of remuneration

• Establishing remuneration credibility with all key stakeholders

• Advising on effective retention strategies

• Determining the basis for measuring performance of executive directors and senior management

• Recommending annual salary increments and rewards.

The committee has access to independent surveys and consultants to consider market-related remuneration 

and related benefits. The full terms of reference of this committee are contained in its Charter, which was 

duly approved by the Board. The mandate and powers of the committee are reviewed annually by the Board 

to ensure that the rules which govern the committee are still relevant and applicable.

Details of attendance by members of the HRR Committee for the period 1 April 2014-31 March 2015
Names of Members Meetings Attended

Mothupi Modiba 8

Zandile Majozi 6

Joy Ndlovu (Independent Member) 7

Executive Management Committee (EMC)
The Executive Management Committee is comprised of the Chief Executive Officer, the Chairperson of the 

Board and the Deputy Chairperson of the Board. The committee considers the following strategic matters:

• Monthly review and approval of the NYDA programme and financial performance

• Review and approval of all quarterly reports, prior to submission to the Executive Authority

• Review of progress on the implementation of the Board projects

• Review of progress on the implementation of strategic partnerships

• Identification and review of strategic risks as they arise

• Review of progress on the implementation of the NYDA communication strategy

• Prioritising the allocation of capital, and technical and human resources

• Attending to any other matters, as delegated by the Board.
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Details of attendance by members of the EMC Committee for the period 1 April 2014-31 March 2015
Names of Members Meetings Attended Date Appointed Date Resigned 

Yershen Pillay 7 (8) 1 April 2013 N/A

Kenny Morolong 7 (8) 1 April 2013 N/A

Khathu Ramukumba (Acting CEO) 3 30 Jan 2014 20 May 2014

Khathu Ramukumba (Acting CEO) 4 (5) 30 May 2014 N/A

Development Committee
The Development Committee is comprised of two members: two non-executive directors. The committee 

reports to the Board on a quarterly basis. The committee is responsible for:

• Advising the Board on the way forward regarding programmes referred to the Board

• Guiding the Board in defining the youth development interventions and programmes as envisaged 

in Section 4 of the Act

• Providing guidance to the Board on issues to be included in conducting youth development research

• Providing guidance to the Board on issues that would ensure that youth development is included in 

national priorities and subsequent government programmes

• Providing guidance to the Board on issues that would ensure that youth interventions are in line with 

the IYDS

• Providing input to the Board on the review of the capacity of the NYDA to implement programmes.

The Board reviews the mandate and powers of the committee on an annual basis, to ensure that the rules 

governing the committee are still relevant and applicable.

Details of attendance by members of the Development Committee for the period 
1 April 2014-31 March 2015
Names of Members Meetings Attended Date Appointed 

Ayanda Makaula 4 1 April 2013

Mothupi Modiba 4 1 April 2013

Social and Ethics Committee
The Social and Ethics Committee is comprised of two members: two non-executive directors.

The committee reports to the Board on a quarterly basis. The committee’s primary role is to supplement, 

support, advise and provide guidance on the effectiveness or otherwise of management’s efforts, in respect 

of ethics, and social and sustainable development matters, which include: safety, health and wellness, ethics 

management, corporate social investment, stakeholder engagement, ethical leadership and the protection 

of NYDA assets.

Details of attendance by members of the Social and Ethics Committee for the period 
1 April 2014-31 March 2015
Names of Members Meetings Attended Date Appointed

Maropene Ramakgopa 1 1 April 2013

Nyalleng Potloane 1 1 April 2013
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IT Steering Committee
The IT Steering Committee is comprised of three members: two non-executive directors and an independent 

member. The committee reports to the Board on a quarterly basis.

The committee’s roles and responsibilities, as prescribed by the Companies Act and King III Code on 

Corporate Services, include, but are not limited to the following:

• Understanding the strategic role of IT within business and assuming responsibility for its governance

• Ensuring that an IT mandate and policy that assigns decision-making rights is established and 

implemented

• Ensuring the promotion of an ethical IT governance culture and awareness, and a common IT 

language

• Ensuring that an IT internal control framework is adopted, and implemented by the IT executive and 

management

• Ensuring that processes are in place to ensure complete, timely, accurate and accessible IT reporting, 

from the IT executive and management to the Board

• Monitoring the NYDA’s activities, with regard to relevant legislation or prevailing codes of good 

practice.

Details of attendance by members of the IT Steering Committee for the period 
1 April 2014-31 March 2015
Names of Members Meetings Attended Date Appointed

Maropene Ramakgopa 1 1 April 2013

Nyalleng Potloane 1 1 April 2013

Nhlamulo Ndhlela 1 01 February 2015

Portfolio Committees:
Parliament exercises its role through evaluating the performance of the public entity by interrogating their 

annual financial statements and other relevant documents which have to be tabled as well as any other 

documents tabled from time to time.

The Portfolio Committee exercises oversight over the service delivery of performance of the NYDA and, as 

such, reviews financial and non-financial information contained in the reports of the entity.

The NYDA accounted to the Portfolio Committee on Public Service and Administration for the reporting 

period under review. The NYDA met with the Portfolio Committee on eight occasions during the period 

under review and tabled amongst others, the Annual Performance Plan and Strategic Plan, Annual Budget, 

Annual Financial Statements, Annual Report, Quarterly Performance Reports, Turnaround Strategy and 

Reports on the Implementation of Key Projects.

Executive Authority:
The NYDA reports to its Executive Authority, the Minister in the Department of Planning, Monitoring and 

Evaluation. The NYDA submitted reports in respect of the Annual Performance Plan and Strategic Plan, 

Annual Budget, Annual Financial Statements, Annual Report and Quarterly Performance Reports to its 

Executive Authority. 
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Annual Financial Statements 
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Accounting Authority’s 
Responsibilities and Approval
The NYDA was established by the NYDA Act, 2008 (Act 54 of 2008, the NYDA Act) through the merger of 

the National Youth Commission (NYC) and the Umsobomvu Youth Fund (UYF). The merger was pursuant to 

section 21(2) of the NYDA Act, effective from 1 October 2009. This report and the accompanying financial 

statements cover the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015.

The Board of Directors, which represents the Accounting Authority, fulfilled a full term of office for the 

period under review.

The Accounting Authority is required by the PFMA, as amended, to maintain adequate accounting records, 

and is responsible for the content and integrity of the financial statements and the related financial 

information included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the financial statements fairly 

present the state of affairs of the NYDA as at the end of the financial period, and the results of operations 

and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 

Practice (Standards of GRAP), and directives and guidelines issued by the Accounting Standards Board. The 

external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the financial statements and are given 

unrestricted access to all financial records and related data.

The annual financial statements were prepared in accordance with Standards of GRAP, including any 

interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the ASB. These annual financial statements are based on 

appropriate accounting policies, which were consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent 

judgments and estimates.

The Accounting Authority acknowledges that it is ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial 

control established by the NYDA, and places considerable importance on maintaining a strong control 

environment. To enable the Accounting Authority to meet these responsibilities, the authority sets standards 

for internal control, aimed at reducing the risk of errors in a cost-effective manner. The standards include the 

proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures 

and adequate segregation of duties, to ensure an acceptable level of risk.

These controls are monitored by the NYDA and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical 

standards to ensure that the NYDA’s business is conducted in a manner that is above reproach, in all reasonable 

circumstances. The focus of risk management is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all 

known forms of risk across the NYDA. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the NYDA endeavours 

to minimise risk by ensuring the appropriate management and application of infrastructure, controls, systems 

and ethical behaviour, with predetermined procedures and constraints.

The Accounting Authority was of the opinion that the system of internal control provided reasonable 

assurance that the financial records were reliable for the preparation of these annual financial statements. 

However, any system of internal control can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against 
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any misstatement or loss. The annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015, which were 

prepared on a going concern basis, were approved by the Accounting Authority and were signed on its 

behalf by:

Mr Yershen Pillay

Chairperson

31 July 2015
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Accounting Authority’s Report
The Accounting Authority of the NYDA is pleased to submit its report, together with the NYDA’s annual 

financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015.

1. Establishment, mandate and operations of the NYDA
The NYDA was established by the South African government through the NYDA Act. This Act, in particular 

section 21(2), made provision for the merger between the UYF and NYC to form the NYDA. It is classified 

as a national public entity under Part A of Schedule 3 of the PFMA, as amended. The NYDA’s mandate is to 

lobby and advocate for integration and mainstreaming of youth development in all spheres of government, 

the private sector and civil society. The mandate also includes initiating, implementing, facilitating and 

coordinating youth development programmes, as well as monitoring and evaluating youth development 

interventions across the board, and mobilising for active youth participation in civil society engagements.

2. Review of financial results and activities
The financial position of the NYDA for the period under review is set out in the annual financial statements.

The salient results of youth development funding are as follows:

Disbursements 31 March 2015
R ‘000

31 March 2014
R ‘000

Project disbursements 265 077 254 512

Investment in small and medium enterprises - 9 869

Micro finance loans and co-operatives - 4 240

Grant disbursements 29 640 10 044

Amounts disbursed 294 117 278 665

Capitalisation and going concern
Through the Medium-term Expenditure framework process, the NYDA was capitalised by R408 million for 

the year ending 31 March 2015, in comparison to R392 million received during the prior financial period.

The Accounting Authority made an assessment of the NYDA’s ability to continue as a going concern, and 

is satisfied that the NYDA has adequate resources and measures in place to continue operating as a going 

concern in the next 12 months, after the approval of the annual financial statements. At the time of mak-

ing this assessment, the Accounting Authority was not aware of any intention of the government to either 

liquidate, or curtail the operations of the NYDA in the next 12 months. Consequently, the NYDA adopted its 

viability as a going concern as the basis for preparation of these financial statements.

3. Significant matters
Impairment of financial assets
The Accounting Authority noted the continuous significant amounts allocated to the provision for impairment 

in the current financial year as in previous financial years. The Accounting Authority noted that the key 

contributors, among others, are:

• The current economic climate, characterised by slow recoveries of the global economy

• Lack of confidence by the markets in the ability of youth-owned enterprises to deliver the right 

quality and quantity on time
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• Most importantly, in South Africa, which is a developing economy, many young people who apply for 

enterprise funding are not necessarily individuals with a passion for entrepreneurship, but do so as 

an alternative after they cannot find employment, which is their first option in pursuit of a better life.

The Accounting Authority has noted that some young people have the means to repay their loans, but 

deliberately do not honour their commitment. Legal avenues are being pursued in an endeavour to recover 

these loans receivable. The Accounting Authority continues to implement measures to ensure that defaulters 

pay the NYDA. Such measures include rescheduling of loan terms, assisting their businesses with market 

linkages, providing mentorship and the provision of the relevant NYDA vouchers, in line with business 

requirements, to enable greater success. The Accounting Authority is also satisfied that management’s four-

point plan to close the loan book is progressing effectively.

Irregular expenditure
The Accounting Authority has noted a significant improvement in the reduction of irregular expenditure, 

which decreased from R16.7 million reported in the 2013/2014 financial year to R580 000 in the current year. 

This is a 97% reduction from the previous financial year. While the Accounting Authority is pleased with this 

significant progress, it continues to implement measures aimed at total prevention of any irregular expendi-

ture.

Financial performance
The Accounting Authority noted that the Agency reported a deficit of R15 million for the period under re-

view. The key contributor is the value of non-cash impairments and depreciation accounted for in the state-

ment of financial performance.

Fraud
The Accounting Authority is satisfied that the fraud case reported the previous year has, by and large, been 

concluded, with the majority of the loss suffered recovered, and that no new cases of fraud have been 

reported. The Board, together with management, continues to stress the importance of employee conduct 

and ethical behaviour in the workplace

4. Board
The members of the NYDA Board of Directors for the period 1 April 2014–1 March 2015 were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr Yershen Pillay Chairperson of the Board

Mr Kenny Morolong Deputy Chairperson of the Board

Non-executive Directors

Ms Ayanda Makaula Board Member

Ms Maropene Ramokgopa Board Member

Mr Mothupi Modiba Board Member

Ms Nyalleng Potloane Board Member

Ms Zandile Majozi Board Member

Ex Officio

Mr Khathu Ramukumba Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer is an ex officio member of the Board without voting rights.
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5. Bankers
Standard Bank of South Africa Limited

6. Auditors
Auditor General of South Africa

7. Company Secretary
Mr Neo Eugene Chuene

The annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015, as set out on pages xxx, which have been 

prepared on a going concern basis, were approved by the Accounting Authority and signed on its behalf.

Mr Yershen Pillay

Chairperson

31 July 2015
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Report of the Auditor-General to 
Parliament on the National Youth 
Development Agency
Report on the financial statements

Introduction
I have audited the financial statements of the National Youth Development Agency (NYDA) set out on pages 

123 to 172, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015, the statement of financial 

performance, statement of changes in net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison 

of budget information with actual information for the year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a 

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

 

Accounting Authority’s responsibility for the financial statements
1. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 

statements in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practise (Standards of 

GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No.1 

of 1999) (PFMA), and for such internal control as the accounting authority determines is necessary 

to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 

due to fraud or error.

Auditor-general’s responsibility
2. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted 

my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that I 

comply with ethical requirements, and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

3. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 

in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including 

the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to 

the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 

appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 

by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

4. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

my audit opinion.

Opinion
5. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 

the National Youth Development Agency as at 31 March 2015 and its financial performance and cash 

flows for the year then ended, in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 
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Practise (Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the PFMA.

Emphasis of matter
6. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Material impairments
7. As disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, material impairments to the amount of 

R15 662 000 (2014: R34 997 000) were incurred in the current year as a result of the impairment of 

loans advanced by the NYDA. At 31 March 2015 of the total gross loans receivable of R242 271 000, 

R239 541 000 had been impaired as the recoverability of these loans are doubtful.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
8. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) and the general 

notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report findings on the reported performance 

information against predetermined objectives for selected objectives presented in the annual 

performance report, non-compliance with legislation and internal control. The objective of my tests 

was to identify reportable findings as described under each subheading but not to gather evidence 

to express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or conclusion on 

these matters.

Predetermined objectives
9. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported 

performance information for the following selected programmes presented in the annual performance 

report of the NYDA for the year ended 31 March 2015:

• Programme 1: Economic Participation on page 42

• Programme 2: Education and Skills Development on page 46

• Programme 4: Policy and Research on pages 52 to 53

• Programme 5: Governance on page 61

10. I evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of usefulness and 

reliability. 

11. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was 

presented in accordance with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the 

reported performance was consistent with the planned objectives. I further performed tests to 

determine whether indicators and targets were well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time 

bound and relevant, as required by the National Treasury’s Framework for managing programme 

performance information (FMPPI).

12. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, 

accurate and complete.

13. I did not identify any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 

information for the selected programmes.

Additional matters
14. Although I identified no material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 

information for the selected programmes, I draw attention to the following matters:
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Achievement of planned targets
15. Refer to the annual performance report on page 36 to 64 for information on the achievement of the 

planned targets for the year.

Adjustment of material misstatements
16. I identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing on 

the reported performance information for Programme 5 – Policy and Research and Programme 6 

- Governance. As management subsequently corrected the misstatements, I did not identify any 

material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information. 

Unaudited supplementary schedules
17. The supplementary information set out on pages 36 to 64 does not form part of the annual 

performance report and is presented as additional information. I have not audited these schedules 

and, accordingly, I do not report thereon.

Compliance with legislation
18. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the NYDA had complied with applicable legislation 

regarding financial matters, financial management and other related matters.  I did not identify any 

instances of material non-compliance with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the general 

notice issued in terms of the PAA.

Internal control
19. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, the report on 

predetermined objectives and compliance with legislation. I did not identify any significant 

deficiencies in internal control. 

Other reports
Agreed-upon procedures engagement

20. I have the following agreed-upon procedures engagements that relate to the entity that are in 

progress or that have been completed:

21. An agreed-upon procedures engagement was performed where I conduct procedures to determine 

whether the NYDA complied with Regulation 68 of the regulations to the National Credit Act, 2006. 

The report covered the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 and was issued to the NYDA and the 

National Credit Regulator.

22. I am in the process of completing a similar agreed-upon procedures engagement for the period 1 

April 2014 to 31 March 2015.

Investigations
Investigations in progress

23. During the 2011 financial year, an investigation by the Public Protector to probe whether the hosting 

of the World festival of Youth and Students held in December 2010 was within the NYDA’s mandate, 

if the allocated funds were not misappropriated and whether the relevant supply chain management 

prescripts were followed.  The initial scope of this investigation was extended during the previous 

financial year to include queries regarding salary structures and travel and subsistence allowances 

as well as the execution of the legislative mandate by the NYDA, including objectives, duties and 
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functions. At the time of issuing the audit report, a final report had not been released by the Public 

Protector.

Investigations concluded
24. An in house investigation was conducted in the previous financial period to probe allegations of 

theft. The investigation aimed to establish whether duplicate fictitious invoices had been created 

and paid into the bank account of the accused. The investigation was concluded on 31 March 2015 

with a total loss of R7.2 million confirmed by the investigators.  Recoveries of R3.4 million were 

already obtained at year end by the investigators, and the balance being claimed and approved by 

the NYDA insurance brokers.

Pretoria

31 July 2015
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Audit Committee Report
The committee is pleased to present its final report for the financial year ending 31 March 2015. 

This report is presented accordance with the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act No. 1 of 

1999, as amended and the recommendations contained in the third King Report on Governance for South 

Africa and the King Code of Governance Principles (King III). 

Audit Committee members and attendance 
The National Youth Development Agency has had a constituted Audit Committee for the financial year 

under review, comprising three member (a non-executive Board member and two independent member). 

During the current financial year, six audit committee were held. Interactive meetings are held between the 

chairperson and management as the need arises. The meeting attendance details during the 2014/2015 

financial year were as follows:

Name of member Number of meetings attended

Ms Rachel Kalidass (Independent non-executive 
chairperson appointed November 2012) 

6

Mr Tayron Tshitaudzi (Independent non-executive member 
appointed November 2012) 

6

Ms Zandile Majozi (Non-executive member of Board – 
appointed March 2013) 

5

Audit Committee responsibility
We report that we have adopted appropriate formal terms of reference in our Charter in line with the 

requirements of Section 38(1) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulations 3.1. The audit committee also reports 

that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its audit committee Charter, has regulated its 

affairs in compliance with this Charter, and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein. 

The effectiveness of internal control
The system of internal controls is designed to provide cost-effective assurance that assets are safeguarded 

and that liabilities and working capital are efficiently managed. The system of internal control applied by 

the NYDA over financial and risk management is partially effective, efficient and transparent.

In accordance with the PFMA and the King III Report on Corporate Governance requirements, internal 

audit provided the audit committee and management with assurance that the internal control environment 

are appropriate and effective. 

This is achieved by means of the risk management, as well as the identification of corrective actions and 

suggested enhancements to the internal controls and processes. 

Significant progress has been made in the past financial year in addressing internal control environment 

related audit findings (leadership, management and governance) which are reflected below: 
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• Improvement in financial management from 14% to 79% 

• Improvement in performance information reporting from 50% to 71% 

• Improvement in compliance from 14% to 57% 

• Irregular expenditure has significantly reduced from R133 million in 2011/12 to R62 million in 2012/13     

to R16 million in 2013/14 and now to a mere R580k in 2014/15 

From the various reports of the Internal Auditors, the Auditor General Report on the Annual Financial 

Statements and the Management Letter of the Auditor-General, it was noted that there has been a significant 

improvement since the previous financial year which has culminated in the NYDA achieving a clean audit 

for the 2015/16 financial year. Of significance, is the complete elimination of reportable findings related to 

non-compliance to laws and regulations, and in particular, irregular expenditure. 

Accordingly, we can report that the general system of internal control for the period under review was 

partially effective and efficient, with only Information and Communication Technology still being of concern. 

The quality on in-year management and monthly/quarterly reports submitted in terms of the PFMA and 

Division of Revenue Act was high.

The audit committee is satisfied with the content and quality of monthly reports prepared and issued by the 

NYDA during the year under review, noting that there has been significant improvement around performance 

information compilation and reporting. 

The audit committee will continue to monitor the achievement of all planned targets for the forthcoming 

financial year to achieve 100% fulfilment of planned targets. 

Evaluation of financial statements
The audit committee has: 

• Reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements to be included in the Annual Report, with 

the Auditor-General and the Accounting Authority 

• Reviewed the Auditor-General of South Africa’s management report and management’s report 

thereto 

• Reviewed the Agency’s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions 

• Reviewed significant adjustment resulting from the audit 

• Review of the information on predetermined objectives to be included in the annual report.

    

Internal audit 
We are satisfied that the internal audit function is operating effectively, with the support of its co-sourced 

internal auditors, and that is has addressed the risks pertinent to the NYDA in its internal audits. 

Auditor-General of South Africa 
We have met with the Auditor-General of South Africa to ensure that there are no unresolved issues. 

Conclusions 

The audit committee received allegations through the whistle-blowing hotline. These were referred to 
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internal audit to determine their validity thereof, and for further investigation. 

We would like to extend our appreciation to the Accounting Authority, Management, and Internal and 

External Auditors for their tireless efforts in supporting and co-operating with us during the year. We look 

forward to another successful year ahead. 

Ms. Rachel Kalidass 
Chairperson: Audit Committee
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CEO’s Report on the Annual 
Financial Statements
It gives me pleasure to present the Annual Financial Statements of the National Youth Development Agency 

for the year ended 31 March 2015.

Six years, six unqualified opinions from the Auditor General of South Africa has created a culture whereby 

this is an expectation we demand from our organisation rather than an achievement. I am however extremely 

encouraged by this being the first year that we have presented financial statements for audit that did not 

contain material misstatements that required correction nor did the financial statements contain any non-

compliance with the prescripts of the Public Finance Management Act. 

The Statement of Financial Position reflects an adequate balance sheet for an entity of our size and scale 

and we retain an accumulated surplus mainly as a result of investments, loans receivable and equipment 

which is expected to be consumed over the longer term of the entity. The organisation has sufficient cash 

and receivables to meet its obligations in the near future and to remain in a positive liquidity position.

The loans receivable balance which is emphasised by the Auditor General as a result of the severe impairments 

remains a priority area for management. Although the matter remains emphasised the external auditors 

have reflected an opinion whereby management is no longer in non-compliance with the PFMA to take 

effective and appropriate steps to collect all revenue due. This is as a result of the measures instituted by 

management to take more robust collection measures on the loan book. To this end we have put together 

a four phase plan for the closure of the loan book, which is currently in implementation and that should 

provide a conclusion by 31 March 2016.

The Statement of Financial Performance reflects a deficit of R14 million for the year under consideration 

which is largely as a result of the non-cash transactions relating to depreciation, impairment and movements 

in provisions. Once adjusted the NYDA would have a deficit position of R1 million which translates into 

adequate spending of our annual allocation from the National Treasury. Projects expenditure in respect of 

youth development amounted to R179 million which resulted in a 93% achievement of targets.

The employee costs of the NYDA amounted to R176 million, approximately 39% of the total income 

value of the organisation which places us close to the maximum 40% threshold of National Treasury. In an 

environment of austerity and budget cuts which result in lower than inflation adjustments to income this 

figure has become a major concern for the organisation. The NYDA has entered into a restructuring process 

which will see it reduce staff in accordance with section 189 of the Labour Relations Act. This will aim to 

reduce the salary bill from the 2016 / 2017 year onwards.
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2010/2011 2011/2012 2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015

Irregular Expenditure R67m R133m R62m R16.7m R580 000

Emphasis of Matter 5 2 1 1 1

Matters of Non-
Compliance

8 16 8 10 0

I am also impressed by the significant progress made in reducing irregular expenditure from R16.7 million 

to R580 000, a reduction of 97% with all findings related to expenditure management, consequence 

management and procurement and contract management no longer appearing in the audit report. We 

continue to strive towards a zero tolerance environment and irregular expenditure offenders had action 

taken against them. We are however satisfied that no irregular expenditure arose from fraudulent activities. 

The entity enters unchartered territory in the 2015 / 2016 financial year as the first year of budget cuts from 

National Treasury comes into play while the organisation must implement a restructured business model. 

The South African population remains a youthful one with statistics placing people between the ages of 

14 – 35 at 42% of the population. The NYDA has certainly seen a rising demand from young people for its 

products and services. Rather than being perturbed by the economics of demand exceeding supply, I am 

on the contrary inspired by those young people that seek to change their lives by seeking a hand up from 

the NYDA. It is my promise to these young people that I will continue to advocate for greater investment 

in the cause of young people in our beautiful country. I also urge all young people who are vulnerable or 

disillusioned to visit a NYDA branch and access an intervention that may benefit their lives.

I wish to express my gratitude to the Board of Directors for their vision and insight as well as direction, to my 

Executive Management team for continued leadership and progress and to all staff of the organisation for 

their efforts in furthering the cause of young people. 

Until each young vulnerable person is included into the mainstream economy be it through entrepreneurship, 

education and skills development, job placements or national youth service my dream remains deferred. 

Its deferment provides me with encouragement to fight the fight on a daily basis but its achievement it’s 

dependent on the collaboration of public sector, private sector and civil society as well as the political 

will and accompanying resources to do so. Most importantly its achievement must be as a result of young 

people making positive choices and taking responsibility for their development. We will always be on hand 

to provide a helping hand to those who want to succeed. Youth moving South Africa forward!

Khathutshelo Ramukumba
Chief Executive Officer
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National Youth Development Agency: Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2015

Note(s)
2015

R ‘000
2014

R ‘000

Assets
Current Assets

Receivables from exchange transactions 2 7 188 4 199

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 3 10 093 8 580

Loan receivable from exchange transactions 8 1 109 2 866

Cash and cash equivalents 4 76 465 79 853

94 855 95 498

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 5 14 329 13 477

Intangible assets 6 4 983 6 054

Investments in associates 7 4 757 4 678

Loan receivable from exchange transactions 8 1 621 3 796

Rental deposit 1 258 1 525

26 948 29 530

Total Assets 121 803 125 028

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Finance lease obligation 9 417 783

Payables from exchange transactions 10 75 034 69 537

Employee cost provisions 11 16 838 14 125

Deferred income 12 10 731 7 321

103 020 91 766

Non-Current Liabilities

Finance lease obligation 9 - 417

Total Liabilities 103 020 92 183

Net Assets 18 783 32 845

Accumulated surplus 18 783 32 845
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National Youth Development Agency: Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Statement of Financial Performance

Note(s)
2015

R ‘000
2014

R ‘000

Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions

Fair value adjustments 16 79 2 560

Bad debts recovered - 12

Interest income 14 19 330 22 284

Other income 15 9 878 1 220

Gains on disposal of assets - 58

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Grant income-Office of the Presidency 408 237 392 710

Donor-funding income 11 551 14 094

Total revenue 449 075 432 938

Expenditure

Operating expenses 17 - 21 (156 555) (185 928)

Donor-funding disbursements 22 (11 551) (14 094)

Finance costs (308) (159)

Projects disbursements 24 (265 077) (254 519)

Loss on disposal of assets (5) -

Grant disbursements 23 (29 640) (10 535)

Total expenditure (463 136) (465 235)

Surplus/ (deficit) for the period (14 061) (32 297)
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National Youth Development Agency: Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Accumulated 

surplus
R ‘000

Total net assets
R ‘000

Balance at 01 April 2013 65 142 65 142

Changes in net assets

Surplus for the year (32 297) (32 297)

Total changes (32 297) (32 297)

Balance at 01 April 2014 32 844 32 844

Changes in net assets

Surplus for the year (14 061) (14 061)

Total changes (14 061) (14 061)

Balance at 31 March 2015 18 783 18 783

Note(s)
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National Youth Development Agency: Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Cash Flow Statement

Note(s)
2015

R ‘000
2014

R ‘000

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Grants received 408 237 392 710

Interest Income 2 721 5 627

Other Receipts 2 878 1 220

Bad debts recovered - 12

Recoveries from fraudulent payments 7 000 -

Loan-capital repayment received 5 962 10 197

426 798 409 766

Payments

Employee costs (173 763) (168 456)

Suppliers (249 954) (239 493)

Movement in working capital - 21 837

Loans disbursed - (14 109)

(423 717) (400 221)

Net cash flows from operating activities 25 3 081 9 545

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 5 (5 219) (3 264)

Proceeds from disposal of equipment 5 185 195

Purchase of intangible assets 6 (652) (821)

Net cash flows from investing activities (5 686) (3 890)

Cash flows from financing activities

Finance lease payments (783) (881)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (3 388) 4 774

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 79 853 75 079

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4 76 465 79 853
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National Youth Development Agency: Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on Cash Basis

Approved 
budget
R ‘000

Adjustments
R ‘000

Final Budget
R ‘000

Actual amounts 
on comparable 

basis
R ‘000

Difference 
between final 

budget and 
actual
R ‘000

Statement of Financial Performance Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions

Interest Income 5 224 - 5 224 4 276 (948)

Other income - - - 9 878 9 878

Gains on disposal of assets - - - - -

Prior year rollover - - - 9 098 9 098

Capital repayment 3 283 - 3 283 4 181 898

Total revenue from  
exchange transactions

8 507 - 8 507 27 433 18 926

Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Taxation revenue

Grant income-Office of the 

Presidency 408 237 - 408 237 408 237 -

Transfer revenue
Donor-funding income - - - 11 551 11 551

Total revenue from  
non-exchange  
transactions

408 237 - 408 237 419 788 11 551

Expenditure

Administration and  

overheads (14 966) - (14 966) (21 148) (6 182)

Communication and PR (19 795) - (19 795) (18 678) 1 117

Employee costs (189 027) - (189 027) (173 763) 15 264

Information Technology (13 204) - (13 204) (12 764) 440

Outsourcing and external 

services

(11 929) - (11 929) (15 852) (3 923)

Seminars and training (1 749) - (1 749) (2 193) (444)

Travel and  

accommodation

(11 365) - (11 365) (7 901) 3 464

Interest Paid - - - (308) (308)

Project disbursements (ex-

cluding payroll)

(122 182) - (122 182) (145 681) (23 499)

Donor-funded  

expenditure

- - - (11 551) (11 551)

Grant disbursements (25 000) - (25 000) (29 640) (4 640)

Capital Purchses (7 527) - (7 527) (9 219) (1 692)

Total expenditure (416 744) - (416 744) (448 698) (31 954)

Actual Amount on  
Comparable Basis as  
Presented in the Budget
and Actual Comparative
Statement

- - - (1 477) (1 477)
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Accounting Policies

1. Basis of preparation
The NYDA was established by the South African Government through the National Youth Development 

Agency Act, 2008 Act, (No. 54 of 2008). This Act, in particular Section 21(2), made provision for the merger 

between the Umsobomvu Youth Fund and the National Youth Commission, to form the NYDA. It is classified 

as a National Public Entity under Part A of Schedule 3 of the Public Finance Management Act of South 

Africa, 1999(Act No. 1 of 1999 ) as amended.

Statement of Compliance: 
The annual financial statements were prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised 

Accounting Practice, including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting 

Standards Board.

Basic of measurement:
These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in 

accordance with historical cost convention, unless otherwise specified. The NYDA’s functional currency is 

the South African Rand and the annual financial statements are presented in South African Rand. Assets, 

liabilities, revenues and expenses have not been offset, except where offsetting is required, or permitted, 

by a Standard of GRAP.

1.1 Significant estimates, assumptions and judgements
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimations, and uncertainty at reporting 

date, which hold a significant risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 

liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below: 

Financial Assets and Liabilities
Investment in associates
Management makes assumptions when determining the fair value of investments in associates. Fair value 

is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability settled between knowledgeable, willing 

parties in an arms-length transaction. The NYDA uses the discounted free cash-flow valuation technique or 

net asset value as the primary basis of valuing investment in associates. The NYDA uses discount rates of 

20%-40% to discount estimated future cash flows.  Where reliable information necessary for the application 

of the discounted free cash-flow valuation technique is not available, the investments are carried at cost. In 

circumstances where the NYDA makes a loan to an associate and such loan is impaired, this will be regarded 

as an impairment indicator of the investment. The NYDA does not have any financial instruments which are 

actively traded in the financial markets.

Determination of recoverable amount and impairment of non-financial assets:
Cash generating assets
Where impairment indicators exist, the determination of the recoverable amount of non-financial assets 

requires management to make assumptions on cash generating assets to determine the recoverable amount. 

On each reporting date, the NYDA assesses whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. 

If any such indication exists, the NYDA estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable 

amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use, and is determined for an 



129

National Youth Development Agency: Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

individual asset. If the asset cannot be assessed individually, it will be assessed as part of a cash-generating 

unit (CGU). Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset or 

CGU is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing the value in use, the 

estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value, using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 

current market assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Non-cash generating assets (services)
For non-cash generating assets, when an impairment indicators exist, management must determine a 

recoverable service amount. The recoverable service amount is the higher of assets fair value less costs 

to sell or value in use. It may not be possible to determine fair value less costs to sell in which case the 

alternative methods may be used to estimate fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is the present value of 

the assets remaining service potential.

Determination of recoverable amount and impairment of financial assets:
Where impairment indicators exist, the determination of the recoverable amount of financial assets requires 

management to make assumptions to determine the recoverable amount. On each reporting date, the NYDA 

assesses whether a financial asset is impaired. Individual financial assets are reviewed for any indicators of 

impairment. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a financial asset has been incurred, 

the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the assets’s carrying amount and the present 

value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (the 

effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). When an amount is outstanding in excess of 90 days, 

this is considered by management as objective evidence that an impairment loss has occurred. However, 

there may be other objective evidence, either indicating or not indicating impairment, which management 

considers when assessing a financial asset.

Equipment
Depreciation and carrying value of equipment
Residual values are the estimated amounts that could be currently obtained from disposal of the asset after 

deducting costs of disposal if the asset was already or age and condition expected at the end of useful 

lives. The estimation of useful lives and residual values of assets is based on management’s judgment. Any 

material adjustments to the estimated remaining useful life and residual value of assets will have an impact 

on the carrying value of those items.

Change in useful lives of assets
The useful lives and residual values of Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets were assessed 

at year end and the following adjustments made:

• Residual value for furniture and fittings have been adjusted to nil.

This adjustment will be accounted for prospectively.

Provision for Bonus
The provision for bonus is estimated based on management’s best estimate of the expected bonus pay-out 

which is based on average employee and organisational performance.
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1.2 Property, plant and equipment
Definition of equipment
Equipment is a tangible item that is held for use in the production or supply of goods and services, for rental 

to others or for administrative purposes and is expected to be used during more than one reporting period.

Initial recognition of equipment
The cost of an item of equipment is recognised as an asset when:

• it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item flow  

to the entity 

• the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Equipment is initially measured at cost. The cost of an item of equipment is the purchase price and other 

costs attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of 

operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving 

at the cost.

Where an asset is acquired for no consideration, or for nominal consideration, its cost shall be its fair value 

as at date of acquisition.

When significant components of an item of equipment have different useful lives or residual values, they are 

accounted for as separate items (major components) of equipment.

Subsequent recognition of equipment
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire an item of equipment and costs incurred subsequently to 

add to or replace the equipment or part thereof. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount 

of an item of equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Depreciation and impairment of equipment
Equipment is depreciated over its expected useful life on a straight-line basis, at rates estimated to write 

each asset down to its estimated residual value over the term of its useful life. Depreciation on equipment 

begins when the asset is available for use. Equipment is carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation and 

any accumulated impairment losses.

The residual value and useful life of an asset is reviewed at least at each reporting date and, if expectations 

differ from previous estimates, the change(s) is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

At each reporting date, all items of equipment are reviewed for any indication that they may be impaired. 

Impairment exists when an asset’s carrying amount is greater than its recoverable amount. The recoverable 

amount of an asset or CGU is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. If there is an 

indication of impairment, the asset’s recoverable amount is calculated. An impairment loss is recognised in 

surplus or deficit and the depreciation charge relating to the asset is adjusted for future periods.

The useful lives of items of equipment for the current and comparative period is as indicated below:

Item Average useful life
Furniture 5 -10 years
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Item Average useful life
Motor Vehicle 4 -6 years

Office equipment 5 - 10 years

Computer hardware 3 - 5 years

Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of its useful life or the remaining term of the lease

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit

Derecognition of equipment
The carrying amount of an item of equipment is derecognised: 

• on disposal

• when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or losses arising from the derecognition of an item of equipment is included in surplus or deficit 

when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of equipment 

is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the 

item.

1.3 Intangible assets

Definition of intangible assets
An intangible asset is an identifiable, non-monetary asset without physical substance.

An asset is identified as an intangible asset when it:

• is separable, is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, 

rented or exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, assets or liability

• arises from contractual rights (including rights arising from binding arrangements) or other legal 

rights (excluding rights granted by statute), regardless of whether those rights are transferable or 

separate from the entity or from other rights and obligations.

Initial recognition for intangible assets
• it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to 

the asset will flow to the entity

• the cost or fair value of the asset can be reliably measured.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.

The cost of an intangible asset acquired for no consideration or for a nominal consideration shall be its fair 

value as at the date of acquisition.

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when 

it is incurred.

An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is 

recognised when:

It is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.

• there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.

• there is an ability to use or sell it.

• it will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential.

• there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use 
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or sell the asset.

• the expenditure during its development can be measured.

Subsequent measurement of intangible assets
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment 

losses.

Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets
An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life. When based on an analysis of all the 

relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net 

cash inflows or service potential. An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is not amortised.

1.3 Intangible assets 
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are 

reviewed at least at each reporting date. If the expected useful life of the asset is different from previous 

estimates, the amortisation period is changed accordingly. If there was a change in the expected pattern of 

consumption of the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset, the amortisation 

method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Each change is accounted for as a change in accounting 

estimates, in accordance with the standard of GRAP on Accounting Policies, and Changes in Accounting 

Estimates and Errors.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight-line basis, to their residual values. 

The NYDA amortises its intangible assets at a rate of 14–20% per annum. Developed software is amortised 

when the software becomes available for use. Amortisation of these assets are recognised in surplus or 

deficit.

At each reporting date, all items of intangible assets are reviewed for any indication that they may be 

impaired. Impairment exists when an asset’s carrying amount is greater than its recoverable amount. The 

recoverable amount of an asset or CGU should be higher than its fair value less costs to sell and its value 

in use. If there is an indication of impairment, the asset’s recoverable amount is calculated. An impairment 

loss is recognised in surplus or deficit and the amortisation charge relating to the asset is adjusted for future 

periods. 

Derecognition of intangible assets

Intangible assets are derecognised:

• on disposal

• when no future economic benefits or service potential is expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss from the derecognition of an intangible asset is determined as the difference between the 

net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the asset. It is recognised in surplus or deficit when 

the asset is derecognised.
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1.4 Investments in associates
An associate is an entity in which NYDA has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a 

joint venture. The NYDA invests in equity of the young, rapidly growing companies that have the potential 

to develop into significant economic contributors and expanding companies that also create jobs in the 

economy. The NYDA meets the definition of the venture capital organisation as it invests in new companies 

with limited operating history and too small to raise capital in the public markets and have not reached a 

point where they are able to secure a bank loan or complete debt offering. NYDA has therefore opted to elect 

the venture capital organisation exemption and these investments in associates, upon initial recognition, are 

designated as at fair value through surplus or deficit in accordance with GRAP 104. Fair value adjustments 

are recognised through surplus or deficit. The NYDA uses the discounted free cash-flow valuation technique 

or net asset value as the primary basis for valuing investments in associates. The NYDA uses discount rates of 

20%–40% to discount estimated future cash flows. Where reliable information necessary for the application 

of the discounted free cash flow valuation technique is not available, the investments are carried at cost. 

In circumstances where the NYDA makes a loan to an associate and such a loan is impaired, this will be 

regarded as an impairment indicator of the investment.

1.5 Leases
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 

ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and 

rewards incidental to ownership.

Finance lease - Initial recognition

At the commencement of the lease term, the NYDA recognises finance leases as assets and liabilities in 

its Statement of Financial Position, at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased assets or, if lower, the 

present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease.

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate 

implicit in the lease, if this is practicable to determine. If not, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used. 

Any initial direct costs of the lessee are added to the amount recognised as an asset.

Subsequent measurement
Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding 

liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term, so as to produce a constant 

periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Contingent rents shall be charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Classification of finance lease
The leases are classified as finance leases as the assets will be used for the majority of their economic life.

Operating leases
Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as an expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-

line basis over the lease term, unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of 

the user’s benefit.
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1.6 Revenue from exchange transactions
An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, 

and directly gives an approximate equal value to the other party in the exchange.

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period, when 

those inflows result in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.

Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

Interest
Interest income is recognised in surplus or deficit for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, 

using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the 

amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating the interest income over the average expected life of 

the financial instruments. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 

receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the 

net carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the NYDA estimates 

cash flows, considering all contractual terms of the financial instruments, but does not consider future credit 

losses.

1.7 Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange 

transaction, an entity either receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately equal 

value in exchange, or gives value to another entity without directly receiving approximately equal value in 

exchange.

Government grants
Government grants are recognised as revenue.

• When it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction 

will flow to the entity.

• When the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

• to the extent that there has been compliance with any restrictions associated with the grant.

The entity assesses the degree of certainty attached to the flow of future economic benefits or service 

potential on the basis of the available evidence. Certain grants payable by one level of government to 

another are subject to the availability of funds.  Revenue from these grants is only recognised when it is 

probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 

entity. An announcement at the beginning of a financial year that grants may be available for qualifying 

entities in accordance with an agreed programme may not be sufficient evidence of the probability of the 

flow. Revenue is then only recognised once evidence of the probability of the flow becomes available.

Grants are measured at the fair value received or receivable

The government grant received does not have any specific condition attached and is recognised as revenue 

once committed. 



135

National Youth Development Agency: Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Gifts and donations

Gift and donations are recognised as revenue when:

• it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow 

to the entity

• the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Gifts and donations are measured at the increase in net assets.

1.8 Irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to legislation, including, but not limited to the Public 

Finance Management Act (PFMA) and National Treasury regulations.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is expenditure that was made in vain and could have been avoided had 

reasonable care been exercised.

Irregular expenditure is recorded in the notes to the financial statements when confirmed.  The amount 

recorded is equal to the value of irregularity unless it is impracticable to determine, in which case reasons 

are provided in the note.  Irregular expenditure is removed from the note when it is either condoned by the 

relevant authority or transferred to receivables for recovery.

1.9 Budget information
The approved budget is prepared on an accrual basis and presented by economic classification linked to 

performance outcome objectives. 

The financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting, and a comparison with 

the budgeted amounts for the reporting period has therefore have been included in the statement of 

comparison of budget and actual amounts.  Comparative information is not required.

1.10 Related Parties
The NYDA operates in an economic sector, currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned or 

controlled by the South African Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the 

three spheres of government in South Africa, only entities within the national sphere of government within 

the same Ministerial Portfolio are considered to be related parties.

Key management is defined as being individuals with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing 

and controlling the activities of the entity. We regard all members of the Operations Executive Committee, 

reporting directly to the Chief Executive Officer, as key management individuals.

1.11 Financial instruments
Initial recognition and measurement
On initial recognition, an instrument is classified as either a financial asset or a financial liability and recorded 

at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets and financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through 

surplus or deficit, any directly attributable incremental costs of acquisition or issue.
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Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a timeframe established by 

regulation or conversion in the marketplace (regular way of purchases), are recognised on the trade date, 

i.e. the date that the NYDA commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent measurement of financial instruments carried on the Statement of Financial Position is on the 

following basis:

• Investments 
Investments in equity instruments are designated as at fair value through surplus and deficit. All 

changes in fair value are recognised directly in surplus or deficit.

• Loans receivable 
Loans receivable are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that 

are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are carried at amortised cost, using the effective 

interest rate method, less any allowance for impairment. Gains and losses are recognised through 

surplus and deficit when the loans receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as interest 

through the amortisation process.

• Receivables from exchange transactions  
Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, 

using the effective interest method. Where the impact of discounting is not material, receivables 

are carried at the original invoice amount, less any allowance for impairment.

• Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 
Trade payables are initially recognised and carried at fair value and, subsequently measured at 

amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. Trade payables are derecognised when 

the obligation under the liability has been discharged.

• Cash and cash equivalents including cash on call  
Cash and cash equivalents, including cash on call comprise of demand deposits and short-term, 

highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash. Cash and cash 

equivalents, including cash on call, are subsequently measured at amortised cost. 

• Rental deposits  
Rental deposits include all monies paid by the NYDA as deposits for the rental of the buildings.  

Rental deposits are initially recognized and carried at fair value and subsequently measured at 

amortised cost.

• Investment in associates 
Refer to note 1.4

1.11 Financial instruments (Continued) 
Impairment of financial assets
Assets carried at amortised cost
At each reporting date, the NYDA assesses whether a financial asset is impaired. Individual financial assets 

are reviewed for any indicators of impairment. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a 

financial asset has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the assets’s 

carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s 

original effective interest rate (the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). 

When an amount is outstanding for longer than 90 days, this is considered by management as objective 
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evidence that an impairment loss has occurred. However, there may be other objective evidence that 

may or may not indicate impairment. Management considers such objective evidence when assessing a 

financial asset. The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced through use of an allowance account, 

when there is objective evidence that the asset may be impaired directly and against carrying value of an 

asset, when the asset is considered irrecoverable. The amount of the loss is recognised through surplus or 

deficit. If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be 

related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised 

impairment loss is reversed, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortised 

cost at the reversal date. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Derecognition of financial instruments 
• If the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

• If the NYDA retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to 

pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement.

• If the NYDA has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and has either transferred 

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or has neither transferred nor retained substantially 

all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the NYDA has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred 

nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the asset 

is recognised to the extent of the NYDA’s continuing involvement of the asset. Continuing involvement that 

takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying 

amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the NYDA could be required to repay.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Cash-generating assets and non-cash-generating assets
Cash-generating assets held with the primary objective of generating a commercial return.  As asset 

generates a commercial return when it is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-

oriented entity.  Holding an asset to generate a “commercial return” indicates that the NYDA intends to 

generate positive cash inflows from the asset (or from the cash-generating unit of which the asset is a part) 

and earn a commercial return that reflects the risk involved in holding the asset.  Non cash-generating assets 

are assets other than cash-generating assets.

Concessionary loans
Concessionary loans are loans granted on terms that are not market related. Concessionary loans are 

accounted for as separate components. The loan is recognised as a financial asset and the difference as a 

result of discounting at a market related interest rate is accounted for as an equity instrument.

1.12 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, 

such as paid vacation leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are 

recognised in the period in which the service is rendered.
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Liabilities for short-term employee benefits which are unpaid at year-end are measured at the undiscounted 

amount that the entity expects to pay in exchange for that service and had accumulated at the reporting 

date.

Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a plan under which the entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. 

The entity has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions, if the fund does not hold 

sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to services in the current or prior periods.  The 

entity’s contributions to the defined contribution funds are established in terms of the rules governing those 

plans.  Contributions are recognised in surplus or deficit in the period in which the service is rendered by 

the relevant employees, unless the standard requires or permits the inclusion of the contribution in the cost 

of an asset. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or reduction 

in future payments is available.

Where contributions to a defined contribution plan do not fall due wholly within 12 months after the end 

of the period in which the employees render the related service, they are discounted, using a risk-free rate, 

determined by reference to market yields at the reporting date on government bonds or by reference to 

market yields on high-quality corporate bonds.

Termination benefits
The NYDA recognises termination benefits as a liability and an expense when, and only when, the entity is 

demonstrably committee to either

• Terminate the employment of an employee or group of employees before the normal retirement 

date, or 

• Provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made in order to encourage voluntary redundancy.

The NYDA is demonstrably committed to a termination when, and only when, it has detailed formal plan 

for the termination and is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.  The detailed plan shall include, as a 

minimum:

• The location, function and approximate number of employees whose services are to be terminated;

• The termination benefits for each job classification or function; and 

• The time at which the plan will be implemented.  Implementation shall begin as soon as possible 

and the period of time to complete implementation shall be such that material changes to the plan 

are not likely. 

1.13 Project disbursements
Disbursements to projects are categorised and disclosed as follows:

• Project disbursements are approved grant funding made to third-party service providers, who 

plan, implement, and manage youth development projects, as well as payments relating to youth 

development projects, managed internally by the NYDA, using its own capacity.

1.14 Commitments
Where a project has been approved, but has not been accrued for, or provided for, it is disclosed as 
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commitments in the notes to the annual financial statements. 

1.15 Deferred income
Deferred income represents revenues collected but not earned, as at reporting date. This includes grants 

from foreign institutions.

1.16 Joint Ventures
A joint venture is a binding arrangement, whereby two or more parties are committed to undertake an 

activity that is subject to joint control. Joint control is the agreed sharing of control over an activity by a 

binding arrangement, and exists only when the strategic financial and operational decisions relating to the 

activity require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control (the ventures). The binding agreement 

establishes joint control over the joint venture. Such requirement ensures that no single venture is in a 

position to unilaterally control the activity

Jointly controlled operations
Where the operation of a joint venture comprises the use of the venture’s assets and other resources, without 

the establishment of a separate entity, the joint venture is referred to as a jointly controlled operation

The entity recognises, in its separate annual financial statements and, consequently, in its annual financial 

statements:

• the assets that it controlled and the liabilities that it incurred

• the expense that it incurred and its share of the revenue that it earned from the sale or provision of 

the goods or services by the joint venture

Jointly controlled assets
Where the entity undertakes its activities under a joint-venture arrangement directly, the controlling entity’s 

share of jointly controlled assets, and any liabilities incurred jointly with other ventures, is recognised in the 

statement of financial position of the entity and classified according to their nature. Revenue from the sale 

or use of the entity’s share of the output of jointly controlled assets, and its share of joint venture expense 

are recognised in surplus or deficit.

1.17 Grant disbursements
Grant disbursements are recognised once the grant has been approved and the grant holder has been 

informed of such approval.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
2015 

R ‘000
2014 

R ‘000

2. Receivables from exchange transactions

Sundry debtors 5 712 1 914

Staff loans 950 929

Prepaid expenses 1 842 2 201

Interest receivable banks 436 419

Less: Allowance for impairment (1 752) (1 264)

7 188 4 199

Receivables allowance for impairment reconciliation 2015 

Allowance for 
impairment

2014
Impairment 

expanse

Allowance for 
impairment

2015

Allowance for Impairment (1 264) (488) (1 752)

Receivables allowance for impairment reconciliation 2014

Allowance for 
impairment

2013

Impairment 
expanse

Allowance for 
impairment

2014

Allowance for impairment (1 264) - (1 264)

3. Receivables from non-exchange transactions

Independent Development Trust 10 093 8 580

4.Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash at bank and on hand 71 385 78 951

Unrestricted cash 71 385 78 951

CIPC 299 309

Massmart Holding Limited 696 593

Joint Venture - University of JHB Institute 4 085 -

Restricted cash 5 080 902

Cash and cash equivalents 76 465 79 853

Restricted cash represent funds earmarked for specific projects where the NYDA is in partnership with 

third parties, hence such funds are restricted and cannot be used for any purpose other than the purpose 

as stipulated in the partnership agreement.

Guarantees
ABSA bank Limited has issued rental guarantees, on behalf of the NYDA in favour of the Department of 

Public Works for the amount of R2.3 million (2014: R2.2 million)

20152014

R ‘000R ‘000
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5. Property, plant and equipment

2015 2014

Cost / 
Valuation

Accumulated 
depreciation 

and
accumulated 
impairment

Carrying  
value

Cost / 
 Valuation

Accumulated 
depreciation 

and
accumulated 
impairment

Carrying 
value

Motor vehicles 1 783 (1 515) 268 1 783 (1 507) 276

Office equipment 9 676 (7 027) 2 649 8 965 (5 810) 3 155

Leasehold improvements 31 393 (29 991) 1 402 30 586 (29 300) 1 286

Furniture 15 025 (11 281) 3 744 14 274 (10 378) 3 896

Computer equipment 18 424 (12 158) 6 266 15 247 (10 383) 4 864

Total 76 301 (61 972) 14 329 70 855 (57 378) 13 477

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2015 

Opening 
balance Additions Disposals Transfers

Write 
backs

Deprecia-
tion

Impair-
ment  

loss Total

Motor vehicles 276 - - - - (8) - 268

Office equipment 3 155 581 (20) 165 - (1 198) (34) 2 649

Leasehold 

improvements 1 286 806 - - - (690) - 1 402

Furniture 3 896 500 - - 72 (679) (45) 3 744

Computer 

equipment 4 864 3 332 (170) - 12 (1 717) (55) 6 266

13 477 5 219 (190) 165 84 (4 292) (134) 14 329

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2014

Opening 
balance Additions Disposals Transfers

Deprecia-
tion

Impair-
ment  

loss Total

Motor vehicles 286 - - - (61) 51 276

Office  

equipment 3 934 129 - 605 (1 296) (217) 3 155

Leasehold 

improvements 921 1 069 - - (675) (29) 1 286

Furniture 5 329 300 (4) (564) (702) (463) 3 896

Computer 

equipment 5 010 1 766 (133) 194 (1 587) (386) 4 864

15 480 3 264 (137) 235 (4 321) (1 044) 13 477
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6. Intangible assets

2015 2014

Cost / 
Valuation

Accumulat-
ed amorti-
sation and
accumulat-
ed impair-

ment

Carrying  
value

Cost /  
Valuation

Accumulat-
ed amorti-
sation and
accumulat-
ed impair-

ment

Carrying  
value

Software developed in-house 10 491 (6 523) 3 968 10 191 (5 571) 4 620

Computer software purchased 2 849 (1 926) 923 2 709 (1 611) 1 098

Software under 

development

92 - 92 336 - 336

Total 13 432 (8 449) 4 983 13 236 (7 182) 6 054

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2015

 

Opening 
balance

Additions Transfers Write Off Amortisation Impairment 
loss

Total

Software developed  

in-house

4 620 300 - - (952) - 3 968

Computer software 

 purchased

1 098 352 (165) (7) (351) (4) 923

Software under  

development

336 - - - - (244) 92

6 054 652 (165) (7) (1 303) (248) 4 983

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2014

Opening  
balance

Additions Transfers 
changes

Other  
movements

Amortisation Impairment  
loss

Total

Software developed  

in-house

4 918 - - 413 (711) - 4 620

Computer software 

 purchased

970 408 92 - (351) (21) 1 098

Software under  

development

3 648 413 (328) (413) - (2 984) 336

9 536 821 (236) - (1 062) (3 005) 6 054
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7. Investments in associates
Name of 
entity

Nature of 
Enterprise

%
Shareholding

Cumulative
Investment 

at cost 2015

Cumulative
Investment

 at cost 2014

Cumulative
Repayment 

received 
2015 

Cumulative
Repayment  

received 
2014

Accumulated
Fair Value 

 adjustments
2015

Accumulated
Fair Value 

adjustments
2014

Carrying 
amount

2015

Carrying 
amount 

2014

Franchise 
fund

Private equity 
investment

80 % 101 400 101 400 (100 000) (100 000) 3 357 4 679 4 757 4 679

Chicken 
Kwasa
(Pty) Ltd

Fast Food 26 % 300 300 - - (300) (300) - -

K5 Transport 
Logistics

Airline charter 10 % - - - - - - - -

Decti Rating 
(Pty) Ltd

BEE rating 
agency

19 % - - - - - - - -

Vynide 
Investments

Manufacturing 10 % 1 000 1 000 - (1 000) (1 000) - -

102 700 102 700 (100 000) (100 000) 2 057 3 379 4 757 4 679

Investments in associates 

In respect of the investments above in which the NYDA has less than 20% shareholding, the NYDA has 

significant influence by virtue of having representation on the Board of Directors and also having a right 

to participate in policy-making processes, including participation in decision-making about dividends and 

other distributions. All the above associates have been incorporated in the Republic of South Africa. The 

cost of investments and fair value adjustments less than R1 thousand have been shown as nil. 

Based on the contractual agreement with Business Partners (Pty) Ltd, the NYDA contributes 80% of the 

funding for Franchise Fund loans. However the NYDA only exercises significant influence and does not 

participate in the management of the fund. Therefore, it is classified as an investment in associate. 

Fair value adjustment is disclosed in note 16. 

Summarised franchise fund

Opening carrying amount 4 679 2 119

Repayment received during the year - -

Fair value adjustment 79 2 560

Carrying Value at the End of the Year 4 757 4 679

Due within more than one year 4 757 4 679

4 757 4 679



144

National Youth Development Agency: Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2015

Notes to the Financial Statements 2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

8. Loan receivable from exchange transactions

Small-medium enterprise 259 308 259 308

Micro-loans, direct lending and intermediaries 114 705 114 705

Co-operatives 11 233 11 233

Gross advances 385 246 385 246

Add: Interest receivable 99 694 83 102

Less: Loans written off (6 782) (6 143)

Less: Cumulative capital repayments (235 887) (229 925)

Sub totals 242 271 232 280

Less: allowance for Impairment (239 541) (225 618)

Small-medium enterprise (160 755) (151 903)

Micro-loans, direct lending and intermediaries (69 424) (64 944)

Co-operatives (9 362) (8 771)

Net loans receivables from exchange transactions 2 730 6 662

Due within one year 1 109 2 866

Due within more than one year 1 621 3 796

2 730 6 662

Loans receivables impairment reconciliation 2015

Allowance of
impairment 

March 2014  R’000

Impairment
Reversal

R’000

Impairment
Expense

R’000

Allowance of
Impairment
2015 R’000

Small medium enterprise 151 903 (1 708) 10 560 160 755

Micro loans direct lending and intermediaries 64 944 (31) 4 511 69 424

Co-operatives 8 771 - 591 9 362

225 618 (1 739) 15 662 239 541

Loans receivable impairment reconciliation 2014

Allowance of 
impairment
2013 R’000

Impairment 
reversal

R’000

Impairment
Expense

R’000

Allowance of 
impairment
2014 R’000

Small medium enterprise 130 598 (878) 22 183 151 903

Micro loans direct lending and intermediaries 53 996 (1 393) 12 341 64 944

Co-operatives 8 298 - 473 8 771

192 892 (2 271) 34 997 225 618

In the impairment reconciliation, the spread of the loans receivable impairment is as follows:

Less than 30 days - -

Less than 60 days - -

Less than 90 days - -

More than 90 days 239 541 225 618

239 541 225 618
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2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

8. Loan receivable from exchange transactions (continued)

In assessing its loan book for any indicators of impairment, the NYDA considered the following factors 

over and above the amount in excess of 90 days:

• Whether the borrower was trading or not

• The age of the debt

• Progreess of the attorneys in recovering the debt and their opinion on the recoverability

• The reliance of the borrower on the few customers and the loss of this customer base

• The cash flows of the business as shown on the bank statement and or management accounts

• Defaults on expected repayments of interest and principal amounts by the borrower

Range of interest rates

Small-medium enterprise 6-18% 6-18%

Micro-loans,direct lending and intermediaries 6-24% 6-24%

Co-operatives 3,5-10% 3,5-10%

9. Finance lease obligation 

Minimum lease payments due

- within one year 427 855

- in second to fifth year inclusive - 427

427 1 282

less: future finance charges (10) (82)

Present value of minimum lease payments 417 1 200

Present value of minimum lease payments due

 - within one year 417 783

 - in second to fifth year inclusive - 417

417 1 200

Non-current liabilities - 417

Current liabilities 417 783

417 1 200

The NYDA has leased photocopiers from Konica Minolta for a period ranging from 31-36 months for 

fixed monthly rental of R87,000 (2014:R87,000), payable in arrears with no residual value. Ownership of 

these machines will not pass to the end of the lease term.
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2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

10.   Payables from exchange transactions

Trade payables 55 107 52 087

Accruals 19 927 17 450

75 034 69 537

The NYDA trade payables generally do not exceed a maturity of four months and the fair value is 

considered to be a reasonable approximation of the carrying value. 

11. Employee cost provisions

Reconciliation of Employee cost accruals - 2015    

Opening Balance Additions Utilised during the 
year

Reversed during 
the year

Total

Leave pay 5 366 12 730 (10 961) - 7 135

Staff bonuses 8 759 9 703 (7 830) (929) 9 703

14 125 22 433 (18 791) (929) 16 838

Reconciliation of Employee cost provisions - 2014

Opening Balance Additions Utilised during the 
year

Reversed during 
the year

Total

Leave pay 7 780 8 624 (11 038) - 5 366

Staff bonuses 7 776 8 759 (7 051) (725) 8 759

15 556 17 383 (18 089) (725) 14 125

Staff bonuses are expected to be paid during the new financial year, the leave pay accrual is expected to be 

utilised when employee takes leave or resigns.

12. Deferred income

Flemish government — donor funding 1 936 2 498

Department of trade and industry 535 549

Manufacturing, Engineering and Related Services Sector Education and Training Au-

thority

431 1 628

Prince’s Youth Business International 236 236

Independent Development Trust (IDT) 3 199 1 901

Industrial development Corporation of SA Limited (IDC) 4 000 -

Front end Fees 179 294

Education, Training and Development Practices 215 215

10 731 7 321
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Deferred income relates to conditional grants received from:
• The Flemish government for the funding of the NYDA’s Civil Society Support Programme.

• The Department of Trade and Industry for the training of community enterprise development officers.

• United Nations Population Fund for research and policy, in respect of the health and wellbeing 

project.

• Manufacturing, Engineering and Related Services Sector Education and Training Authority for the 

funding of technical training and career guidance.

• Prince’s Youth Business International for the development of an e-mentoring system.

• Education, Training and Development Practices Sector Education and training authority for second 

chance matric re-write.

13. Financial instruments

Set out below is the classification of financial instruments held by the NYDA at 31 March 2015.

2015

Financial assets 
at amortised cost 

R’000

Financial assets as at fair 
value through surplus and 

deficit  R’000

Financial 
liabilities at 

amortised cost 
R’000

Total

Assets

Loans and receivables from 

exchange transactions

1 621 - - 1 621

Short-term portion of loans 

receivable 

from exchange transactions

1 109 - - 1 109

Rental deposit 1 258 - - 1 258

Investment in associates - 4 757 - 4 757

Receivables from exchange 

transactions

5 346 - - 5 346

Receivable from non-

exchange transactions

10 093 - - 10 093

Cash and cash equivalents 76 465 - - 76 465

95 892 4 757 - 100 649

Liabilities

Finance lease obligation - - 417 417

Trade and other amounts 

payable from exchange 

transactions

- - 75 034 75 034

- - 75 451 75 451
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2014

Financial assets at 
amortised cost

R’000

Financial assets as at fair 
value

through surplus and deficit 
R’000

Financial
liabilities at

amortised cost 
R’000

Total

Assets

Loans and receivables from 

exchange transactions
3 796 - - 3 796

Short-term portion of loans 

receivable from exchange 

transactions

2 866 - - 2 866

Rental deposit 1 525 - - 1 525

Investment in associates - 4 678 - 4 678

Receivables from exchange 

transactions

1 998 - - 1 998

Receivable from non-

exchange transactions

8 580 - - 8 580

Cash and cash equivalents 79 854 - - 79 854

98 619 4 678 - 103 297

Liabilities

Finance lease obligation - - 1 200 1 200

Trade and other amounts 

payable from exchange 

transactions

- - 69 537 69 537

- - 70 737 70 737
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13. Financial instruments (continued)

The primary risks associated with the financial instruments held by the NYDA are credit, liquidity, market, 

interest rate and portfolio risk

Credit risk
One of the NYDA’s core business activities was to invest in small and medium enterprises. Consequently, 

the Agency was exposed to credit risk, which refers to the risk that loans made to third parties will not be 

repaid. The objective of credit risk management was to minimise financial losses that may arise as a result 

of third parties failing to discharge their obligations.

 The credit risk at the investment stage of any potential investment was researched and assessed by means 

of a due diligence process, whereby the entrepreneur was evaluated, the viability of the enterprise was 

considered, and various other indications were established and verified. In addition, the NYDA 

implemented a credit policy which assisted in managing credit risk. It comprises the following key elements:

• Approval process

• Cash flow-based lending methodology

• Attaching protective covenants to funding arrangements

• Collections policy and procedures

• Delinquency management

• Monitoring

• Mentorship

There have been no changes in the exposure or the policy used to manage credit risk.

Maximum exposure
During the period that the NYDA has exposure to a borrower or investee company, the Agency conducts 

an ongoing evaluation of the business and does not provide loans to any single entity in excess of  

R5 million. The NYDA places its cash reserves, which are in the form of cash and cash equivalents and rental 

deposits with the South African Reserve Bank and local financial institutions which have a minimum rating of 

AAA. Loans are advanced to individuals, small and medium enterprises and co-operatives located in rural 

areas. Investments in associates include investments in small and medium enterprises located in rural areas, 

as well as funds invested by local financial institutions, which have a minimum rating of AAA. Changes in 

credit exposure and the maximum credit exposure for all financial assets are detailed in the table below:
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2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

Loans receivable from exchange transactions 

Micro-loans, direct lending and intermediaries 206 470

Small and medium enterprises 2 520 6 192

Co-operatives 4 -

2 730 6 662

General 

Receivables from exchange transactions 5 346 1 998

Receivable from non-exchange transactions 10 093 8 580

Investment in associates 4 757 4 678

Cash and cash equivalents 76 465 79 854

Rental deposit 1 258 1 525

97 919 96 635

Total 100 649 103 297
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Collateral and other credit enhancement on loans receivable 
The nature of the NYDA’s target market is black youth who have not accumulated assets which are significant, in relation 

to the loans advanced to them. Therefore, the value of tangible security offered is not adequate. For loans less than 

R100 000, a third party stands as surety and co-principal debtor for a portion (10 to 50%) of the loan. The surety provider 

must be in salaried employment with no record of defaulting on loans. During the year under review, the NYDA did not 

take possession of any collateral in respect of loans. There is no collateral held for other classes of financial assets. The 

NYDA does not take possession of collateral for use in its own operations.

2015 Neither past 
due nor

impaired
R’000

Value arrears
for 1-30 days 

R’000

Value in arrears 
for 3160 days 

R’000

Value in arrears 
for 61-90 days 

R’000

Value in 
arrears for 

>90 days 
R’000

Total

Loans and 

receivables 

from exchange 

transactions

1 436 15 8 8 1 263 2 730

Receivables 

from exchange 

transactions

- - 5 346 - - 5 346

Receivable 

from non-

exchange 

transactions

- 10 093 - - - 10 093

Investment in 

associates

4 757 - - - - 4 757

Cash and cash 

equivalents

76 465 - - - - 76 465

Rental deposit 1 258 - - - - 1 258

83 916 10 108 5 354 8 1 263 100 649
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2014 Neither past 

due nor
impaired

R’000

Value arrears
for 

1-30 days 
R’000

Value in arrears 
for 31-60 days 

R’000

Value in arrears 
for 61-90 days 

R’000

Value in 
arrears for 

>90 days 
R’000

Total

Loans and 

receivables 

from exchange 

transactions

4 044 79 57 37 2 445 6 662

Receivables 

from exchange 

transactions

- - 4 101 1 893 1 998

Receivable 

from non-

exchange 

transactions

- 8 580 - - - 8 580

Investment in 

associates

4 678 - - - - 4 678

Cash and cash 

equivalents

79 854 - - - - 79 854

Rental deposit 1 525 - - - - 1 525

90 101 8 659 61 138 4 338 103 297

Loans past due but not impaired (loans renegotiated) 

During the year under review no loans were renegotiated. 

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the NYDA will not be able to meet its funding commitments and other 

financial obligations, as and when they fall due. The funding provided to small and medium enterprises 

is usually characterised by fixed maturities of up to five years, scheduled repayments and a limited 

moratorium on capital repayments and interest. One of the cornerstones of the lending practice adopted 

is consideration of the certainty of cash flows, and the ability of the borrower to absorb and service debt. 

The NYDA has adopted a conservative cash-flow management policy to manage the risk of investment 

made in instruments which are not readily realisable, in order to keep a healthy liquidity position.

The NYDA has the following mechanisms in place to ensure that it has the funds available to meet its 

commitments:

• A strategic plan and a three-year budget are prepared and approved by the Board of Directors prior 

to the start of the financial year

• At half-year, the NYDA conducts a revision of its annual budget and reassesses its liquidity needs. In 

addition, an application for recapitalisation is made to its Executive Authority and National Treasury.

• On a quarterly basis, the strategic plan and budget are reviewed by a committee comprised of 

divisional heads, the Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer

• Once a commitment has been made, NYDA keeps record of all gross commitments and drawn-down 

commitments or cancelled commitments and undrawn commitments.
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Liquidity risk (continued)

• A distinction is made between encumbered and unencumbered cash resources of the NYDA.

• Three-year projections of cash flow, undrawn commitments brought forward, new commitments, 

cancelled commitments and undrawn commitments carried forward are prepared.

• Disbursements on commitments are made in several tranches, based on individual project needs.

• Finance provided to small enterprises is usually in the form of self-liquidating financial instruments 

with minimal funds tied in equity investments.

Expected maturity dates: financial liabilities
• The NYDA’s short-term liabilities are mainly comprised of debts arising in the ordinary course of 

business and commitments to making grants for the implementation of National Youth Service and 

Skills Development projects. Debts arising in the ordinary course of business are normally settled 

over a period of not more than two months from the date of invoice.

• Grant commitments are usually made over a period of 1 to 18 months and finance leases over a 

period of 31 to 36 months.

Expected maturity dates: financial assets 

The NYDA’s financial assets comprise mainly cash in current accounts with local financial institutions and 

loans due from small businesses. Except for loans due from small businesses and restricted cash, other 

financial assets are very liquid and not subject to any notice periods for draw down.

The NYDA’s exposure to illiquid assets is comprised of investments in unlisted entities and restricted cash 

flows. This accounts for less than 7% of the carrying value of financial assets

The NYDA manages its liquidity risk by placing funds in short-term, highly liquid investments and ensuring 

that the maturities of financial assets match those of its financial liabilities.

The balance of the loans receivable, outstanding as at 31 March 2015, is scheduled to be repaid as follows: 

Maturity period
Due within 12 months 1 109 3 796

Due thereafter 1 621 2 866

Total value of loans 2 730 6 662
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2015 Due
immediately or 
within 1 month 

R’000

Due later than 1 
month but not later 

than 12 months 
R’000

Due later than
12 months 

R’000

Total

Receivable from exchange transactions - 5 346 - 5 346

Receivable from non-exchange 

transactions

10 093 - - 10 093

Cash and cash equivalents 76 465 - - 76 465

Rental deposit - - 1 258 1 258

Total current assets 86 558 5 346 1 258 93 162

Trade and other payable from exchange 

transactions

- (75 034) - (75 034)

Finance lease obligation - (417) - (417)

Total Current liabilities - (75 451) - (75 451)

Net liquidity of continuing operations 86 558 (70 105) 1 258 (17 711)

2014

Due
immediately or 
within 1 month 

R’000

Due later than 1 
month but not later 

than 12 months 
R’000

Due later than
12 months 

R’000 Total

Receivable from exchange transactions - 1 998 - 1 998

Receivable from non-exchange 

transactions

8 580 - - 8 580

Cash and cash equivalents 79 854 - - 79 854

Rental deposit - - 1 525 1 525

Total current assets 88 434 1 998 1 525 91 957

Trade and other payable from exchange 

transactions

- (69 537) - (69 537)

Finance lease obligation - (417) (783) (1 200)

Total Current liabilities - (69 945) (783) (70 737)

Net liquidity of continuing operation 88 434 (67 956) 742 21 220

Market risk

Market risk is defined as the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will 

fluctuate, because of changes in market prices and includes currency risk, interest rate risk and other price 

risk (which are factors other than currency and interest rate risk that may influence fair value of the financial 

asset). The entity is primarily exposed to interest rate risk. Its objective is to ensure that it minimises losses 

of interest income as a result of utilising cash which attracts interest at a variable rate, to invest in other 

financial assets bearing interest at fixed rate. Hence, not all its loans granted are variable rate loans.

The NYDA is not directly exposed to currency risk as it does not enter into foreign currency transactions.

There have been no changes in the exposure or the policy used to manage market risk.
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2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

Interest rate risk
Changes in interest rates will affect the revenue stream of the NYDA, as most of the financial assets’ 

returns are linked to the prime rate. 

Sensitivity analysis
At 31 March 2015, if interest rates had been 200 basis points higher, with all other variables held constant, 

interest income would have increased by approximately R1.5 million (2014: R1.7 million). Consequently, 

income and accumulated reserves would have increased accordingly. If interest rates had been 100 

basis points lower, with all other variables held constant, interest income would have decreased by 

approximately R1.5 million (2014: R1.7 million). Consequently, income and accumulated reserves would 

have decreased accordingly. The change would have occurred because of variable rate interest which 

NYDA earns from its financial assets which include cash and loans.

 

The NYDA’s exposure to interest rate risk is as follows: 

Small and medium enterprises 2 520 6 192

Micro-loans, direct lending and intermediaries 206 470

Co-operatives 4 -

Cash and cash equivalents 76 465 79 854

79 195 86 516

Fair values
Fair value hierarchy of financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit
The NYDA measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the 

inputs used in making measurement:

Level 1: Quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the financial assets 

either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices)

Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data.

Investment in associates

Level 1 - -

Level 2 - -

Level 3 4 757 4 678

4 757 4 678

Gains and losses on investment in associates
Level 1 - -

Level 2 - -

Level 3 79 2 560

79 2 560

20152014

R ‘000R ‘000
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Fair values (continued)
Investment in associates is measured, using the discounted cash flow method and net asset-value method, 

which are not based on the observable market data. No transfers between fair value hierarchy levels took 

place during the current year. The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities approximates their 

fair value.

Portfolio risk
Portfolio risk arises as a result of loans and advances being concentrated in any particular industry, 

location or stage of development. The risk is managed through the steering committee which sets limits of 

exposure to the various industries. The portfolio allocation is reviewed on a quarterly basis, at meetings of 

the steering committee.

The NYDA recognises that it may face the risk of over-exposing itself in certain situations and considers 

the following in determining concentration:

• Overconcentration of loans to a particular industry

• Overconcentration of loans to business controlled by common shareholders or grants to a single 

service provider

• Overconcentration of funding in illiquid equity investments.

Industry
Building and Construction 20% 20%

Health 10% 10%

Manufacturing 4% 4%

Printing 1% 1%

Retail 18% 18%

Services 18% 18%

Transport 6% 6%

Hospitality and Leisure 6% 23%

100% 100%

Over-exposure to a small number of counterparties
In terms of the credit policy relating to loans, no entity, in which more than 25% of the issued shares is 

held by an existing shareholder of a borrowing company, is entitled to loans in aggregate exceeding R20 

million and not more than R5 million for a single business. Individual companies and shareholders with 

exposure of less than R5 million, are approved by the Loans Approval and Review Committee; between 

R5 million and R10 million by the Credit Risk and Investment Committee and between R10 million and R20 

million by the Board of Directors.
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2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

Capital management
The NYDA considers the annual government grant it receives as its capital and obtains its capital 

by making annual applications to the National Treasury. The funds which are received are held 

in money market instruments with local financial institutions which have a minimum AAA rating. 

NYDA has a formalised budgeting and forecasting process in place, which allows for monitoring on 

a monthly basis, of the cash reserves and commitments of the Agency. It maintains cash on demand, 

to meet forecasted monthly cash outflows with the residual being maintained on call accounts.  

 

The NYDA conducts rolling forecasts to anticipate its cash requirements to meet operating 

expenses, capital expenditure and draw-down requests, in respect of commitments made 

regarding grants and loans. The NYDA tracks loan and grant approvals, commitments and undrawn 

commitments on a continuous basis, in order to provide a basis for anticipating capital calls. 

The NYDA makes commitments from its existing capital base, notwithstanding that it has an expectation 

that the National Treasury will recapitalise the NYDA on an annual basis. The NYDA continuously keeps 

record of reserves which are encumbered and restricted, in order to avoid deficits arising from the over 

commitment of funds. 

Concessionary loans
The NYDA has advance interest-free loans to small and medium enterprises which are payable in full at 

the end of their five year loan term. The NYDA has advance the following concessionary loans which are 

impaired:

 
Grace Zagorski cc 561 561

Kekana Rumsey Zagorski cc 500 500

Tuscan Mood 201 (Pty) Ltd 1 230 1 230

2 291 2 291

14. Interest income Cash and cash equivalents 3 012 2 424

Loans receivables -  Impaired 15 848 18 887

Loans receivable -  Not impaired 470 973

19 330 22 284
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2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

15. Other income 

Repayment from Masisizane* 256 791

Sale of Tender documents - 2

Sponsorship income 778 -

Legal Fees Recovered from clients - 30

Front end fees 115 123

Sales of tables at SA Youth Awards - -

Sale of access cards - 5

Recoveries from fraudulent payments 7 000 -

Merseta management fee 66 227

Recoveries from employees - 22

Proceeds on rental deposit 6 20

Franchise fund recovery 615 -

Other income - University of Johannesburg 88 -

Unallocated receipts - written off 954 -

9 878 1 220

* Masisizane income is as a result of recovery of loans granted from the previous Old Mutual Masisizane 

fund which was derecognised in a prior year.

16. Fair value adjustments

Fair value adjusted to designated investments in associates 79 2 560

17. Auditors’ remuneration

External audit fees 5 755 7 322

Internal audit fees 1 514 1 492

7 269 8 814
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2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

18. Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation

Depreciation- Computers 1 717 1 589

Depreciation - Office equipment 1 197 1 293

Depreciation - Furniture 677 700

Depreciation - Leasehold Imp 691 676

Depreciation - Motor vehicles 8 61

4 290 4 323

Less: attributable to project disbursements (1 881) (2 439)

Total depreciation 2 409 1 880

Amortisation 

Intangible assets 1 303 1 062

Less: attributable to project disbursements (112) (168)

Amortisation of intangible assets 1 191 894

19. Employee related costs

Salaries and allowances 165 985 155 089

Provident fund: defined contribution plan 9 396 9 142

Termination benefits 1 095 4 225

Total employee cost 176 476 168 456

Less: attributable to project disbursements (113 812) (101 655)

62 664 66 801

20. Impairment of assets

Small and medium enterprises 10 560 22 183

Micro-loans, direct lending and intermediaries 4 511 12 341

Co-operatives 591 473

Other Financial Assets 15 662 34 997

Equipment impairment 134 195

Intangible assets impairment 246 2 990

Other financial assets 16 042 38 182

Reversal of impairments 

Small and medium enterprises (1 707) (878)

Micro-loans, direct lending and intermediaries (31) (1 393)

- -

(1 738) (2 271)
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2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

20. Impairment of assets (continued) 

Write-off of assets 

Loans receivable from exchange transactions 639 1 054

Equipment written off (84) 847

Intangibles written off 7 14

562 1 915

 

21. Operating lease

Building 20 483 16 525

Less: attributable to project disbursements (14 522) (11 657)

5 961 4 868

Future minimum rentals under non-cancellable operating leases within one year 

Buildings 21 017 17 172

After one year, but not more tha five years Buildings 14 293 21 524

The leases relate to the buildings occupied by the NYDA and the average terms vary from 3-5 years and the escala-

tion rates range from 8 - 10%.  There are renewal options up to the period of 3 years, there is however no option to 

purchase.  

22. Donor-funding disbursements 

The respective Donor funding disbursements are as follows: 

Flemish government 1 611 1 082

Department of Trade and Industry (DTI) Community Development Officer 14 967

Construction Internship Programme (CETA) - 373

Independent Development Trust (IDT) 8 795 6 679

Education, Training and Development SETA - 3 285

Manufacturing, Engineering and Related Services SETA Career Guidance 1 131 596

Manufacturing, Engineering and Related Services SETA Technical Training - 1 112

11 551 14 094

23. Grant disbursements

The respective disbursements are as follows:

Grant disbursement — co-operatives 7 505 2 820

Grant disbursement — individuals and groups 22 135 5 518

Grant disbursement — special projects - 2 197

29 640 10 535
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2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

24. Project disbursements

The respective disbursements are as follows:

Service delivery channel* 85 522 75 268

Economic Development 46 113 51 640

Corporate Partnerships and International Relations 12 479 10 363

Communications and Corporate Affairs* 5 008 9 010

National Youth Service and Skills Development 80 272 80 839

Research and Policy 19 563 15 137

Chief Operations Officer - 80

Executive Directors Projects 16 120 12 182

Total project disbursements 265 077 254 519

*Service Delivery Channel includes all NYDA branches

25. Cash generated from operations

Deficit (14 061) (32 297)

Adjustments for:

Gain (loss) on sale of assets and liabilities 5 (58)

Fair value adjustment (79) (2 560)

Interest Income (16 609) (16 730)

Write-off of assets 562 1 915

Donor funded Income (11 551) (14 094)

Impairment deficit 14 303 35 911

Movements in provisions 2 713 1 428

Depreciation and Amortisation 5 595 5 385

Changes in working capital:

Decrease/(Increase) in Receivables from exchange transactions (3 067) 4 030

Other receivables from non-exchange transactions (1 420) (8 580)

(Decrease)/Increase in trade and other payables 5 500 26 841

Decrease/(Increase) in Rental deposit 267 (529)

Deferred income 14 961 12 795

Cash (utilised) / Received from (deficit/surplus) 2 881 13 456

Net movement in loans receivables 5 962 (3 912)

3 081 9 545
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2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

26. Non-cash transactions

Additions to equipment to the value of R5.2 million (2014: R3.3 million) include non-cash transfers of assets 

impaired to the value of  R134 000 (2014: Nil)

27. Directors’ emoluments

Chief Executive Officer: Khathutshelo Ramukumba (appointed 01 June 2014)
Salary for managerial service to NYDA 1 690 -

Allowances 69 -

Employee termination settlement cost - -

Total Short-term Employee Benefit 1 759 -

Defined contribution plan 134 -

1 893 -

Chief Executive Officer: Steven Ngubeni (resigned 31 December 2013) - 1 299

Salary for managerial service to NYDA

Allowances - 305

Employee termination settlement cost - 2 785

Total Short-term Employee Benefit - 4 389

Defined contribution plan - 141

- 4 530

Acting Chief Executive Officer: Ayanda Makaula

(Acted during the period: 5 August 2013 and 31 January 2014 ) 

Salary for managerial service to NYDA - 768

Allowances - -

Total Short-term Employee Benefit - 768

Defined contribution plan - -

- 768

Acting Chief Executive Officer: Khathutshelo Ramukumba (appointed 01

February 2014)

Salary for managerial service to NYDA 224 112

Allowances 13 6

Total Short-term Employee Benefit 237 118

Defined contribution plan 21 11

258 129
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2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

27.  Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Executive Chairperson: Mr. Yershen Pillay (appointed 22 March 2013)

Salary for managerial service to NYDA 855 729

Allowances 143 138

Total Short-term Employee Benefit 998 867

Defined contribution plan 54 52

1 052 919

Deputy Executive Chairperson: Mr. Kenny Morolong  

(appointed 22 March 2013) 

Salary for managerial service to NYDA 901 725

Allowances 12 12

Total Short-term Employee Benefit 913 737

Defined contribution plan 46 44

959 781

Non executive

Ms Ayanda Makaula 475 126

Ms Maropene Ramokgopa 519 288

Mr Mothupi Modiba 565 240

Ms Nyalleng Potloane 335 -

Ms Zandile Majozi (appointed 22 March 2013) 513 296

2 407 950
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2015 Short term employee
benefits R’000

Bonus
R’000

Expense  
allowance R’000

Defined contribution 
plan R’000

Total 
R’000

Other key management 

personnel  

Divisional Directors and 

senior management

reporting directly to the

Chief Executive Officer:

Chief Financial Officer 496 - 3 25 524

Divisional Directors

Mr AM Ntlangeni 924 165 108 57 1 254

Ms T Mavasa (Resigned 31 

July 2014)

564 177 - 25 766

Mr SG Mkoka ( Resigned 31 

July 2014)

520 - 16 26 562

Mr D Van Vuuren 963 192 140 65 1 360

Ms N Mphahlele 932 192 61 174 1 359

Ms NG Hluyo (Acting 

fromJuly 2013, resigned May 

2014)

399 - 9 26 434

Ms L Dlova 1 024 192 79 65 1 360

Mr D Smith (Appointed 01 

October 2014)

837 152 105 55 1 149

Ms S Redelinghuys (Acting 

from 23 May 2014)

341 - 22 18 381

MS J Tshoke (Appointed 01 

November 2014)

383 - 52 65 500

Mr L Matibane (Appointed 01 

October 2014)

563 - 12 30 605

Mr S Hargovan (Acting from 

02 September 2014)

475 - 31 26 532

8421 1070 638 657 10 786
20152014
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2015 Short term employee
benefits R’000

Bonus
R’000

Expense  
allowance R’000

Defined contribution 
plan R’000

Total 
R’000

Other key management 

personnel  

Divisional Directors and 

senior management

reporting directly to the

Chief Executive Officer:

Chief Financial Officer 496 - 3 25 524

Divisional Directors

Mr AM Ntlangeni 924 165 108 57 1 254

Ms T Mavasa (Resigned 31 

July 2014)

564 177 - 25 766

Mr SG Mkoka ( Resigned 31 

July 2014)

520 - 16 26 562

Mr D Van Vuuren 963 192 140 65 1 360

Ms N Mphahlele 932 192 61 174 1 359

Ms NG Hluyo (Acting 

fromJuly 2013, resigned May 

2014)

399 - 9 26 434

Ms L Dlova 1 024 192 79 65 1 360

Mr D Smith (Appointed 01 

October 2014)

837 152 105 55 1 149

Ms S Redelinghuys (Acting 

from 23 May 2014)

341 - 22 18 381

MS J Tshoke (Appointed 01 

November 2014)

383 - 52 65 500

Mr L Matibane (Appointed 01 

October 2014)

563 - 12 30 605

Mr S Hargovan (Acting from 

02 September 2014)

475 - 31 26 532

8421 1070 638 657 10 786
20152014

Notes to the Financial Statements
27.  Directors’ emoluments (continued)

2014 Short term employee
benefits R’000

Bonus
R’000

Expense  
allowance R’000

Defined contribution  
plan R’000

Total 
R’000

Other key management 

personnel

Divisional directors and 

senior management

directly reporting to the 

Chief Executive Officer:

Chief Financial Officer 1 239 195 67 115 1616

Chief Operations Officer 2 045 - 91 40 2 176

Divisional Directors:

Mr AM Ntlangeni 782 128 102 52 1 064

Ms T Mavasa 980 149 74 61 1 264

Mr SG Mkoka 982 149 93 61 1 285

Mr D Van Vuuren 895 149 137 61 1 242

Ms N Mphahlele 872 149 60 164 1 245

Mr. V Mulaudzi 741 149 139 56 1 085

Ms L Dlova 970 124 64 61 1 219

Mr KE Mahura 77 - 2 8 87

Mr D Smith (Acting from May 

2013)

641 - 111 44 796

Ms NG Hluyo (Acting from 

July 2013)

591 - 82 118 791

10 815 1 192 1 022 841 13 870

No emoluments were paid to the members or any individuals holding a prescribed office during the year.  

The position of Chief Financial Officer was filled on an acting basis by a non-employed secondee from a financial 

services institution for the period 1 March to 30 September 2014 at a cost of R1.1 million. This amount has been 

included in operational expenditure for the period. The Chief Financial Officer was appointed 01 October 2014.
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28. Related parties

Type Related
Parties

%
Share 
holding

Nature of transaction Loans and 
investments 
disbursed in 2015

Terms and
conditions

Loan balance
impairment

Liability 
balance

Interest
income

Administration 
fees

Other expense 
with related 
parties

Other income
with related 
parties

Impairment of 
loans with related 
parties

Joint Ventures

1. Jointly controlled 
assets with FNB 
Leverage
Finance (LF)

33 % The NYDA
invested R36 million with a 
commitment to invest R80 
million.

Nil
(2014: Nil)

FNB will provide funding) to 
SMEs and remit collection 
to the NYDA as and when 
received

R2.517 million 
(2014: R4.8 million)

Nil 
(2014: Nil)

R625 000 Nil
(2014: R848 000)

Nil 
(2014: Nil)

Nil  
(2014: Nil)

Nil  
(2014: Nil)

R2.512 million  
(2014: R2.6 
million)

2. Jointly controlled 
asset with Massmart
Holdings Limited

50 % The NYDA and Massmart
contributed R1 million each to 
provide funding to
entrepreneur’s for franchises 
costing less than R150 000.

The NYDA will provide funding 
to entrepreneurs and remit 
collections to Massmart as and 
when received.

R3.0 million
(2014:R2.8 million)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

R259 000 Nil
(2014: R245 000)

Nil  
(2014: Nil)

Nil  
(2014: Nil)

Nil  
(2014: Nil)

R3.0 Million  
(2014: R2.8 
Million)

3. Jointly controlled 
asset with Mobile 
Telephone
Network Ltd (MTN)

57 % The NYDA and MTN
contributed R2 million and 
R1.5 million respectively to 
provide funding to
entrepreneur’s for franchises 
costing  R30 000.

Nil
(2014: Nil)

NYDA will provide funding
to entrepreneurs and remit 
collections to MTN as and 
when received.

R230 000
(2014: R217 000)

R230 000
(2014: 
R217 000)

Nil  
(2014: Nil)

R125 000 
(2014:R25000)

Nil  
(2014: Nil)

Nil  
(2014: Nil)

R230 000 
(2014:R217 000)

4. University of
Johannesburg

The NYDA Contributed  
R4 million towards the Youth 
Development Research 
Institutes

R4 Million The NYDA Contributed towards 
the Youth Development
Research Institutes

R4 million R97 650 R3 099 R88 000 Nil

A
ssociates

1. Franchise Fund 
(en commandite 
partnership between 
the NYDA and 
business partners)

80 % The NYDA has invested 
R100 million (80% stake)
in the Franchise Fund in 
order to assist young black 
entrepreneurs to start 
franchises.

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Franchise Fund will provide 
funding to SMEs and remit 
collection to the NYDA

R4.8million  
(2014: R4.8million)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

R79 000  
(2014: R848 000)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

2. Chicken
Kwasa (Pty) Ltd

26 % NYDA has granted a loan to
Chicken Kwasa (Pty) Limited 
for an approved amount of 
R1,75 million.

Nil
(2014: Nil)

The interest  rate on this loan 
is prime less 2%. Participation 
fees are charged at the greater 
of 1,25% of actual gross 
monthly revenue or R9 100 per 
month. The loan period is from 
March 2005 to 2010.

R2.1 million 
(2014:R2.1 million )

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014:R57 000)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

R2.1 million 
(2014:R2.1 million )

3. K5 Transport
Logistics (Pty)
Ltd

10 % The NYDA granted a loan to 
K5 Transport Logistics  (Pty) 
Ltd for an approved amount of 
R1.2 million

Nil
(2014: Nil)

The interest rate on this loan 
is prime plus 3%. Participation 
fees are not charged. The loan 
period was from June 2006  to 
May 2011.

R1.5 million 
(2013:R1.4 million

Nil
(2014: Nil)

R112 000
(2014:R112 000)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

R1.5 million 
(2014:R1.5 million )
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28. Related parties

Type Related
Parties

%
Share 
holding

Nature of transaction Loans and 
investments 
disbursed in 2015

Terms and
conditions

Loan balance
impairment

Liability 
balance

Interest
income

Administration 
fees

Other expense 
with related 
parties

Other income
with related 
parties

Impairment of 
loans with related 
parties

Joint Ventures

1. Jointly controlled 
assets with FNB 
Leverage
Finance (LF)

33 % The NYDA
invested R36 million with a 
commitment to invest R80 
million.

Nil
(2014: Nil)

FNB will provide funding) to 
SMEs and remit collection 
to the NYDA as and when 
received

R2.517 million 
(2014: R4.8 million)

Nil 
(2014: Nil)

R625 000 Nil
(2014: R848 000)

Nil 
(2014: Nil)

Nil  
(2014: Nil)

Nil  
(2014: Nil)

R2.512 million  
(2014: R2.6 
million)

2. Jointly controlled 
asset with Massmart
Holdings Limited

50 % The NYDA and Massmart
contributed R1 million each to 
provide funding to
entrepreneur’s for franchises 
costing less than R150 000.

The NYDA will provide funding 
to entrepreneurs and remit 
collections to Massmart as and 
when received.

R3.0 million
(2014:R2.8 million)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

R259 000 Nil
(2014: R245 000)

Nil  
(2014: Nil)

Nil  
(2014: Nil)

Nil  
(2014: Nil)

R3.0 Million  
(2014: R2.8 
Million)

3. Jointly controlled 
asset with Mobile 
Telephone
Network Ltd (MTN)

57 % The NYDA and MTN
contributed R2 million and 
R1.5 million respectively to 
provide funding to
entrepreneur’s for franchises 
costing  R30 000.

Nil
(2014: Nil)

NYDA will provide funding
to entrepreneurs and remit 
collections to MTN as and 
when received.

R230 000
(2014: R217 000)

R230 000
(2014: 
R217 000)

Nil  
(2014: Nil)

R125 000 
(2014:R25000)

Nil  
(2014: Nil)

Nil  
(2014: Nil)

R230 000 
(2014:R217 000)

4. University of
Johannesburg

The NYDA Contributed  
R4 million towards the Youth 
Development Research 
Institutes

R4 Million The NYDA Contributed towards 
the Youth Development
Research Institutes

R4 million R97 650 R3 099 R88 000 Nil

A
ssociates

1. Franchise Fund 
(en commandite 
partnership between 
the NYDA and 
business partners)

80 % The NYDA has invested 
R100 million (80% stake)
in the Franchise Fund in 
order to assist young black 
entrepreneurs to start 
franchises.

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Franchise Fund will provide 
funding to SMEs and remit 
collection to the NYDA

R4.8million  
(2014: R4.8million)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

R79 000  
(2014: R848 000)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

2. Chicken
Kwasa (Pty) Ltd

26 % NYDA has granted a loan to
Chicken Kwasa (Pty) Limited 
for an approved amount of 
R1,75 million.

Nil
(2014: Nil)

The interest  rate on this loan 
is prime less 2%. Participation 
fees are charged at the greater 
of 1,25% of actual gross 
monthly revenue or R9 100 per 
month. The loan period is from 
March 2005 to 2010.

R2.1 million 
(2014:R2.1 million )

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014:R57 000)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

R2.1 million 
(2014:R2.1 million )

3. K5 Transport
Logistics (Pty)
Ltd

10 % The NYDA granted a loan to 
K5 Transport Logistics  (Pty) 
Ltd for an approved amount of 
R1.2 million

Nil
(2014: Nil)

The interest rate on this loan 
is prime plus 3%. Participation 
fees are not charged. The loan 
period was from June 2006  to 
May 2011.

R1.5 million 
(2013:R1.4 million

Nil
(2014: Nil)

R112 000
(2014:R112 000)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

R1.5 million 
(2014:R1.5 million )
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Type Related
Parties

%
Share 
holding

Nature of transaction Loans and 
investments 
disbursed in 2015

Terms and
conditions

Loan balance
impairment

Liability 
balance

Interest
income

Administration 
fees

Other expense 
with related 
parties

Other income
with related 
parties

Impairment of 
loans with related 
parties

A
ssociates

4. Decti Rating
Agency (Pty
)Ltd

19% The NYDA granted a loan to 
Decti Rating (Pty) Ltd for an 
approved amount of  
R1.5 million

Nil
(2014: Nil)

The interest rate on this loan 
is prime plus 2%. Participation 
fees are not charged.  The loan 
period was from December 
2006 to December 2011.

R500 000
(2014:R 500 000)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

 R500 000
(2014:R 500 000)

 5. Vynide
Investments

10 % The NYDA has granted a loan 
to Vynide Ivestments for an 
approved amount of  
R3 million.

Nil
(2014: Nil)

The interest  rate on this loan 
is prime less 2%. Participation 
fees are  not charged. The 
period was from November 
2007 to December 2012. 

R3.7 million 
(2014:R3.7 million )

Nil
(2014: Nil)

R372 000 Nil
(2014:R37 000)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

R2.1 million 
(2014:R2.1 million )

All entities on the national sphere of government, as well as entities that report to entities on the national sphere of government

Fellow
 

subsidiary/
departm

ent

Government 
Communication 
and Information 
Systems (GCIS)

N/A GCIS advertises events on 
behalf of the NYDA

Nil
(2014: Nil)

None Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: 
R98 096)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

R1.7 million
(2014:R1.3)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Type Related
Parties

%
Share 
holding

Nature of 
transaction

Loans and 
investments 
disbursed in 
2015

Terms and
conditions

Loan balance before
impairment

Liability 
balance

Interest
income

Administration 

fees

Other expense 
with related 
parties

Advances to 
Directors and key 
management

Other income
with related 
parties

Impairment of loans 
with related parties

Advances to Directors and Key Management

A Lungisa
N/A Advances to be 

repaid

Nil

(2014: Nil)

None Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2013: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

R460 000

(2014:R460 000)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

R460 000

(2014:R460 000)

Y Pillay 
N/A Advances to be 

repaid

Nil

(2014: Nil)

None Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2013: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

R142 000

(2014:R142 000)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

M Mashinini
N/A Advances to be 

repaid

Nil

(2014: Nil)

None Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2013: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

R23 000

(2014:R23 000)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

R23 000

(2014:R23 000)

K Morolong
N/A Advances to be 

repaid

Nil

(2014: Nil)

None Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2013: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

R460 000

(2014:R303 000)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)
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28. Related parties (continued)

Type Related
Parties

%
Share 
holding

Nature of transaction Loans and 
investments 
disbursed in 2015

Terms and
conditions

Loan balance
impairment

Liability 
balance

Interest
income

Administration 
fees

Other expense 
with related 
parties

Other income
with related 
parties

Impairment of 
loans with related 
parties

A
ssociates

4. Decti Rating
Agency (Pty
)Ltd

19% The NYDA granted a loan to 
Decti Rating (Pty) Ltd for an 
approved amount of  
R1.5 million

Nil
(2014: Nil)

The interest rate on this loan 
is prime plus 2%. Participation 
fees are not charged.  The loan 
period was from December 
2006 to December 2011.

R500 000
(2014:R 500 000)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

 R500 000
(2014:R 500 000)

 5. Vynide
Investments

10 % The NYDA has granted a loan 
to Vynide Ivestments for an 
approved amount of  
R3 million.

Nil
(2014: Nil)

The interest  rate on this loan 
is prime less 2%. Participation 
fees are  not charged. The 
period was from November 
2007 to December 2012. 

R3.7 million 
(2014:R3.7 million )

Nil
(2014: Nil)

R372 000 Nil
(2014:R37 000)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

R2.1 million 
(2014:R2.1 million )

All entities on the national sphere of government, as well as entities that report to entities on the national sphere of government

Fellow
 

subsidiary/
departm

ent

Government 
Communication 
and Information 
Systems (GCIS)

N/A GCIS advertises events on 
behalf of the NYDA

Nil
(2014: Nil)

None Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: 
R98 096)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

R1.7 million
(2014:R1.3)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Nil
(2014: Nil)

Type Related
Parties

%
Share 
holding

Nature of 
transaction

Loans and 
investments 
disbursed in 
2015

Terms and
conditions

Loan balance before
impairment

Liability 
balance

Interest
income

Administration 

fees

Other expense 
with related 
parties

Advances to 
Directors and key 
management

Other income
with related 
parties

Impairment of loans 
with related parties

Advances to Directors and Key Management

A Lungisa
N/A Advances to be 

repaid

Nil

(2014: Nil)

None Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2013: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

R460 000

(2014:R460 000)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

R460 000

(2014:R460 000)

Y Pillay 
N/A Advances to be 

repaid

Nil

(2014: Nil)

None Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2013: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

R142 000

(2014:R142 000)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

M Mashinini
N/A Advances to be 

repaid

Nil

(2014: Nil)

None Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2013: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

R23 000

(2014:R23 000)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

R23 000

(2014:R23 000)

K Morolong
N/A Advances to be 

repaid

Nil

(2014: Nil)

None Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2013: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

R460 000

(2014:R303 000)

Nil

(2014: Nil)

Nil

(2014: Nil)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

29. Commitments 

Research and Policy - 4 000

Service Delivery Channel - 2 500

Turnarround Strategy 9 683 -

IT Capital Assets 3 250 -

Equipment 1 603 -

Education enablers funds 395 -

14 931 6 500

30. Contingent liability and assets

Contingent liability

A contingent liability is an existing condition or situation involving uncertainty as to possible loss to an organisation, 

which will ultimately be resolved when one or more future event occur, or fail to occur. A contingent liability is recognised 

by the NYDA when that uncertainty will ultimately be resolved, if one or more future events occurs, not wholly within 

the agency’s control, or fail to occur. Resolution of the uncertainty may confirm the loss or the incurrence of a liability.

 

The NYDA has the following contingent liability which meets the definition as provided above: 

Employee settlement claims amounting to R1.6 million from the prevoius financial period.

Travel Service Providers are claiming an amount of R825 000 as the result of late payments, The matter is currently 

disputed by the NYDA.

Contingent assets

NYDA is claiming R2.9 million from a Service Provider who was awarded a contract, but subsequently withdrew without 

completing the required deliverables.

31. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Opening balance 5 648 4 652

Cancellation Fee 7 -

Rental of unused offices - 225

Penalty for Youth Chamber Summit - 540

Transport refunds on Youth Chamber Summit - 8

Travel penalties 13 2

Interest paid 246 159

Costs of cancelled tender - 62

Reversal of previous years Fruitless and wasteful expenditure (540) -

5 374 5 648

Management has implemented consequences management to individuals found accountable for incurring fruitless and 

wasteful expenditure. This has included both suspensions and written warnings. Management is in negotiations with 

20152014

R ‘000R ‘000
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2015
R ‘000

2014
R ‘000

29. Commitments 

Research and Policy - 4 000

Service Delivery Channel - 2 500

Turnarround Strategy 9 683 -

IT Capital Assets 3 250 -

Equipment 1 603 -

Education enablers funds 395 -

14 931 6 500

30. Contingent liability and assets

Contingent liability

A contingent liability is an existing condition or situation involving uncertainty as to possible loss to an organisation, 

which will ultimately be resolved when one or more future event occur, or fail to occur. A contingent liability is recognised 

by the NYDA when that uncertainty will ultimately be resolved, if one or more future events occurs, not wholly within 

the agency’s control, or fail to occur. Resolution of the uncertainty may confirm the loss or the incurrence of a liability.

 

The NYDA has the following contingent liability which meets the definition as provided above: 

Employee settlement claims amounting to R1.6 million from the prevoius financial period.

Travel Service Providers are claiming an amount of R825 000 as the result of late payments, The matter is currently 

disputed by the NYDA.

Contingent assets

NYDA is claiming R2.9 million from a Service Provider who was awarded a contract, but subsequently withdrew without 

completing the required deliverables.

31. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Opening balance 5 648 4 652

Cancellation Fee 7 -

Rental of unused offices - 225

Penalty for Youth Chamber Summit - 540

Transport refunds on Youth Chamber Summit - 8

Travel penalties 13 2

Interest paid 246 159

Costs of cancelled tender - 62

Reversal of previous years Fruitless and wasteful expenditure (540) -

5 374 5 648

Management has implemented consequences management to individuals found accountable for incurring fruitless and 

wasteful expenditure. This has included both suspensions and written warnings. Management is in negotiations with 

20152014

R ‘000R ‘000

SARS to reduce or waive the penalty payable and is also applying for condonation of prior year fruitless and wasteful 

expenditure

32. Irregular expenditure

Reconciliation of irregular expenditure

Opening balance 279 679 262 979

Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year 580 16 700

280 259 279 679

Irregular expenditure incurred during the current financial year results from non-compliance with the Public Finance 

Management Act, Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act and National Treasury Regulation with respect to 

Supply Chain Management prescripts.

The agency has taken necessary action against individuals who contributed to the incurrence of irregular expenditure 

by enforcing disciplinary action. 

33.  Budget differences

Material differences between budget and actual amounts

• Administrations and overheads: The increased overhead costs resulted from increased courier expenditure as 
a result of over achievement of targets and the evidence for such targets having to be transferred from branches 
to head office. Printing costs were also higher than initial budgeted amounts. Increased bank charges were also 
incurred as a result of two major forensic investigations that were required to be undertaken.

• Communication and PR: The NYDA reduced communications expenditure through not providing marketing 
collateral to employees, printing less copies of the annual report and making use of vernacular advertising 
methods rather than commercial means.

• Information technology: Savings were realized through lower than expected telephone expenditures as a result 
of cost savings and lower than expected IT support costs. There were also slight delays in the appointment of 
outsourced staff and the project management office which resulted in the savings.

• Outsourcing and external services: Capacity building expenditure was incurred additionally as a result of 
once off projects that came in over budget such as the secondment of the Chief Financial Officer, the skills 
audit and HR restructuring projects and the development of the Youth Employment Plan and Integrated Youth 
Development Strategy .

• Seminars and Training: Additional training and seminars were held of economic development training 
interventions which is reflected in the over achievement of the target. Workshops were also held in terms of 
consultation on the National Youth Policy 2020.

• Travel and accommodation: The National Treasury cost containment measures as well as internal cost cutting 
resulted in savings on travel and accommodation.

• Project disbursements: The savings from operations and employee costs were redirected towards projects 
especially in the cases of the Solomon Mahlangu Scholarship Programme and Second Chance Matric Rewrite 
Programme. Prior year rollovers were also redirected towards projects.

• Grants: The NYDA redirected savings from other areas of Economic Development towards the grant programme, 
one of its flagships programmes which is reflected in the over achievement of the target.

• Employee costs: The savings resulted from the NYDA taking the decision not to appoint the Provincial Advisory 
Boards pending the outcome of the review of the NYDA Act.

• Impairment / Donor / Loss / Interest: The NYDA does not budget for these line items due to them either being 

non-cash or challenging to estimate.

34. Subsequent events

Organizational realignment project

The NYDA has undertaken an organizational realignment project during the 2014 / 2015 financial period. 
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The outcome of the project was finalized after year end and the outcomes would indicate a reduction in 

the staffing compliement.  

 

The Accounting Authority has approved the report and a section 189 notice has been declared to the 

employees of the organisation.

 

Consultations are currently undergoing with labor and the realignment may result in voluntary settlement 

packages and retrenchment packages provided to employees the financial effect of which management 

intends funding from its current salary budget for the 2015 / 2016 financial year and is in negotiations with 

the National Treasury to fund any of the unbudgeted amounts through the Medium Term Expenditure 

Committee (MTEC) review of national spending.
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